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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Wecon Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present to our shareholders (the “Shareholders”) the annual
report of our Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 (the
"Year").

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The revenue of our Group decreased by approximately
HK$283.7 million or approximately 24.6% from approximately
HK$1,152.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to
approximately HK$869.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2023. The profit attributable to the equity holders for the year
ended 31 March 2023 was approximately HK$5.9 million, which
decreased by approximately HK$8.3 million as compared to that
for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PROSPECTS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group was
successfully awarded three sizeable contracts for re-
development projects from new customers with an aggregate
contract sum of approximately HK$1.5 billion, under which
the Group acted as main contractor to provide building
construction services. Subsequent to 31 March 2023, the Group
was successfully awarded an additional sizeable contract with a
contract sum of approximately HK$500 million. The Group will
continue to diversify its customer base by placing more effort
in promoting the Group's reputation, ensuring projects are
completed on time with the highest quality and implementing
various cost-effective measures to improve its competitiveness.
The management of the Group still remains prudently optimistic
about the prospects of the construction industry in Hong Kong.
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In July 2022, Wecon Construction & Engineering Limited (“Wecon
Construction”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was admitted to Group C on probation under the
“Buildings” category on the List of Approved Contractors for
Public Works (the “Group C") maintained by the Works Branch
of the Development Bureau of the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR"), upon which Wecon
Construction as the main contractor will be eligible to tender for
Group C contract of contract value exceeding HK$400 million
from the Architectural Services Department (“ASD"), subject
to the probationary condition that Wecon Construction cannot
undertake more than two Group C contracts nor undertake
a total outstanding contract value exceeding the Group C
probationary limit of HK$1.5 billion at any one time. The
management of the Group believes that admission to the Group
C list will allow the Group to tender for more construction
projects from ASD in terms of quantity as well as contract value,
and will demonstrate the capability of the Group in undertaking
construction projects of larger scale and larger contract sum.

As the world economy enters into a period of profound
transformation, the Group would seek evolution through every
avenue. The Group believes that the building information
modeling services could differentiate the Group from the
Group’s competitors through providing creative technical
solutions to the Group’s customers. Going forward, the Group
plans to invest in building construction related services that
will enhance the Group's capabilities and provide synergies to
the existing business of the Group, while the Group strives to
maintain high quality and workmanship which the Group has
been delivering to its customers.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®|E

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our Shareholders, institutional investors, customers,
bankers, suppliers, subcontractors and business partners for
their continuous support to and confidence in the Group. |
would also like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
thanks to our management team and all staff members for their
effort and significant contribution to the Group.

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THERRR S

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a long-established main contractor in Hong
Kong and principally engaged in the provision of (i) building
construction services and (ii) repair, maintenance, alteration and
addition ("RMAA") works services. The Group provides building
construction services to customers in both the private and
public sectors. The building construction services provided by
the Group primarily consist of building works for new buildings,
including residential, commercial and industrial buildings, while
the Group’s RMAA works services include the general upkeep,
maintenance, improvement, refurbishment, alteration and
addition of existing facilities and components of buildings and

their surroundings.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 11 major projects on hand
with an awarded contract sum of HK$10.0 million or above,
which include projects in progress and projects that are yet to

commence.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group had
completed five major projects with an awarded contract sum of
HK$10.0 million or above.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks relating to the Group's operations which
could harm the Group’s business, financial condition and
operating results. Some of the relatively material risks relating
to the Group are summarised as follows:

(i)  The Group's business and operation may be affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic or other public health incidents, which
may cause lockdown, travel restrictions and suspension of
work in Hong Kong or elsewhere;

(i) the Group's revenue relies on the Group's contracts being
awarded through tendering or quotation processes which
are not recurrent in nature. There is no guarantee on the
Group's continual success in project tenders or quotation
and the Group's sustainability and financial performance
may be materially and adversely affected;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DT

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the Group is exposed to concentration risk of heavy
reliance on the Group's largest and major customers;

the Group relies on the Group's subcontractors to perform
generally most of the works of the Group's projects;
any fluctuations in subcontracting costs, unsatisfactory
performance or unavailability of the Group's subcontractors
may materially and adversely affect the Group's operations
and profitability;

the Group may suffer from cash flow shortcomings due to
mismatch in time between receipt of progress payments
from our customers, and payments to our suppliers and
subcontractors;

changes in the prices and availability of raw materials
may materially and adversely affect the Group’s operating
results; and

the Group provides performance bonds in the course of the
Group's business operations which could affect the Group's
liquidity position.

For detailed discussion of the risk factors, please refer to

the

section headed “Risk Factors” in the prospectus of the

Company dated 30 January 2019 (the “Prospectus”).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's reportable and operating segments are (i) building

construction services and (i) RMAA works services. Details of

the segmental information of the Group is disclosed in note 5

to the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group decreased by approximately HK$283.7

million or approximately 24.6% from approximately HK$1,152.7

million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately
HK$869.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2023.

(i)

(i)

Building Construction Services

The revenue generated from the building construction
services decreased by approximately HK$426.0 million
or approximately 43.2% from approximately HK$986.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately
HK$560.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2023. Such
decrease was mainly due to decrease in revenue generated
from several major projects as a result of the practical
completion of those projects during the year ended 31
March 2023. Such decrease, however, was partially offset by
increase in revenue generated from other major projects,
which achieved significant progress during the year ended
31 March 2023.

RMAA Works Services

The revenue generated from the RMAA works services
substantially increased by approximately HK$142.3 million
or approximately 85.7% from approximately HK$166.0
million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately
HK$308.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2023. Such
increase was primarily attributable to increase in revenue
generated from two major projects awarded during the year
ended 31 March 2022, which achieved significant progress
during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DT

Cost of Sales

The cost of sales of the Group decreased by approximately
HK$269.0 million or approximately 24.5% from approximately
HK$1,099.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to
approximately HK$830.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2023. Such decrease was mainly driven by the corresponding
decrease in revenue. The Group’s cost of sales primarily
consisted of subcontracting costs, material costs, direct staff
costs and site overhead costs.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately
HK$14.7 million or approximately 27.4% from approximately
HK$53.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to
approximately HK$39.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2023. The gross profit margin of the Group was approximately
4.5% and 4.7% for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022,
respectively, representing a decrease of approximately 0.2
percentage points.

(i) Building Construction Services

The gross profit of building construction services
decreased by approximately HK$35.5 million or
approximately 66.0% from approximately HK$53.8 million
for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately
HK$18.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2023. The
gross profit margin of building construction services
decreased from approximately 5.5% for the year ended
31 March 2022 to approximately 3.3% for the year ended
31 March 2023. Such decrease was primarily attributable
to higher gross profit margin generated from several
major projects during the year ended 31 March 2022 as a
result of negotiation of final accounts with subcontractors,
which led to a decrease in subcontracting costs.
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(ii) RMAA Works Services

The gross profit of RMAA works services was approximately
HK$20.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2023, as
compared to the gross loss of approximately HK$0.1
million for the year ended 31 March 2022. The gross profit
margin of RMAA works services changed from gross loss
margin of approximately 0.1% for the year ended 31 March
2022 to gross profit margin of approximately 6.7% for the
year ended 31 March 2023. The turnaround from gross
loss to gross profit of RMAA works services was primarily
attributable to the commencement of revenue generating
stage of two major projects during the year ended 31
March 2023, as compared to the significant site overhead
costs incurred at the initial stage of the two major projects
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Other Income and Gains

The other income and gains of the Group increased by
approximately HK$5.9 million or approximately 80.8% from
approximately HK$7.3 million for year ended 31 March 2022 to
approximately HK$13.2 million for year ended 31 March 2023.
Such increase was mainly due to (i) a non-recurring government
subsidy under the Employment Support Scheme established by
the Government of HKSAR recognised during the year ended
31 March 2023 and (ii) increase in bank interest income.

Administrative and Other Operating Expenses, Net

The administrative and other operating expenses, net of
the Group increased by approximately HK$1.1 million or
approximately 2.5% from approximately HK$44.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately HK$45.4 million
for year ended 31 March 2023. Such increase was mainly due
to increase in (i) impairment of contract assets and trade
receivables and (ii) professional fees during the year ended 31
March 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DT

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by approximately
HK$51,000 or approximately 39.5% from approximately
HK$129,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately
HK$180,000 for the year ended 31 March 2023. Such increase
was primarily attributable to increase in the interest expense on
lease liabilities.

Income Tax

The income tax of the Group decreased by approximately
HK$1.6 million or approximately 69.6% from approximately
HK$2.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to
approximately HK$0.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2023. The effective tax rate (defined as the income tax divided
by profit before tax) was approximately 11.0% and 14.2%
for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, respectively.
The decrease of the effective tax rate was mainly due to the
non-taxable government subsidy and bank interest income
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Net Profit

As a result of the foregoing, the net profit of the Group
decreased by approximately HK$8.3 million or approximately
58.5% from approximately HK$14.2 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 to approximately HK$5.9 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023. The net profit margin was approximately
0.7% and 1.2% for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022,
respectively, representing a decrease of approximately 0.5
percentage points. Such decrease was primarily attributable to
the decrease in gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has a total of 226 full-time
and three part-time employees (as at 31 March 2022: 223 full-
time and one part-time employees). The Group has developed
its human resources policies and procedures to determine
the individual remuneration with reference to factors such
as performance, qualification, merits, responsibilities of each
individual and market conditions. The Group offers induction
and other ad hoc training to employees according to the job
nature and position of individual employee. Remuneration
packages are normally reviewed on a regular basis. Apart
from salary payments, other staff benefits include provident
fund contributions, medical insurance coverage, annual leave
and share options and share awards which may be granted to
eligible employees. The total staff costs (excluding Directors’
remuneration) of the Group were approximately HK$93.5 million
and HK$92.9 million for the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022, respectively.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 March 2023, other than the
shareholding in the subsidiaries of the Company, there were no
significant investments held by the Company. There were no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies undertaken by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2023.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Save as disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no significant capital commitments
as at 31 March 2023.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no other material contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2023.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERWR D
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DT

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has a minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. As such, the
Directors believe that the Group's risk in foreign exchange is
insignificant that it is not necessary for the Group to arrange
any foreign currency hedging. The Group did not enter into
any instrument for hedging purposes and there were no
foreign currency investments which were hedged by currency
borrowings and by other hedging instruments entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2023.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group has principally funded the liquidity and capital
requirements through capital contributions from the
Shareholders, bank borrowings and net cash generated from
operating activities.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had pledged deposits
and cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$98.4 million
and HK$122.7 million, respectively. As at 31 March 2023 and
2022, the current ratio of the Group was approximately 2.5
times and 2.1 times, respectively.

The Group generally finances its operation by internally
generated resources and banking facilities provided by certain
banks and an insurance company in Hong Kong. The Directors
believe that the Group has sufficient working capital for the
Group's current commitments and future requirements.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there has been no
change in the capital structure of the Company.
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DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group has no outstanding
bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the lease
liabilities of the Group amounted to approximately HK$6.7
million and HK$7.9 million, respectively.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the banking facilities of the
Group were secured by (i) the Group's pledged deposits of
approximately HK$34.2 million and HK$34.2 million, respectively;
(ii) the Group's life insurance policy of approximately HK$10.1
million and nil, respectively; and (iii) corporate guarantee
executed by the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s bank
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and
interests on bank borrowings were mainly charged at floating
rate. The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. Although the Group had no outstanding
bank borrowings as at 31 March 2023, the Group pays vigilant
attention to and monitors interest rate risks continuously and
cautiously.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the gearing ratio of the Group
(defined as the lease liabilities divided by total equity) was
approximately 2.4% and 2.8%, respectively.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group was not
subject to any material environmental claims, lawsuits, penalty,
administrative or disciplinary actions. For further information
in relation to the environmental policies and performance of
the Group, please refer to the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” prepared according to Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DT

USE OF PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”) were successfully
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the"” Stock Exchange”) on 27 February 2019 (the
“Listing Date"”). The net proceeds from the share offer (the “Net
Proceeds”), after deducting related underwriting commission
and listing expenses, of approximately HK$93.5 million, have
been fully utilised during the year ended 31 March 2023 in
accordance with the section headed "Future Plans and Use of

Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

The particulars of the Net Proceeds utilised during the year

ended 31 March 2023 are as follows:

FBRERAE
Rpaalt (4 ))R2019F2H278 (T £
TR DREBHARZHAER A ([ER
Frl) EMRATH £ o B E20236F3H31H L
FE - MBRAEERERE R LTRSS
BEMSHEFE(ABRIEFHE]) 935
BEBTCRBRIRERI KRB RFAE
RIER® | —EEEEA -

B E2023F3A31H LFEAFREFIRFR
FERZBIT

Actual use of Remaining
Net Proceeds balance of
Planned use of during the Net Proceeds
Net Proceeds year ended as at
in total 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
BZ2023% 120235
FrERERE 3B3ALEER 3A31AM
g b FETEER FrERERR
] ERAR e
(HKS million) (HKS million) (HKS$ million)
(BEE7T) (BE#E7) (&%)
Strengthen the capacity in undertaking more MERARERAEES 667 - -
building construction and RMAA works projects EFRENRKER
in Hong Kong #EIRBENEN
Strengthen the manpower AT 144 19 -
Upgrade and renovation of office WAEARRET 36 0.2 =
Develop engineering and TrEaIH Ti2 R At 29 04 =
technological innovation
General working capital —REEES 59 - -
93.5 25 -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
the highest standard of corporate governance as the Board
recognises the importance of sound corporate governance
to the long-term and continuing success of the Group. The
corporate governance principles of the Group emphasise
transparency, accountability and independence. The Board
commits to continuously reviewing and enhancing the Group's
corporate governance practices and procedures for the best
interest of the Shareholders.

Pursuant to paragraph 34 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules,
the Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report to the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code ("CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules except for the deviation mentioned in the paragraph

below headed “Chairman and Chief Executive”.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer (the
"CEO") should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. Since the Listing Date and up to the date
of this annual report, Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (“Mr. KY Tsang”) has
been the Chairman of the Board and the CEO of the Company.
Given the nature and extent of the Group's operations and
Mr. KY Tsang’s in-depth knowledge and experience in the
industry in which the Group operates and his familiarity with the
operations of the Group, the Board believes that it is the most
beneficial to the Group and the Shareholders as a whole to
have Mr. KY Tsang acting as the Chairman of the Board and the
CEO of the Company at the same time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the model code for securities
transactions by directors of listed issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries to each of the Directors
and all Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group's overall strategies, the setting of management targets
and supervision of management performance.

Composition

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board comprised a
total of six directors, with three executive Directors (the "EDs")
and three independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs").
Board members are listed below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (Chairman and CEO)
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip

Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Lau Chi Keung

Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond

Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel
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In compliance with the requirements set out in Rule 3.10 of
the Listing Rules, the Board consists of three INEDs during the
year ended 31 March 2023, which comprises half of the Board,
and Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the
date of this annual report, the number of INEDs represents at
least one-third of the Board which is in compliance with Rule
3.10A. As such, the Company believes that there is a sufficient
independence element in the Board to safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders.

The Company has entered into a letter of appointment with
each of the INEDs. The commencement date of each of
the letter of appointment is 27 February 2019, which is the
Listing Date, for an initial term of three years, and renewable
automatically for a successive term of three years upon the
expiry of the current term, subject to early termination by either
party in accordance with the terms thereof. Each of the INEDs
has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the
terms of the guidelines.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors shall retire
from office by rotation at each annual general meeting and
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. As such, Mr. Tsang Ka Yip as an executive Director
and Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel as an independent non-executive
Director, will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Saved as disclosed in the section “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
there is no financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationship among members of the Board and senior
management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

Meetings and Attendance

The attendance of individual members of the Board at various
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2023, as well as the
number of such meetings held, and the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 19 August 2022 (the “2022 AGM") are
set out below:

ERRHERR

REE2023F3ANBLFE  EEEKE
HESEeEIREESRBITRE  UEAE
NREIR2022F8 19 BT RERFAE
([2022FMRBFERG DL FEIBREAT
UM

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BIEENRY
Audit Nomination =~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee 2022
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
g8 ENZES REZE8 FzEg 2022
e L] ] 8% BRRBFAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tsang Ka Yip " BRELEO 6/6 N/A N B Al 11 11
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip pap e St 5/6* N/A i@ N/A NiEf N/A NiEf 11
Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry DREAEE 6/6  N/ATEMR N/A NiEf N/A TE R 171
Independent Non-Executive BYFHTES
Directors
Dr. Lau Chi Keung @ Bt A 6/6 5/5 Al N/A TEH 11
Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond © BRI A 6/6 5/5 N/A TN B 11 11
Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel AEEL ) 6/6 5/5 11 1”1 11
1. Chairman of the Board 1 EEETE
2. Chairman of the Nomination Committee 2 REEESER
3. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 3 FHEERERE
4. Chairman of the Audit Committee 4 BREZEETR
i Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip was unable to attend one of the board meetings due to ~ * HRREEB L - EFREERGELEEF —RES
unexpected business engagements. BEH

INEDs’ meeting with the Chairman

In compliance with the code provision C.2.7 of the CG code, the
Chairman of the Board should at least annually hold a meeting
with the non-executive Directors (including INEDs) without the
presence of the other Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the INEDs had a
meeting with the Chairman of the Board without the presence
of other executive Directors. In addition, the INEDs could also
communicate directly at any time through other means (such as
telephone or email) to give their opinions and share their views
on the Company'’s affairs.
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Independence Views to the Board

The Board recognises Board independence is critical to good
corporate governance. The Company has put in place the
mechanisms to ensure a strong element of independence on
the Board, which are summarised below:

Board Composition

The Board endeavours to ensure the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors and at least one-
third of the Board members being independent non-executive
Directors (or such higher threshold as may be required by the
Listing Rules from time to time).

Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed by the
Listing Rules as to the composition of certain Board committees,
independent non-executive Directors will be appointed to other
Board committees as far as practicable to ensure independent

views are available.

Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee shall strictly adhere to the
nomination policy and the independence assessment criteria as
set out in the Listing Rules with regard to the nomination and
appointment of independent non-executive Directors.

Each independent non-executive Director is also required
to inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any
change in his own personal particulars that may materially affect
his independence.

The Nomination Committee is mandated to assess annually the
independence of all independent non-executive Directors by
reference to the independence criteria as set out in the Listing
Rules to ensure that they can continually exercise independent
judgement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

Decision Making

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are entitled to seek further information and documentation
from the management on the matters to be discussed at Board
meetings. They can also seek assistance from the Company's
company secretary and, where necessary, independent advice
from external professional advisers at the Company’s expense.

All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any Board
resolution approving any contract or arrangement in which such
Director or any of his close associates has a material interest.

The Board had made an annual review on the implementation
of the abovementioned mechanisms and was of the view
that the abovementioned mechanisms had been satisfactorily
implemented.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

In compliance with the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code,
all Directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skill
to ensure that they obtain the updated and relevant information
regarding to the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements. During the year ended 31 March 2023, the
Company arranged a training session provided by our Hong
Kong legal adviser to all the Directors as continuing professional
trainings. The training covered topics of recent amendments on (i)
corporate governance code and (ii) the Listing Rules in relation
to share option schemes and share award schemes.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) pursuant to requirement of the CG Code. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development.

In designing the Board’'s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a wide range of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural background and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience
and qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service,
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time to time. High emphasis is placed on
ensuring a balanced composition of skills and experience at the
Board level in order to provide a range of perspectives, insights
and challenge that enable the Board to discharge its duties
and responsibilities effectively, support good decision making
in view of the core businesses and strategy of the Group, and
support succession planning and development of the Board. For
achieving an optimal Board, additional measurable objectives
and specific diversity targets may be set and reviewed from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness.

Selection of director candidates will be based on the Company'’s
nomination policy and will take into account this policy. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board, having
due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board and also
the needs of the Board without focusing on a single diversity
aspect.

After the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board had reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy and was of the view that the Board Diversity Policy was
sufficient and effective.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

EEEHESTIEE
ESEERBEXEATANRTRMNES
EXNEZTIERR(EEEHEZ TR
K] - ARAIPHBALREEETEXNEZ T
HIRTTHNRREREHERS -

REYAHENRIENER - NARREST
EEEEEMNZ UL A EEDIB B R

REAIFERROBRITE

ARATEFEZHERE EEEREZ T
ERtZHHEZE BRETERRER - F
B XEERMHEER Bk - BXLR
KBRS B MBRRBER - URES
S A RE TN A2 R AR R S A 2 R E Al A
= - REFEEE B LR AN T
REHEHE - URE—FRIIEH RELE
B EEFSHRAVWETERE  XFHAE
BZORBRRBENRIPRRNESTENE
FErBINER - REBEBNESE @ £ &
Bk T HE MBI At E R R R A
BLETLBEE  URBRREBEE -

BHEENEBERBEARRMERRRE
17 YAREERABE - REREK SR
BHREASNRENEIAESSELNE
Bl EheEEHESTeRESTbmEn

UEREEENEE  TEREEE—MHET
LB -

REE2023F3A31BILFEEE  EFe€C
B EEeKE LT BRENERERRE
Mt WRAEBEEEKEZTLBERAERE
o -

N

BIERBRAR  F3532022/2023 23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

Board Diversity

The Company is conscious of maintaining Board diversity
with an appropriate level of female members on the Board.
During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Board had no female Board members,
in which case the Board considered gender diversity has not
been fully achieved. As such, the Board will appoint at least one
female Board member by 31 December 2024 under the relevant
requirements on gender diversity prescribed by the Listing
Rules. While conscious efforts are being taken by the Company
to fulfil its Board Diversity Policy, all appointments are ultimately
made on a merit basis taking into account available and suitable
candidates.

The Board would ensure that appropriate balance of gender
diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’ expectation
and international and local recommended best practices,
with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender parity.
The Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion
of Directors who have direct experience in the Group's core
markets, with different ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the
Group's strategy.

The Nominations Committee will review the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy at least annually and make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board
for the Board's review and approval to ensure its continued
appropriateness and effectiveness.

For recruiting potential successors to the Board to achieve
Board diversity including gender diversity, the Board has
prepared a list of desirable skills, experience, qualifications,
gender or perspectives which the candidate should have. If the
Board determines that an additional or replacement Director
is required, it will deploy multiple channels for identifying
suitable director candidates, including referral from Directors,
Shareholders, management, advisors of the Company and
external executive search firms.
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Workforce Diversity

The Group strictly adheres to fair and appropriate employment
practices and labour standards. With an anti-discriminatory
and equal-opportunity policy in place, the Group provides
job applicants and employees with equal opportunities
of employment and promotion, and prohibits all forms of
discrimination on gender, religion, race, disability or age.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a total of 229 staff
members. The gender composition of the staff members was
approximately 72.1% male staff members and 27.9% female staff
members.

Since the Company engages in the construction business, in
which case employees, workers and technicians who specialise
in engineering and construction are predominantly male, the
Board considered that gender diversity of the workforce of
the Group has been well maintained during the year ended 31
March 2023. As such, the plan for the Group in terms of gender
diversity in workforce is to maintain the balance of gender
diversity in the foreseeable future.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a number of functional committees
in compliance with the relevant Listing Rules for assisting the
Board to oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and
helping it in the execution of its responsibilities. Specific written
terms of reference of these committees clearly outline the
committees’ authority and duties, which require the committees
to report back on their decisions and recommendations to the
Board. Currently, three committees have been established,
i.e. the audit committee (the "Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”).
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 21
January 2019 with specific written terms of reference which
clearly deals with its authority and duties.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (a) maintaining
the relationship with the Company’s auditor; (b) reviewing
the Company's financial information; (c) overseeing the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems; and (d) overseeing the Company's
continuing connected transactions. The full version of the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the Stock
Exchange's website at “www.hkexnews.hk” and the Company's
website at “www.wecon.com.hk”.

The Audit Committee is made up of three INEDs including Mr.
Sze Kwok Wing Nigel (Chairman), Dr. Lau Chi Keung and Mr.
Chan Tim Yiu Raymond.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee
held five committee meetings; and had, among others,
performed the following work:

(i) held two meetings with an external auditor to discuss and
review the annual results and the annual report for the
year ended 31 March 2022 and the interim results and the
interim report for the six months ended 30 September 2022
and recommended the same to the Board for approval,

(i) held two meetings with an external independent internal
control consultant to discuss and review the Group's
risk management and internal control systems, and the
effectiveness of the Group's internal audit function;

(i) held one meeting with an external auditor to discuss the
pre-audit planning and the audit scope of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2023; and

(iv) held one meeting to discuss the re-appointment of external

auditor and made recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of external auditor and its remuneration.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on
21 January 2019 with specific written terms of reference which
clearly deals with its authority and duties.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (a)
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy;
(b) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated of directorships;
(c) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of the Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular the Chairman of the Board and the CEO;
and (d) assessing the independence of the INEDs and reviewing
the INEDs' annual confirmations on their independence and
making the disclosure of its review results in the corporate
governance report. The full version of the terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee is available on the Stock Exchange's
website at “www.hkexnews.hk” and the Company’s website at

“www.wecon.com.hk”.

The Nomination Committee is made up of three members
including Dr. Lau Chi Keung (Chairman), Mr. Sze Kwok Wing
Nigel and Mr. Tsang Ka Yip.

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting
for the year ended 31 March 2023. The duties performed by
the Nomination Committee were to review and consider the
composition and diversity of the Board, appointment and
re-appointment of the Directors, annual independence of
INEDs, assessed the INEDs' independence according to the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
review the succession planning for Directors and the existing
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee.
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Nomination criteria

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for the directorship,

the following criteria should be considered by the Nomination

Committee:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

28

the candidate’s character and integrity;

the candidate’s qualifications, including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience, and
diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy that are
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board;

for independent non-executive Directors, whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

willingness and ability of the candidate to devote adequate
time to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or
Board committee(s) of the Company; and

such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company's business and succession plan and where
applicable may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning.
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Nomination Procedures

The Company has put in place the following director nomination
procedures:

Appointment of New and Replacement Directors

(i) If the Board determines that an additional or replacement
Director is required, it will deploy multiple channels for
identifying suitable director candidates, including referral
from Directors, Shareholders, management, advisors of the
Company and external executive search firms.

(i) Upon compilation and interview of the list of potential
candidates, the Nomination Committee will shortlist
candidates for consideration by the Nomination
Committee/Board based on the selection criteria and such
other factors that it considers appropriate. The Board
has the final authority on determining suitable director
candidate for appointment.

Re-election of Directors and Nomination from Shareholders

()  Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself
for re-election, the Board shall consider and, if consider
appropriate, recommend such retiring Director to stand for
re-election at a general meeting. A circular containing the
requisite information on such retiring Director will be sent
to Shareholders prior to a general meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

(i)  Any Shareholder who wishes to nominate a person to stand
for election as a Director at a general meeting must lodge
with the company secretary of the Company within the
lodgement period specified in the relevant shareholder
circular (a) a written nomination of the candidate, (b) written
confirmation from such nominated candidate of his/her
willingness to stand for election, and (c) biographical details
of such nominated candidate as required under the Listing
Rules. Particulars of the candidate so proposed will be sent
to all Shareholders for information by a supplementary
circular.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
on 21 January 2019 with specific written terms of reference
which clearly deals with its authority and duties.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (a)
making recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors, the senior management of
the Group and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policy; (b) determining,
making recommendations to the Board, considering and
approving the remuneration package of individual executive
Directors and senior management and the compensation
arrangements relating to loss or termination of office or
appointment; (c) reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate
goals and objectives; and (d) reviewing and/or approving
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

The full version of the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the Stock Exchange's website at “www.
hkexnews.hk” and the Company’s website at “www.wecon.com.
hk”. The Remuneration Committee ensures that none of the
Directors or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own

remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of three members
including Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond (Chairman), Mr. Sze Kwok
Wing Nigel and Mr. Tsang Ka Yip, a majority which comprises
INEDs and is chaired by an INED.
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The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting
for the year ended 31 March 2023. The duties performed
by the Remuneration Committee were to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and member of the senior
management, as well as the remuneration of the INEDs
and such that no individual Director would decide his own
remuneration level.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration in the Group and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Remuneration Policy of Directors

Quality and committed staff are valuable assets contributing
to the Group's success. To ensure the ability to attract and
retain talents, the Group's remuneration policy of Directors
is built upon the principles of providing equitable and
market-competitive remuneration package that support the
performance culture and enable the achievement of strategic
business goals. The Group’s remuneration policy of Directors
is, therefore, aiming at providing competitive but not excessive
remuneration package to the Directors.

The Directors’ remuneration comprises fixed salary or service
fee and variable components (such as bonus and share options),
which is benchmarked against companies of comparable
business or scale with reference to a mix of factors such as the
prevailing market condition, the Company’s performance and
the qualifications, skills, experience and educational background
of the Directors.

The Directors’ remuneration is reviewed annually and are
subject to Shareholders’ approval.
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Senior management’s remuneration

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
paid to the members of the senior management by band during
the year ended 31 March 2023 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

=R EEE 85

RIBECEEET AT ANESXEE 151K
REZ2023F3ANBIUEEFEE N FaH
EREKERBEZ DNFMOT ¢

Number of person(s)

FriMsaE 8 T) AB
Nil to 1,000,000 Z%1,000,000 3
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001% 1,500,000 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the remuneration paid or
payable to the external auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young,
in respect of the audit and non-audit services were as follows:

18 M % B B 5 B

REE2023F3A31HIEFE - BT M IE
FET RIS E SR ER T AR RINDIZEEN &
XEEHEM BT EHMNT -

Remuneration

Services rendered paid/payable
2R MR 21/ H
HK$'000
FTHET
Audit services B R

— Annual audit —FEER 1,070

Non-audit services FEF T ARTS
— Review of interim results —EHPHEE 200
— Others —HA 10
1,280
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has on 21 January 2019 adopted a divided policy

(the “Dividend Policy”), and the summary of which is set out

below:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia:i—

.
=

the general financial condition of the Group;

T

capital and debt level of the Group;
future cash requirements and availability for business

—
O
RS

operations, business strategies and future development
needs;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

(e) the general market conditions; and

(f) any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act (as
revised) of the Cayman Islands and the Articles. Any final
dividends declared by the Company must be approved
by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders at an
annual general meeting and must not exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. The Board may from time to
time pay to the Shareholders such interim and/or special
dividends, in cash or in kind, as it considers to be justified
by the profits of the Group.

The Board endeavours to strike a balance between the
Shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management
with a sustainable Dividend Policy. The Board will review
the Dividend Policy from time to time and may exercise at
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements affairs of the Group.

The statement of the auditor, Ernst & Young, about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 146 to 154 of
this annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to any events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the Board by ensuring the
Board policy and procedures are followed. The company
secretary is also responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters.

Mr. Tang Siu Fung Calvin (“Mr. Tang"”) has been appointed
as the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) on 11 April 2021. Mr. Tang meets the qualification
requirements for company secretary under Rule 3.28 of the
Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March 2023, Mr. Tang
confirmed that he complied with training requirements under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by undertaking not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. Mr. Tang is a partner
of Hexacubic Consulting Limited, which provides corporate
governance consulting services to the Company. Although Mr.
Tang is not an employee of the Company, he reports to the
Chairman and advices the Board on governance matters. The
Company has assigned Ms. Lee Ching Ha, financial controller of
the Group, as its primary corporate contact person whom Mr.
Tang can contact.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

M

@

General Meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a good
opportunity for communication between the Shareholders
and the Board. An annual general meeting of the Company
shall be held in each year and at such time and place to be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than
an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting (the "EGM").

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
is scheduled to be held on Friday, 18 August 2023 (the
“2023 AGM"). A circular and a notice of the 2023 AGM
containing, among other matters, further information and
notice relating to the 2023 AGM will be despatched to the
Shareholders in accordance with the Articles, the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

The way in which Shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit to call an EGM. Any one or more
Shareholders holding on the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the voting rights at
general meeting on a one vote per Share basis in the share
capital of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company,
to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one
(21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself/herself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a
Director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by
a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his/her intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his/her willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office
provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven
(7) days and that (if the notices are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Any Shareholder(s) who wish to raise his/her/their enquiries
concerning the Company to the Board may deliver his/
her/their written enquiry(ies) to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at 18/F., Tung Hip
Commercial Building, 244 — 252 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong for the attention of the Chairman of the Board
and the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the enquiries,
the Company would reply as soon as possible.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy

with the objective of ensuring timely, transparent and accurate

communications between the Shareholders and the Company.

The Company has established several ways to communicate

with the Shareholders as follows:

Shareholders’ Meetings

The annual general meetings and other general meetings
of the Company are the primary communication forum
between the Company and the Shareholders. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings
physically or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
such meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend.

Notices of the general meetings, related circulars and
forms of proxy are provided within a prescribed time prior
to the general meetings on Stock Exchange’s website (www.
hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website (www.wecon.com.
hk) and by post to the Shareholders.

The Directors, in particular, the chairman of the Board
committees or their delegates, appropriate senior
executives and external auditor will attend the general
meetings to answer the Shareholders’ questions.

The chairman of the general meetings will propose to vote
the resolutions (except resolutions which relate purely to
procedural or administrative matters) by poll in accordance
with the Articles. Scrutineer will be appointed for the vote-
taking at the general meetings and the voting results will
be published on the Stock Exchange’s website (www.
hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website (www.wecon.com.
hk) subsequent to the close of the general meetings.
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Corporate Communications

The Company will send (by post or by electronic means as
permitted by the Articles or the Listing Rules) corporate
communications of the Company, which include annual
reports, interim reports, notices of shareholders’ meeting,
listing documents, circulars, and proxy forms, to the
Shareholders.

Shareholders are encouraged to provide their up-to-date
contact details to the Hong Kong branch share registrar
of the Company in order to facilitate timely and effective
communications.

Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong branch
share registrar of the Company, serves the Shareholders in
respect of share registration, dividend payment and related
matters.

Company’s Website

38

The Company's website (www.wecon.com.hk) provides the
Shareholders with corporate information on the Group. It
also provides information on corporate governance of the
Group and the compositions and functions of the Board
and the committees of the Board.

In addition to the “Investor Relations” section in which
corporate communications of the Company are posted as
soon as practicable following their release on the Stock
Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk), press releases
and newsletters issued by the Company from time to time
are also available on the Company’s website to facilitate
communication between the Company, Shareholders and
investment community.

Information on the Company’s website is updated on a
regular basis.

WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022/2023

DEEH

AR B BE Z AR BT AR BRI
AMET T ARBRBEERNRAZ AT
B BRER - PHRE  BRAE
BE S LW BRHERAKRZRER
1% o

BRREAARRBBRNDBPELIE
RSB EFS - WEEERERE
AR ©

ARFMEBRDBFERA B ERE
S BRARATBRIREBRH B
BBIEN RIAMFEZ R -

ENNSTE D

RN B 8L (www.wecon.com.hk) [a) J&
RIBEAKERNQRER - TMEHEH
AEBEREERURESSNESRTEZE
SRR FIE LRI EF ©

BRAS A BB A )AL B HE A B A AT A
uh (www.hkexnews.hk) 2 R 12 FE U &
ATERTEHERN ARG/ LHIRE
EFBERIRWBIN - RNAB TR
B R KB IR Al R AN A RIA L JEHR - DA
REART - REBKE RN BB

HNAR BRI B RS S E REH -



Communication with the Company

Shareholders may raise questions, request for publicly available
information and provide comments and suggestions to the
Directors and management of the Company. Such questions,
requests, comments and suggestions can be addressed to the
Company by post to 18/F., Tung Hip Commercial Building, 244-
252 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, or by the following

means:

Telephone number: (852) 2529 8308
Fax number: (852) 2861 0683
Email address: irwecon@wecon.com.hk

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.

The Company highly values the view and comment by the
Shareholders’ and relevant stakeholders to the Company
and would invite the Shareholders’ and relevant stakeholders
to communicate with the Company by employing the
abovementioned means. In view of the above shareholders’
communication means and measures adopted by the Company,
the Board is of the view that the shareholders’ communication
policy implemented during the year ended 31 March 2023 was
sufficient and effective.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 24 June 2022, the Board announced its proposal to amend

the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company

in order to bring the Memorandum and Articles of Association

of the Company in line with the latest legal and regulatory

requirements, including the amendments made to Appendix
3 to the Listing Rules which took effect on 1 January 2022. At
the 2022 AGM, a special resolution was passed to adopt the

amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of

the Company, which are summarised below:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

40

to specify that the Company shall hold an annual general
meeting within six months after the end of the Company’s
financial year;

to provide that all Shareholders shall have the right to (i)
speak at a general meeting of the Company; and (ii) vote
at a general meeting of the Company, except where a
Shareholder is required, by the Listing Rules, or the rules,
codes or regulations of any competent regulatory authority,
to abstain from voting to approve the matter under
consideration;

to provide that in addition to the right to convene an EGM
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding not
less than one tenth (1/10th) of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings,
such Shareholder(s) shall also have the right to add
resolutions to the meeting agenda of a general meeting;
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(iv) to provide that the branch register of Shareholders in Hong
Kong may be closed on terms equivalent to section 632
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws in
Hong Kong); and

(v) to make other necessary amendments for updating the
Articles and better aligning with the wording in the
applicable laws of Cayman Islands and the Listing Rules.

For further information in relation to the amendments to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24
June 2022 and the circular for the 2022 AGM dated 21 July
2022.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board undertakes to periodically review the internal control
and risk management systems of the Group to ensure their
effectiveness and efficiency and is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control system of the Group. The Directors
believe that an effective internal control system can avoid or
reduce the risks which can cause loss or reputational damage to
the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group engaged
an external independent internal control consultant to review
the internal control mechanisms and carry out internal audit
function. The scope of work includes identify, monitor and
manage the key risks area associated with the business activities
in relation to the operational matters/practices of the Group.
The consultant provided their findings and recommendations
for improvement and issued the internal control review report
to the Audit Committee for their review and consideration.
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The Audit Committee conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and reviewed the internal control review
report and considered that the risk management and internal
control system of the Group are effective and adequate.
The review on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group would be conducted by
the Audit Committee on an annual basis. The Group currently
does not have an internal audit function. As mentioned above,
the internal audit function is performed by an external service
provider.

With respect to internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of insider information, the Group has a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or insider
information as set out in the human resources management
policy and handbook (the “Employee Management
Handbook").

The Company had previously arranged a training session on the
topic of recent amendments on (i) corporate governance code
and (ii) the Listing Rules in relation to share option schemes
and share award schemes, which is provided by our Hong Kong
legal adviser, to all Directors as continuing professional trainings
in order to enhance the corporate governance of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESREREEENERHFRS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip ("Mr. KY Tsang"), aged 70, was appointed
as our Director on 23 March 2018 and was redesignated as
our executive Director on 23 January 2019. Mr. KY Tsang is
the chairman and chief executive officer of our Group, and a
managing director of all our subsidiaries. He is responsible for
the overall strategic planning and business development as well
as executing the overall operation of our Group.

Mr. KY Tsang has over 44 years of experience in civil
engineering, building and construction industry. Prior to
founding our Group, Mr. KY Tsang worked as a project manager
in various construction contractors in Hong Kong, where he
commenced his career in the engineering and construction
industry. From July 1974 to August 1978, Mr. KY Tsang worked
in Wong & Ouyang & Associates Architects and Engineers Hong
Kong in contract section and was mainly responsible for contract
administration, preparation of tender specification and tender
documents. From August 1978 to October 1979, Mr. KY Tsang
worked in T.K. Shen Construction Co. as a project manager and
was mainly responsible for project supervision and liaising with
clients. From October 1979 to February 1982, Mr. KY Tsang
worked in Leon Eng. & Const. Co. Ltd. as a project manager;
and was subsequently promoted to executive director and was
mainly responsible for project supervision. Mr. KY Tsang worked
in Hing Lee Construction Co., Ltd as contract manager from
March 1982 to February 1984 and was mainly responsible for
contract administration, project management, site personnel
management, preparation of building estimates and all works in
connection with tender documents.
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Mr. KY Tsang obtained Certificate of Land Surveying and
Higher Certificate of Building Technology from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic in July 1973 and November 1975 respectively. Mr.
KY Tsang also obtained an Industrial Management Diploma
from Institution of Industrial Managers in August 1983. In
March 2017, Mr. KY Tsang also received a Master’'s Degree
for Engineering Management from University of Technology,
Sydney. Since October 2017, Mr. KY Tsang has been admitted
as fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Construction Manager. Mr.
KY Tsang is one of the controlling shareholders, and the father
of Mr. Philip Tsang and Mr. Jerry Tsang.

Mr. KY Tsang was as a member of the Registered Contractors'’
Disciplinary Board Panel by the Housing, Planning and Lands
Bureau from 1999 to 2005. From 2007 to 2009, Mr. KY Tsang
had also been appointed as the Vice Chairman of Building
Committee of The Hong Kong Construction Association. From
2008 to 2009, Mr. KY Tsang served as the President of Rotary
Club of Hong Kong Northwest. In 2013 to 2015, Mr. KY Tsang
assumed the office of a Board Director of Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals. Since April 2017, Mr. KY Tsang was admitted
as Council Member of Hong Kong Construction Association.
Since April 2017, Mr. KY Tsang has become the Vice Chairman
of the Small & Medium Enterprise Committee of Hong Kong
Construction Association. Mr. KY Tsang is appointed as a
member of the Appeal Tribunal Panel by Planning and Lands
Branch of the Development Bureau for a period of three years
from December 2021 to November 2024. Since November 2016,
Mr. KY Tsang held the post of an independent manager of the
Incorporated Management Committee by TWGHs Tsui Tsin
Tong School.
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Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip (“Mr. Philip Tsang”), aged 41, was
appointed as the deputy director of Wecon Limited in August
2012. He was appointed as our Director on 25 June 2018 and
was re-designated as our executive Director on 23 January
2019. He is responsible for the overall construction projects
management and daily operation of our Group.

Mr. Philip Tsang joined our Group in November 2008 as a
project coordinator of Wecon Limited before he left our Group
in May 2010. Mr. Philip Tsang has returned to our Group since
August 2012 as deputy director of Wecon Limited. Mr. Philip
Tsang studied from Santa Monica College from year of 2000 to
2002 without obtaining accredited certificates. Mr. Philip Tsang
is the son of Mr. KY Tsang and the elder brother of Mr. Jerry
Tsang.

Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry ("Mr. Jerry Tsang”), aged 36, was
appointed as our Director on 25 June 2018 and was re-
designated as executive Director on 23 January 2019. He is
responsible for the overall administrative, information system,
financial and human resources planning of our Group.

Mr. Jerry Tsang joined our Group in March 2010 as an
investment executive of Wecon Limited. Mr. Jerry Tsang
obtained the Diploma of Commerce from Melbourne Institute
of Business and Technology in March 2008 and received a
degree of Bachelor of Arts (Business Enterprise) from University
of Birmingham in September 2013. Mr. Jerry Tsang is the son of
Mr. KY Tsang and the younger brother of Mr. Philip Tsang.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lau Chi Keung (“Dr. Lau"), aged 68, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21 January 2019. He
is primarily responsible for providing independent advice to
our Board. He is currently a director of Fong On Construction
Limited, Fong On Geotechnics Limited, Po Shing Construction
Limited, James Lau & Associates Limited and the executive
director and chief executive officer of Ri Ying Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Shing Chi Holdings Limited), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1741) since February 2018.

Dr. Lau has over 44 years of experience in engineering. Dr.
Lau worked as a graduate engineer in Ho Chung, Wallace
Evans & Company Limited in August 1978 with his last position
held as an engineer in 1984. He was then employed by WS
Atkins (Services) Limited as a group engineer with his last
position held as a senior group engineer and head of the soil-
structure interaction group from May 1988 to August 1994. Dr.
Lau worked as an adjunct professor at The City University of
Hong Kong from June 2006 to June 2012 and The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University from April 2002 to March 2005. He has
re-joined The Hong Kong Polytechnic University as an adjunct
professor from March 2016 to February 2025. In recognition
of his valuable experience and knowledge in the civil and
environmental engineering industry, Dr. Lau is invited to be an
adjunct professor in the Department of Civil and Environmental,
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology from
April 2020 to March 2026.
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Dr. Lau was admitted to memberships of the following
institutions and bodies:

Name of institution Membership grade
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BB LTERABIA THE R ERHKE

Month and year of approval
of membership grade

MBS 2885 SERBNMREORA G
The Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators Fellow May 2018

BAAMEREE AERER 201845

The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators Member January 2005

FrethE 2 8 200551 A

The Hong Kong University of Science Honorary Fellow

and Technology

BERBKE RERL

The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers Member/Fellow
E R g8 /BRg8
The Institution of Structural Engineers Member
EEIIZAEE g8

The Institution of Civil Engineers Member
TATIZMES &8

November 2002

2002411 R

August 1983/June 1999
1983581, 199946 A
November 1982
1982411 H

December 1982
19824124

Dr. Lau has been a registered professional engineer (civil,
structural, and geotechnical) of Hong Kong Engineers
Registration Board since October 1997. He has also been a
registered structural engineer, an authorised person (list of
engineers), a registered geotechnical engineer and a registered
inspector under the Buildings Ordinance since August 1997,
April 1998, May 2005 and November 2012, respectively. Dr. Lau
has also been a first class registered structural engineer of the
National Administration Board of Architectural Registration of
the PRC since June 2000. Dr. Lau has also been an arbitrator
and mediator of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
an accredited general mediator of Hong Kong Mediation
Accreditation Association Limited and appointed as an
accredited adjudicator of Hong Kong International Arbitration
Centre since April 2005, July 2017 and 2015, respectively.

In July 1978, Dr. Lau received the Bachelor of Science (Civil &
Structural Engineering) from University College Cardiff (currently
known as Cardiff University). In December 1985 and May 1989,
Dr. Lau further obtained a Master’'s Degree and a Doctorate
Degree in soil mechanics at the University of Cambridge.
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Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond (“Mr. Chan”), aged 64, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on
21 January 2019. He is primarily responsible for providing
independent advice to our Board.

As a practicing solicitor, Mr. Chan has over 37 years of
experience in the legal profession. Mr. Chan was awarded the
Bachelor of Laws from University of Birmingham in July 1982
and passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination organised by The
Law Society of England and Wales in November 1983. Mr. Chan
then joined Johnson Stokes & Master (currently known as Mayer
Brown) as a trainee solicitor and was subsequently promoted
as an assistant solicitor and a partner before he left the firm
in 1995. In 1996, Mr. Chan formed the practice Raymond T.Y.
Chan, Victoria Chan & Co. and has been a partner since then.

Mr. Chan was admitted as a solicitor of Hong Kong in 1985 and
admitted as a solicitor of England and Wales and a barrister
and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Australia Capital Territory
in April 1989 and August 1990, respectively. In August 1990, he
was also admitted as an advocate and solicitor of Singapore.
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Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel (“Mr. Sze"), aged 66, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 21 January 2019.
He is primarily responsible for providing independent advice to
our Board. He is currently a director of J&J Investments Limited
and an independent non-executive director of Pacific Textiles
Holdings Limited, which is a company listed in Hong Kong (Stock
Code: 1382) since January 2007.

Mr. Sze has over 42 years of experience in business and
administrative management. Mr. Sze worked as an internal
auditor in Ford Motor Company from 1980 to 1982. From 1982
to 1985, he worked as an assistant finance manager in National
Mutual. He then joined CITIBANK N.A. as a group financial
controller (private banking, Asia Pacific) from 1986 to 1989
and was subsequently promoted as business head marketing
(island central zone — Hong Kong) before he left CITIBANK N.A.
in 1993. From 1993 to 1995, he worked as a head of private
banking (Hong Kong booking centre) at American Express
Bank. He then joined Morgan Stanley Asia Ltd as an executive
director (private client sales department — Hong Kong & Taiwan)
from 1995 to 2001. From 2001 to 2007, he worked as a chief
executive officer (global wealth management, private banking,
Asia Pacific) at Barclays Bank Plc. From 2007 to 2009, he re-
joined CITIBANK N.A. as an investment and product head
(global wealth management, Asia Pacific). He then jointed EFG
International Group as a deputy chief executive officer (EFG
Bank, Asia Pacific) in 2009 and was subsequently promoted as
a chief executive officer (EFG Asset Management, Asia Pacific)
before he left the group in 2013. From 2014 to 2015, he joined
Julius Baer as a managing director and country head (China and
Hong Kong).

Mr. Sze has been admitted as a fellow of CPA Australia since
January 2007 and was licensed as a responsible officer for
conducting type 9 regulated activities by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong since September 2017.

In May 1980, Mr. Sze received the Bachelor of Business Studies
from Swinburne University (formerly known as Swinburne
College of Technology), Australia. In August 2007, he obtained
a Master's Degree in Business from University of Newcastle,
Australia.
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Save as disclosed above, each of our Directors had not held
any directorship in the last three years in any public company
the securities of which is listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas.

Save as disclosed above, each of our Directors confirms
with respect to him that: (a) he did not hold other positions
in our Company or other members of our Group as at the
reporting date; (b) he did not have any relationship with any
other directors, senior management, substantial shareholder
or controlling shareholder of our Company as at the reporting
date; (c) he does not have any interests in our Shares within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, save as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Report of the Directors — Disclosure of
Interests” in this annual report; (d) he does not have any interest
in any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with us, which is discloseable under the Listing
Rules; and (e) to the best of the knowledge, information and
belief of our Directors having made all reasonable enquiries,
there was no additional information relating to our Directors or
senior management that is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and no other matter with
respect to their appointments that needs to be brought to the
attention of our Shareholders as at the 31 March 2023.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Wing Lun Allan (“Mr. Wu"), aged 45, is the senior
project manager of Wecon Limited and a member of the senior
management of our Group. He joined our Group in November
2007 and is mainly responsible for the management and
administration of different projects in our Group.

Mr. Wu has over 22 years of experience in civil engineering,
building and construction industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Wu mainly worked as structural engineer and project
manager in various structural consulting firms and construction
contractors in Hong Kong, where he commenced his career
in the engineering and construction industry. From 2000 to
2001, Mr. Wu worked in Shun Shing Construction Co. Ltd. as
an assistant site engineer. From 2001 to 2004, Mr. Wu worked
in Canwest Consultants (International) Ltd. as an engineer; and
from 2004 to 2007, Mr. Wu worked in Realfit Engineering Ltd.
as an assistant project manager and was mainly responsible for
assisting the project manager in monitoring project operations,
planning and site coordinating work.

Mr. Wu obtained a Bachelor of Engineering from McMaster
University Canada in November 2000 and a Certificate of
Engineering Graduate Training Scheme from Vocational
Training Council of Hong Kong in January 2003. Mr. Wu has also
obtained a Master's Degree in Civil Infrastructure Engineering
and Management from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in November 2004. In November 2014, Mr.
Wu was admitted as the Authorised Signatory by the Register
of General Building Contractors in Buildings Department. In
September 2015, Mr. Wu was admitted as a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Mr. Wu has also
obtained a Certificate of Building Environmental Assessment
Method Professional (New Buildings) from Hong Kong Green
Building Council in May 2017.
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Mr. Ho Chi Ming, Wilson (“Mr. Ho"), aged 61, is the general
manager (projects) of Wecon Limited and a member of the
senior management of our Group. He joined our Group in
March 2017 and is mainly responsible for management and
administration of different projects in our Group.

Mr. Ho has over 38 years of experience in buildings and
construction industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ho mainly
worked as project manager in various construction companies
in Hong Kong, where he started his career in the construction
industry. From 1984 to 1987, Mr. Ho worked in Yeu Shing
Construction Co., Ltd. as a site agent. From 1987 to 1994, Mr.
Ho worked in Yau Lee Construction Co., Ltd as a site agent/
senior quantity surveyor. From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Ho worked
in Hoi Sing Construction Co., Ltd as senior project manager.
From 1996 to 1997, Mr. Ho worked in Wan Chung Construction
Co., Ltd as a senior project manager. From 1997 to 2000, Mr.
Ho worked in Dynasty Building Ltd. as a manager. From 2000
to 2002, Mr. Ho worked in Gammon Skanska Ltd. as a site
agent and from 2002 to February 2017, Mr. Ho worked in Able
Engineering Co., Ltd as a project manager.

In September 2005, Mr. Ho obtained a Bachelor Degree of
Applied Science in Construction Management and Economics
from Curtin University of Technology.

In August 2005, Mr. Ho was also admitted as a member of
The Chartered Institute of Building. Mr. Ho was admitted as
Chartered Construction Manager by The Chartered Institute of
Building in September 2014.

Mr. Choi Ying Tung (“Mr. Choi"), aged 48, is the safety and
environmental manager of Wecon Limited and a member of
the senior management of our Group. He joined our Group
in August 2007 and is mainly responsible for safety and
environmental management of our Group.
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Mr. Choi has over 25 years of experience in civil engineering,
buildings and construction industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Choi mainly worked as safety officer in various construction
companies in Hong Kong, where he started his career in the
construction industry. From 1997 to 1999, Mr. Choi worked in
Far East Consulting Engineers Ltd. as an assistant engineer.
From 1999 to 2001, Mr. Choi worked in Chevalier (Construction)
Company Ltd as a technical assistant. From 2001 to 2004, Mr.
Choi worked in Hip Hing Construction Co., Ltd as a safety
officer; and from November 2004 to August 2007, Mr. Choi
worked in Union Glory E&M Engineering Ltd. as a project
engineer and safety officer.

Mr. Choi obtained certificate in Hong Kong Advanced Level
Examination in 1995 and a Higher Diploma in Building
Services Engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 1997. In November 2001, Mr. Choi obtained Post-
experience Certificate in Industrial Safety from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Choi also obtained a Certificate
for the completion of the training in Location of Underground
Electricity Cables from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
July 2004. In February 2005, Mr. Choi completed Safety Auditor
Training Schemes provided by The Hong Kong Productivity
Council and James Safety Consultant Limited. In 2008, Mr.
Choi obtained a Bachelor Degree in Engineering Mechanics,
Materials and Design from the Hong Kong Open University. In
August 2012, Mr. Choi obtained the Professional Certificate in
Environmental Management for Construction (Environmental
officer) from Vocational Training Council.

In March 2011, Mr. Choi was admitted as Registered Electrical
Worker (permitted work: BO and HO categories) by Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department. Mr. Choi was admitted as
Registered Safety Officer and Registered Safety Auditor by the
Labour Department in August 2002. In August 2012 and January
2009 respectively, Mr. Choi was awarded the Professional
Certificate in Environmental Management of Construction
(Environmental Officer) by the Vocational Training Council.
Mr. Choi was awarded a certificate of Building Environmental
Assessment Method Professional (New Buildings) since
November 2017 by The Hong Kong Green Building Council.
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Ms. Hui Pik Yuet (“Ms. Hui"), aged 50, is the head of human
resources and administration of Wecon Limited and a member
of the senior management of our Group. She joined our Group
in January 2015 and is mainly responsible for administrative and
human resources matters of our Group.

Ms. Hui has over 25 years of experience in business
administration, human resources and company secretarial
matters. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Hui mainly worked as
human resources officer and manager in various companies
in Hong Kong, where she started her career in the human
resources and administration industry. From 1998 to 1999, Ms.
Hui worked in Pruton Prudential Hotel as personnel and training
assistant. From 1999 to 2002, Ms. Hui worked in China Harbour
Engineering Company (Group) Limited as a human resources
officer. From 2002 to 2003, Ms. Hui worked in WorldCard (Hong
Kong) Limited as administration and marketing executive; from
2003 to 2005, Ms. Hui worked in Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
as a human resources officer; and from June 2005 to April
2008, Ms. Hui worked in China Resources Insurance Consultants
Limited as human resources and administration manager;
from April 2008 to December 2014, Ms. Hui was subsequently
transferred to China Resources Investment Enterprise Ltd. as
human resources and administration manager and was then
worked to the personnel and administration department in CRE
Properties (Hong Kong) Ltd. and China Resources Insurance
Consultants Limited as human resources and administration
manager and was mainly responsible for human resources and
administrative matter.

Ms. Hui obtained a Bachelor Degree in Bachelor of Arts from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1997. Ms.
Hui also obtained a Diploma in Management Studies from
Lingnan University/The Hong Kong Management Association in
September 2001.
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Ms. Lee Ching Ha (“"Ms. Lee”), aged 34, is the financial
controller of Wecon Limited and a member of the senior
management of our Company. She joined our Group in April
2021 as financial controller and is primarily responsible for
financial management and compliance assurance of our Group.

Ms. Lee has over 12 years' accounting, auditing and financing
experience and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since October 2013. Ms. Lee
obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting
and Finance degree from the University of Hong Kong in
November 2010. Prior to joining the Group, she had worked in
an international accounting firm and was the head of finance
department in a company providing building construction and
civil engineering services in Hong Kong.

Save as disclosed above, each member of the senior
management of our Group had not held any directorship in
the last three years in other public companies, the securities
of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHE

The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is a long established main contractor in Hong Kong
principally engaged in the provision of (i) building construction
services and (i) RMAA works services in Hong Kong. Details of
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant
to Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) including the description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group is set out in the section
of “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 4 to 16 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of Directors’ report. Moreover, the details
of the financial risk management of the Group are disclosed in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the
Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 155 to 157 of this
annual report.

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK1.2 cents per
Share (2022: HK1.2 cents per Share), which amounts to a total
of HK$9.6 million (2022: HK$9.6 million) in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2023, to Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members at the close of business on Friday,
25 August 2023. The proposed final dividend is subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the 2023 AGM scheduled to be
held on Friday, 18 August 2023.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 74.1%
(2022: approximately 83.0%) of the total revenue of the
Group and the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 31.0% (2022: approximately 30.0%) of the total

revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group's five largest
subcontractors in aggregate accounted for approximately
24.0% (2022: approximately 23.9%) of the total subcontracting
cost of the Group and the largest subcontractor of the Group
accounted for approximately 6.0% (2022: approximately 7.6%) of
the total subcontracting cost.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group's five largest
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 70.1% (2022:
approximately 57.2%) of the total purchases of construction
materials of the Group and the largest supplier of the Group
accounted for approximately 31.6% (2022: approximately 17.2%)
of the total purchases of construction materials.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company's issued Shares) has any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers or subcontractors.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS, SUBCONTRACTORS
AND EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group maintains active relationship with our customers
to explore potential business opportunities and is highly
committed to delivering quality services to our customers on
time.

Subcontractors and Suppliers

The Group maintains a list of approved subcontractors (based
on their previous experience, skills, present work load, price
quotations and historical work quality) and suppliers (based on
their prices, quality, past performance and capacity).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERSE

Employees

The Group recognised employees as valuable assets of the
Group. The Group intends to provide competitive remuneration,
attractive welfare benefits and continuous professional training
to attract and retain appropriate and suitable personnel to serve
the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there was no material
dispute or disagreement between the Group and its customers,
subcontractors, suppliers and employees.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 244
of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risks of non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations. During the year ended 31
March 2023 and up to the date of this annual report, the Group
in all material aspects has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group and there was no material breach or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

Charitable contributions made by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2023 amounted to approximately HK$134,000
(2022: approximately HK$109,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2023 AGM of the Company is scheduled to be held on
Friday, 18 August 2023. A notice convening the 2023 AGM will
be issued and despatched to the Shareholders according to the
applicable law, the Articles and the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the identity of the Shareholders who will be entitled
to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM, the Register of Members
of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 15 August 2023
to Friday, 18 August 2023, both dates inclusive, the period
during which no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM, all completed
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at its
office at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 14
August 2023.

Subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the 2023 AGM, to
ascertain the Shareholders’ entitlement to receiving the final
dividend, the Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, 24 August 2023 to Friday, 25 August
2023, the period during which no transfer of Shares will be
effected. Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
2023 AGM approving the payment of the final dividend, the final
dividend is expected to be paid on Monday, 4 September 2023.
In order to qualify for receiving the final dividend, all completed
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
the above address not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 23
August 2023.
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SHARE CAPITAL

There is no movement in the Company’s authorised share
capital and issued share capital during the year ended 31 March
2023. Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out
in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, in the opinion of the Directors, the
reserves of the Company available for distribution to
Shareholders under the Companies Act (as revised) of the
Cayman Islands amounted to approximately HK$36.9 million
(2022: approximately HK$48.1 million).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the sole
shareholder of the Company by way of written resolutions
passed on 21 January 2019. No share option has been granted,
exercised, expired, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption date and up to the date of this
annual report.

Summary of terms of the Share Option Scheme

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to the eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group or any entity which is an associate
company of the member of the Group (the “Invested
Entity”).
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(b)

()

Who may join

Our Directors shall, in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, be entitled but
shall not be bound at any time within a period of 10 years
commencing from the date of the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme to make an offer to any employee (whether
full time or part time, including our Directors (including
any non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Director)), any of our subsidiaries (within the meaning of
Companies Ordinance) or any Invested Entity (an “eligible
employee”).

The eligibility of any of the eligible participants to an offer
under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by our
Directors from time to time on the basis of our Directors’
opinion as to such eligible participant’s contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares

()  The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share schemes adopted by
the Group shall not exceed 10% of the share capital
of the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the Share Option Scheme or other share schemes.
No options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted
by the Group if the grant of such options will result in
the limit referred herein being exceeded.

(b)

(c)
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(ii)

(iii)

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group) to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the share capital of the Company in issue
as at the date on which dealings in the Shares first
commence on the Stock Exchange, being 80,000,000
Shares (“General Scheme Limit"). As at 1 April 2022,
31 March 2023 and the date of this annual report, the
number of options which was available to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme was 80,000,000 shares,
which represents 10% of the total number of Shares in
issue on 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and as at the date
of this annual report, respectively.

There was no service provider sublimit set under the
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March
2023.

The Company may seek approval of our Shareholders
in general meeting to refresh the General Scheme
Limit every three years in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

Subject to (e) below, the total number of Shares issued

and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the

options granted under the Share Option Scheme and

any other share option schemes of the Group (including

both exercised or outstanding options) to each eligible

participant who accepts the offer for the grant of an option

under the Share Option Scheme (a "grantee”) in any

12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share

capital of the Company for the time being.
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(€

Where any further grant of options under the Share Option
Scheme to a grantee would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
and proposed to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Group in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant representing in aggregate
over 1% of the share capital of the Company in issue,
such further grant shall be separately approved by our
Shareholders in general meeting with such grantee and his/
her close associates (or his/her associates if the participant
is a connected person) abstaining from voting.

Grant of options to core connected persons

(i) Without prejudice to (ii) below, the making of an offer
under the Share Option Scheme to any Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or any of their respective associates shall be approved
by our independent non-executive Directors (excluding
any independent non-executive Director who is the
proposed grantee of an option under the Share Option
Scheme).

(i) Without prejudice to (i) above, where any grant
of options under the Share Option Scheme to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates,
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options under the Share Option
Scheme already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the share capital of the Company in issue.

(e)
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Any further grant of options shall be approved by our
Shareholders in general meeting in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules. The proposed
grantee, his/her associates and all core connected persons
of the Company shall abstain from voting in favour at such
general meeting.

For the purpose of seeking the approval of our
Shareholders under paragraphs (c), (d) and (e) above,
the Company shall send a circular to our Shareholders
containing the information required under the Listing Rules
and where the Listing Rules shall so require, the vote at the
Shareholders’ meeting convened to obtain the requisite
approval shall be taken on a poll with those persons
required under the Listing Rules abstaining from voting.

Time of acceptance and exercise of an option

An offer under the Share Option Scheme shall remain open
for acceptance by the eligible participant concerned (and
by no other person) for a period of up to 21 days from the
date, which shall be a business day, on which the offer is
made to the eligible participant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by our Directors to the grantee
thereof, and in the absence of such determination, from
the date of acceptance of the offer of such option to the
earlier of (i) the date on which such option lapses under the
relevant provisions of the Share Option Scheme; and (i) the
date falling 10 years from the offer date of that option. The
vesting period of the option shall be determined by the
Board at its discretion, which shall not be more than the
exercise period of the option.

An offer shall have been accepted by an eligible participant
in respect of all Shares which are offered to such eligible
participant when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer duly signed by the eligible participant together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company within such time as may be specified in the offer
(which shall not be later than 21 days from the offer date).
Such remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable.
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(9

(h)

Any offer may be accepted by an eligible participant in
respect of less than the number of Shares which are offered
provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for
dealings in the Shares on Main Board or an integral multiple
thereof and such number is clearly stated in the duplicate
letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by such
eligible participant and received by the Company together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof within such time
as may be specified in the offer (which shall not be later than
21 days from the offer date). Such remittance shall in no
circumstances be refundable.

Subscription price for Shares

The subscription price in respect of any option shall, subject
to the adjustments, be at the discretion of our Directors,
provided that it shall not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a trading day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on the date on which the Share
Option Scheme is adopted, i.e. 20 January 2029.
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SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Board adopted a share award plan (the “Share Award
Plan”) on 31 July 2020 (the “Adoption Date"”). The shares to be
awarded under the Share Award Plan only involve the existing
shares in issue.

Purposes

The purposes of the Share Award Plan are:

to recognise and reward the contribution of the Eligible
Participants to the growth and development of the Group;

ii. to give incentives to the Eligible Participants in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development
of the Group; and

iii. to attract suitable personnel for further development of
the Group.

Participants of the Share Award Plan

Any employees of the Group and the invested entities who
contributes to the Group or the Invested Entities (the “Eligible
Participants”) will be entitled to participate.

Maximum Entitlement of the Eligible Participants

Under the rules constituting the Share Award Plan, the
maximum number of Shares which can be subscribed for and/or
purchased under the Share Award Plan shall not exceed 10% of
the total number of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date (i.e.,
80,000,000 Shares). The maximum number of Shares which may
be awarded to an Eligible Participant shall not in aggregate
exceed 1% of the issued Shares of the Company as at the
Adoption Date.

Vesting Period and Conditions of Share Award

The Board may from time to time, at its discretion, determine
the vesting date(s) which is within the life of the Share Award
Plan, any condition(s) or performance target(s) when granting
the share award to the Eligible Participants. The share award
may be granted to the Eligible Participants at nil consideration
or any amount which the Board thinks fit.
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Administration of the Share Award Plan

The Share Award Plan only involves existing Shares and no new
Shares shall be issued thereunder.

The Group has set up a trust (the “Share Award Plan Trust”)
for the purpose of administrating the Share Award Plan. The
Share Award Plan Trust will acquire the Shares from the Stock
Exchange, with a maximum amount of funds allocated by the
Board, and will hold such Shares until they are vested. Unless
early terminated by the Board, the Share Award Plan shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from
the Adoption Date (i.e. 31 July 2030). The trustee of the Share
Award Plan Trust holding the unvested share award shall abstain
from voting on general meetings of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company allocated
HK$1,000,000 to the Share Award Plan Trust, and approximately
HK$996,000 was utilised to purchase 5,304,000 Shares.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, additional 1,492,000
Shares, amounted to approximately HK$253,000, were
purchased.

As at 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report, 5,304,000 Shares, 6,796,000 Shares and 6,796,000
Shares were held by the trustee under the Share Award Plan,
which have not yet been granted to any Eligible Participants
and were available to be granted to Eligible Participants,
respectively. No share award has been granted, vested,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Award Plan since its
Adoption Date and up to 31 March 2023.

For further details of the Share Award Plan, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 31 July 2020.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Company and
Associated Corporation

As at 31 March 2023, interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which were required (i) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or (iii) pursuant to Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Long position in Shares of the Company

Rk E

EERBSITRABRARARAB ZEN
R

2023438318 - %%)&%Qﬂ?%‘ﬁﬂz
ABRAR A sk HAERAEE AR (E &
FRHEE MWG%#&%E%%D%MHM
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(i) REATNBROEFE

Number of Approximate

Shares held percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature (Long position) shareholding
RO EE IRAEBA

EEMRE 513,/ HE (FR) EE:ze

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (“Mr. KY Tsang”) Interest in a controlled corporation 600,000,000 75%

BRESRE((ERERE]D (Note)

EHEE R ()

Note: These Shares are held by Triple Arch Limited (“Triple Arch”). Triple Arch is 100% MisE - ZERA A Triple Arch Limited ([Triple Arch])
beneficially owned by Mr. KY Tsang and therefore, Mr. KY Tsang is deemed to 58 © Triple Archil 8 R AT 25 15 100% 2
be interested in the same number of Shares held by Triple Arch under the SFO. @ .lﬂ:@ﬁimﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁm pl| - B RE AR

AW Triple ArchFT#s G 1ERIEE IR P G o

(ii) Long position in ordinary shares of associated corporation

Name of

(i) REBELENZEERTES

Number of Approximate

shares held percentage of
in associated shareholding

corporation in associated

Name of Director associated corporation Capacity/Nature (Long position) corporation

REHBEEE 1EAEBOEE

FrisiRtr A AR

EEfR AL 2 18 gt HH (#R) B

Mr. KY Tsang Triple Arch Beneficial owner 1 100%
RESLE Triple Arch EmnfAA

68 WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022/2023



Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares in the Company other
than Directors and Chief Executives

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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BREERESTRABUIIEIERRRELD
ARG R

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares held interest in
Name Nature of interest (Long position) the Company
FERGHA AN B ERE
L3 s (H#R&) BB
Triple Arch Beneficial owner (Note 1) 600,000,000 75%
Triple Arch EmEA AT
Ms. Lai Yuk Lin, Eliza Interest of spouse (Note 2) 600,000,000 75%
("Ms. Lai")
RErEx+([RLZt]) P (8 s (P 5E2)
Notes: Bt
1. Triple Arch is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. KY Tsang and therefore, Mr. KY Tsang is 1 Triple Archfi @RE S 4E E%ﬁﬁmo%%é - LR
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by Triple Arch under the FHREEKR - SRELEWRBRTriple ArchFr#F
SFO. HHEREE KD R IEAER -
2. Ms. Lai is the spouse of Mr. KY Tsang. Therefore, Ms. Lai is deemed to be interested in 2 RUTABRELENER - At REZHFRBEK
the same number of Shares in which Mr. KY Tsang is interested for the purpose of the %l %ﬁi%}}z EARERELALBAEEZNBEREARN
SFO. B R i s
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, no person, other [ X FTIREESN - 72023F3A31H * B
than the Directors, whose interests are set out in the section LX[EZERERZES{THABRARN T &

headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the
Company and Associated Corporation” above, had registered
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO.

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The controlling shareholders, Mr. Tsang Ka Yip and Triple
Arch Limited (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”)
had entered into the deed of non-competition in favour of
“Non-competition

Undertaking”). Details of the Non-competition Undertaking are

the Company on 21 January 2019 (the

set out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders”
had confirmed the state of compliance of the Non-competition

in the Prospectus. The Controlling Shareholders

Undertaking and the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed that state of compliance of each of the Controlling
Shareholders under the Non-competition Undertaking and as far
as the independent non-executive Directors can ascertain, there
has been no breach of the Non-competition Undertaking by the
Controlling Shareholders during the year ended 31 March 2023.

EER S |- E  EEMNEEN B
BATRARRRMDSAEERO TP ELHESR
RIFES M RIEDIFEIBEATERL 2
mEORE ©

BF A BRFASE

PR AR B R E S & KTriple Arch Limited

(B[R RR ) ER2019F1 A21 BRI

AR Tﬁ%/\AZTﬁﬁiﬁﬁ(f*ﬁﬁﬁ

) PERFAGENFBEHNIERER M

T Hxﬂxﬁﬁ'ﬁagJ—ED o ERAR R E R E
%7%%&5%43&%%%%5%%%&

kk%k#? RFE A RIE N BB IE
TEEFTA %zi2023$3ﬂ INFIEEFEE

192 A BSR4 3 I R ARG o
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2023 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (Chairman and CEO)
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip
Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Lau Chi Keung
Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond
Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the annual general meeting. As such, Mr. Tsang
Ka Yip as an executive Director and Mr. Sze Kwok Ying Nigel as
an independent non-executive Director, will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
2023 AGM.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all of its INEDs to be
independent in accordance with the independence criteria as
set out under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report, none of the Directors or their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contracts
of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company or his
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted as at 31 March 2023 or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2023.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
2023 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2023 are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration of the Directors was reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and was determined according to the
qualifications, experience, skills, education background as well
as the contributions which the Director may bring to the Board,
with reference to the prevailing market remuneration level
offered by companies having similar business and size to the
Company, in order to retain and attract high-calibre executives
as the Directors. The Directors and members of the senior
management may also receive options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and the share award to be granted under
the Share Award Plan.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out in the section of “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 43 to
55 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Other than operating a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the
Group has not operated any other retirement benefit schemes
for its employees.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’'s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The total retirement benefit scheme contributions made by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$3.4 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$3.9 million).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules were entered
into by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2023.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions were entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2023 set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements. None of the related
party transactions would constitute a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Plan, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Shares during the year ended 31
March 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float of at least 25% of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto provided that to the extend permitted by the law such
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or
dishonestly which may attach to the Director.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of potential legal actions against the
Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the section headed "Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 17 to 42 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environmental policies and performance adopted by the Group
are more particularly set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 76 to 145 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no significant events occurred after 31 March
2023 and up to the date to this annual report which require
disclosure.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire at the 2023 AGM as the auditor of
the Company and a resolution for their re-appointment as the
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2023 AGM.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE HEZZESEMN

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the ZA&EBEE E£2023F3A31HIEFEREE I
year ended 31 March 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit MRERECHAEZZEGEMN -
Committee.

On behalf of the Board REESS

Wecon Holdings Limited BIZRERAT
Mr. Tsang Ka Yip FERITEARE
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer BREXE

Hong Kong, 29 June 2023 BH - 20235F6H29H
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BRI - iERELIWE

BOARD STATEMENT

The Group acknowledges the significance of sustainability for
our business operations as the world today collectively tackles
challenging issues, including but not limited to climate change,
shortage of natural resources and undermining of human rights.
We believe our commitment to sustainability can help improve
the quality of our lives, protect our ecosystem and preserve
natural resources for future generations. Simultaneously, we aim
to fulfil all expectations and demands from our stakeholders
with regards to sustainability issues.

In order for the Group to remain as the finest leader of the
industry, we have set clear short-term and long-term sustainable
development vision and goals and performed ongoing emission
reduction programs according to government requirements. We
recognise our responsibilities for evaluating and determining
the Group's Environmental Social Governance ("ESG")-related
risks as well as ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal control systems are in place, which
motivates our strong commitment to ESG issues.

We have also approved and overseen the selection and
identification of material ESG topics by the management.
The Board regularly monitors and reviews the effectiveness of
management, including reviewing the Group's ESG performance
and adjusting corresponding action plans. To highlight some
of our ESG management that are currently in place, under the
environmental aspect, we have included the energy efficiency
our company takes in and the waste we generated and our
handling methods. It also encompasses the resources we
consumed, air and carbon emissions as well as the introduction
of risks and opportunities related to climate change that might
impact on our business. Under the social aspect, we addressed
disclosures on areas including but not limited to gender,
diversity, labour relations, discrimination, health and safety,
training and development, supply chain management, product
responsibility, anti-corruption and community investment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

On the other hand, the adaptability of our business is vital
for the Group to govern itself and make effective decisions in
order to comply with the relevant laws and regulations as well
as to fulfil the expectations of the external stakeholders. We
believe that our engagement in ESG will be highly beneficial to
the strategic development on ESG and sustainability policies,
leading to bright prospects.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Wecon Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its

subsidiaries, hereinafter referred to as the “Group”, “"we” or
“us”) is delighted to publish the fifth Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) to summarise the Group's
policies, measures and performance on the key ESG issues in
accordance with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Appendix 27

of the Main Board Listing Rules.

Reporting Period

The Report illustrates the overall performance of the Group
regarding the environmental and social aspects from 1 April
2022 to 31 March 2023 (the “reporting period” or “2022/2023").

Reporting Scope and Boundary

The Report discloses related policies and initiatives for the core
and material businesses of the Company, namely provision of
(i) building construction services; and (ii) repair, maintenance,
alteration and addition ("RMAA") works services in Hong Kong.
There is no significant change in the scope and boundaries of
this Report from that of the ESG report for the year ended 31
March 2022 ("2021/2022").

The Report discloses environmental key performance indicators
("KPIs") and social KPIs of the corporate office (“office”) and
the representative projects (“project sites”). While the Report
does not cover all of the Group's operations, the Group aims
to upgrade its internal data collection procedures and gradually
expand the scope of the disclosure. The reporting scope covers
at least 90% of the Group's total revenue of 2022/2023.
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BiE - dB8RERRE

Reporting Basis and Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide (the "ESG Guide"”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules and on the basis of the four reporting principles —
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency:

e “"Materiality” Principle:
The Group determines material ESG issues by stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment.

e  "Quantitative” Principle:
Information is presented with quantitative measure,
whenever feasible, including information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions used and provision of

comparative data.

e  "Balance” Principle:
The Report identifies both achievements and challenges
faced by the Group.

e  "Consistency” Principle:
The Report uses consistent methodologies for meaningful

comparisons unless improvements in methodology are
identified.

|11

The Report has complied with all “comply or explain” provisions

and disclosures outlined in the ESG Guide.

The information contained herein is sourced from internal
documents and statistics of the Group, as well as the combined
control, management and operations information provided
by the subsidiaries in accordance with the Group's internal
management systems. A complete content index is appended
to the last section hereof for quick reference. The Report
is prepared and published in both Chinese and English at
the Stock Exchange’'s website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company's website (www.wecon.com.hk). In the event of
contradiction or inconsistency between the Chinese version and

the English version, the English version shall prevail.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Review and Approval

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the ESG Report and to the best
of their knowledge, the ESG Report has addressed all relevant
material issues and has fairly presented the ESG performance of
the Group for 2022/2023.

The Report was reviewed and approved by the Board (the
"Board"”) of Directors (the “Directors”) on 29 June 2023.

Feedback

Should you have any opinions or suggestions on the
ESG Report, please feel free to liaise with the Group at
irwecon@wecon.com.hk.

ABOUT THE GROUP

Founded in 1974, Wecon Limited (“WL"), one of the principal
operating subsidiaries of the Group, commenced business in
the building and construction industry in 1984. In response
to the business needs and future development, Wecon
Construction & Engineering Limited ("WCE"), another principal
subsidiary of the Group, was established in 1990 to undertake
the superstructure projects in the private sector.

For the past decades, the Group has involved and completed
a variety of projects in the provision of (i) building construction
services; and (ii) RMAA works services in both private and
public sectors. Our building construction services primarily
consist of building works for new buildings, including
residential, commercial and industrial buildings, while our
RMAA works services include the general upkeep, maintenance,
improvement, refurbishment, alteration and addition of existing
facilities and components of buildings and their surroundings.

The Group has established a long-term relationship with a
variety of suppliers, subcontractors, specialists and financial
institutions that we can integrate and interlink them to deliver
the best quality, timely, high technological, responsive and
valuable building and construction services to our clients.
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B +ERERERE

Awards and Recognitions

The Group's efforts have been recognised by a number of

awards during the reporting period. The details are as follows:

80

Quality Contractor of the Year 2022
Organised by Hong Kong Professional Building Inspection
Academy
= Being the Main Contractor of the Quality Building of
the Year 2022 - Silversands
-  WCE

Five Stars Residency for the Year 2022
Organised by Hong Kong Professional Building Inspection
Academy
= Being the Main Contractor of the “Five Stars Residency
for the Year 2022 - Silversand”
- WCE

Good MPF Employer 2021-2022
Organised by Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority
= e-Contribution Award
= MPF Support Award
- WL

The 239 Construction Safety Award 2022

Organised by Labour Department

= Best Safety Enhancement Program for Working at
Height
- WL

The 21¢t Hong Kong Occupational Safety & Health Award 2022
Organised by Labour Department
= Best Program for Work Safety & Health in Hot Weather
(Construction Industry)
- WL

Caring Company 2023

Organised by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

= Co-creation For Community 20 Years Of Business
Social Partnership
- WL
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ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board aims to support the Group’s commitment in fulfilling
its environmental and social duties as well as overseeing the
Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. The Board is responsible
for evaluating and determining the Group's ESG-related
risks, and ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal control systems are in place.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of the
implementation to the ESG Working Group (the "Working
Group”). The Working Group comprises senior management
and core members from different departments of the Group
and is responsible for facilitating the adoption of ESG strategies
and policies throughout the Group. The Working Group reports
to the Board on the implementation of ESG initiatives and the
corresponding performance.

The Board regularly reviews the Group's ESG performance as
well as examines and approves the Group’s annual ESG report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Ongoing engagement and open communication with key
stakeholder groups is crucial to developing a business strategy
that meets the needs and expectations of stakeholders,
enhancing the ability to identify risks as well as building strong
and collaborative relationships. Stakeholders’ opinions are
the solid foundation for the Group's sustainable development
and success as their priorities and perceptions enables us to
manage material ESG decisions and make informed decisions.
The Group communicates with its stakeholders through various
channels, shown as below.
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Stakeholder

Key Expectations

Communication Channel

& FTEHE BERE
Government and regulators e Compliance with national policies, e Regular announcements and other
BRREEHE laws and regulations public information

Shareholders and investors

BRRREEE

Suppliers/Subcontractors/
Business Partners

HEEs,2EE,EBBY

Customers

'R

BREIRBGR  EERER

e Drive local employment
HEEN A

e Pay taxes in full and on time
RIS SR TR

e Ensure production safety

BREELZE

e Returns
14

e Compliant operation
AREE

* Raise company value

’IARAEE

e Transparency in information and
effective communication

BRBRERBRUER

e Operate with integrity
HIERE
e Equal Rivalry
NS
e Performance of contracts
B4
e Mutual benefit and win-win result
BERHR
e Drive industry development

RETEER

e Health and safety

BERZE

e Performance of contracts
B4

e Operate with integrity
MIERE

* Energy saving and emission
reduction

ENAYBE IR KRB
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EPAEREMARER
Examinations and inspections

EE kR

General Meetings

N

Annual reports, interim reports, ESG
reports, announcements and other
public information

Fi - PHmE  RR -LEkER
wE - AEREMARER

Email, telephone communication

B - BiEEm

Company website

NGIF SRR

Review and appraisal meetings
HH R EEE

Business communications
EBERE

Participate in industry forums
2T RIE

EQF N

Customer service center and hotlines
BRIRB L MR

Customer communication meetings
BRBREE

Reporting

RE

Investigations and inspections

HE w5
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Stakeholder Key Expectations Communication Channel
BFhE TEHE BBERE
Community or ® |mprove community environment ® Participation in community programmes
Non-governmental WEMRIRE SETEETE
Organisations (NGOs) * Participation in charity e Donations
HERF BT LHEEED 8%
e Transparent information e ESG reports
BrBERE RS g RkERMmE
Media e Transparency and accuracy in * Enquiry mailbox
15Hee information EHEE
BRBERE RN
Employees e Occupational Health e Employee communication meetings
B8 BEREE EEBBEE
e Remunerations and benefits e House journal and intranet
B E Rl MR B 7 N A B A
e Career development * Employee mailbox
B EEERE
* Humanity cares e Training and workshop
AXFEIE BRI R TR

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group identifies issues for disclosure in the Report through
internal and external materiality assessment. By considering the
dependence and influence on the Group of the stakeholders
and the resources available for the Group, the management
has identified key stakeholders and invited them as participants
of our survey regarding materiality of ESG related issues.
They have expressed their opinions and recommendations on
the sustainability issues related to the Group's operation by
participating in our survey.

e Employee activity
BEED
e Surveys

HE

EEMFIME

AEBFE BRI EZ AR AR
TORERE - REERNEUAKENG
BREEARREEAENERR BB
EFFITERHNELBFLLERMBRR
B HekEANEREERMENHESHA
L RECDEBLERMNAL - HAKE
LENHANBEERFZBERERLLEL
e
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The stakeholder-driven materiality results of the materiality
assessment in 2023 provided us with a recalibrated set of
12 material topics, which were identified from a list of 22
potentially relevant topics. The Group has compiled the
materiality matrix as shown below. The issues that fall within
the top right-hand quadrant have relatively higher significance
to both stakeholders and the Group's businesses. Based on the
materiality assessment results, we believe the most pertinent
sustainability issues include the following:

Occupational Confidentiality
Health and Safety and Data Privacy
BEERELRZE RE N BIBLE

Protecting

Employment
Practices

(RS DEEERARE

(BT RS&RHIST)

Customers' and Diversity

Users' Health and Equal Environmental

and Safety Opportunity
XEFPRAFPREEEZR Zalt kR FEHkE T
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Anti-Corruption

Corporate Human Rights
Governance and (Child and
Compliance Forced Labour)

R2023FBEZMFET A ERTE
MERMHER BB MRE22EEEREE
RS R AP BRI — RPN E BN 1208
EETE - ARERAUE2MEE(WTA
R ALTARERAERNERAEE
EBRMEEHEREENEE - RIEE2
AHEER - BMIRRZBEN A RHEERS
BEREATEEA :

Product and
Service Quality

RES Management

Em M RGmEEE

Customer Safety,

Engagement
and Satisfaction
BRZE

IN el

Site Employee
Training and
Development

REEIINER

Impact
WIRIRTE




The Group will continue to improve its reporting process when
there are relevant updates on methodologies of processing
data and disclosures in future.
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Materiality Matrix
EEMEME

B  HEREREE

EARREIREIE BT ABEEER - K
glﬂﬂ‘#:rnf &f/ﬁ\:#& = //MTi °

-

FRENS

14

Impact on the Stakeholders
uiu

Occupational Health and Safety e
RERERZES

Employment Practices @
EIEED

Em |oyee Training and Development m
EE IR EE

Diversity and Equal Opportunity @
ESMIA S

Protecting Human Rights @
(Child and Forced Labour)
REEARE(ETR5&H%T)

Corporate Governance @
and Compllance

J/J:\% B0 &A%ﬁ

Anti-Corruption @
k&S

Confidentiality and Data Privacy

R R BEAE )

Impact on the Group

HAEENE

Product and Service Quality Management

EmkRBAEEE

Customer Safety, Engagement and Satisfaction
BPZR  2EKREE

Customers’ and Users' Health and Safety
BREMAPREREZR

Supplier and Subcontractor Engagement

HER RS BRNSHE

Supplier and Subcontractor’s Environmental and
Social Responsibility

Tﬁﬁ&%@ﬁm%%&ﬁgﬁﬁ
Transparent and Fair Procurement Practices
B RATERIBIES

Air and Noise Emissions Control

RER KRB B E

Resource Management (Energy, Water and Waste)

ERER(BER - KREED)

BIZRBRAF

® 96 86 o

Project Management/E-Commerce Operations
and Material Usage

HEEE 8 %ﬁ%%%&ﬂﬂ@ﬁ

Site Environmental Impact
THRETE

Green Office
BEWNE

Clumate Change
RIRE(E

Community Investment and Engagement

HREER2E

Site Impact on Local Communities

T E it R ZE
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group endeavours to embed an environmentally
responsible mind-set in our culture and sustainable practices
in our operations. The Group’s subsidiaries have implemented
environmental management systems and energy management
systems, which have been certified to comply with the standards
required under:

e |SO 14001:2015 (Environmental Management System)
e |SO 50001:2018 (Energy Management System)

The Group also complies with BEAM Plus for New Buildings
Version 1.1 and implements the recommended environmental
mitigation measures on site during the construction phase.
We support the subcontractors to demonstrate compliance of
required standards and as required by the Architect with a goal
to attain the BEAM Plus Certification.

Furthermore, the Group is dedicated to protecting the
environment and ensuring sustainability in the business. Along
with the recent development of Design for Manufacture and
Assembly ("DfMA") and its application in Modular Integrated
Construction ("MiC") and Multi-trade Integrated Mechanical,
Electrical and Plumbing ("MIiMEP"), the Group is running a
feasibility study for partnering with new parties to expand the
scope of the construction activities with the help of Building
Information Modelling ("BIM") technology which we are
specialised in and operating under one of our subsidiaries.
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Through the adoption of these new methodologies, the &ERAZEH A%  BERNUATER
following advantages are achieved:

Shortens construction time #EiE e T AR

e saves total project construction time by about 30% on e IIAEIE XI30%IE B B4 T
average;

e shortens the production period by constructing different o BREREITTRETRMAMN @ faEE
modules in parallel with the factory; and ERE K&

e reduces impacts of adverse weather conditions on the o (R EIRIEETHABHNTE -
construction period.

Improves working environment and site safety REIERERTIHBEZS

e  protects workers against adverse weather; e REIARXBLHRATE

e reduces risk of fall of persons from height; and o REIANRE TENRR

e reduces risk of slipping and tripping of site personnel. o RIETHABIEA - SEAIRER
Enhances sustainability and environmental friendliness T A R RIE

e reduces dust and noise nuisance to the surrounding ¢ RO RKERBRSHUERENTZE
environment;

*  minimises construction waste; and o RABERER K

4 improves construction waste management. . U REREER IR -

Achieves high construction quality ERSESEES

* improves construction accuracy; o ETBEEEMRE:

e facilitates quality control through mass production of pre- o KE4AEMAMRAEAR - GB)EHIE
tested prototype modules; and HrmE &

® minimises errors in construction. o BAMIHRLERE -

Enhances resources and project management TEERREBEEE

e improves management of materials in storage; o NEREFWHER

e enhances production management in a controlled factory o HEAZENEEREHFETER
environment; and &

e provides flexibility in project scheduling. o BB MG T8 B HRE K o
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Environmental Management

The Group's environmental policy shows its commitment to
protecting the environment of the Earth. We attach great
importance to uphold our standards for environmental
protection to the satisfaction of all stakeholders by:

e complying with applicable legal requirements and other
rules and regulations;

e preventing pollution, reducing waste and minimising the
consumption of resources;

e educating, training and motivating employees to carry out
tasks in an environmentally responsible manner;

®  encouraging environmental protection among suppliers and
subcontractors; and

e integrating environmental consideration into the planning
and construction process.

Being committed to making perpetual improvements in the
environmental aspect, it is ensured that such environmental
policies are communicated to all staff members of the Group,
our subcontractors and suppliers regularly.

Environmental Management Plan (EMP)

As a result of the development of the Environmental
Management Plan ("EMP"), the Group continues to reduce
environmental pollution and aims to maximize compliance
with its environmental policy and legal and contractual
environmental requirements. The EMP focuses on the mitigation
and management of the following environmental impacts arising
from the works:

e Air quality impact;

e Noise impact;

e Water quality impact;
e Waste impact.

Targeting to minimize the environmental impacts during our
operations, the WECON Construction & Engineering Ltd. and
subcontractors shall implement mitigation measures according
to the EMP.
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Site Environmental Committee

Site Environmental Committee ("SEC") is established at project
site, depending on actual circumstance, to oversee all the
environmental-related matters. The organisation chart is as
follow.

Contractor
Project Manager

AR IR B AR

B  HEREREE

THRREES

BFERBR - AEBERIEB BRI T
RRZES((IHRREEE])  UEEBM
BREEBAEE - HAERBEWT -

General Foreman
BmET

Environmental Officer

RREE

The Environmental Officer is responsible for preparing,
implementing and updating the EMP. Environmental issues
are directly referred to the Project Manager (PM), and
environmental information (such as environmental mitigation
measures, environmental work procedures, on-the-job
training plans, emergency procedures and any new activities
or procedures required) are released through board notices,
emails and internal circulars to our site staff. The SEC meeting
is held regularly to discuss the recent site environmental issues
such as environmental management plan, inspection items,
housekeeping, mosquito control, complaints, non-compliance,
major findings and other project related environmental issues.

Performance Monitoring and Auditing

To ensure that the environmental performance of project
sites is satisfactory and in compliance with the requirements
of the contract and EMP. Weekly environmental walks and
other inspections are conducted by the SEC members at sites
conventionally. In addition, environmental performance auditing
is conducted regularly to evaluate the effectiveness of the
environmental mitigation measures and to identify room for
improvement.

Project Coordinator
HEfE

Safety Officer

ZEFE

RRTTRERE  BEREENRBEEEN
g -RRAESEREETRAKEGESR
Z3E) > WEBETR  EBRASBEER
AR EE B B IRIRE M(MRIRF BT RIS
it~ BRIRTAERF - ERIEIIE S - B2
Fr R ERIPTFEOFEBRIER) - THUIRIR
ZEEEHBETEE IR OHRRES
H @ MREEEE  KRIER - RY - F
BT REF - TERERE  TEHRRHE
IR B HEREEE -

RBEERET

AEEBREARMBRBERAS ARELE
REMRRREEABNER - THIRRE
e BRENSENBRETRRKER
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17 UFHERBFEFRIERN AR - X
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Promotion of Environmental Awareness

The Project Co-ordinator (PC) and Environmental Officer
(EO) are responsible for promoting the awareness of relevant
environmental requirements as stipulated in the EMP
environmental legislation and the contract to all key site staffs.
All site staff, including newly joined staff members, are briefed
comprehensively on all relevant and material environmental
topics during the environmental training and the Site Safety &
Environmental Committee meeting which includes:

e  Environmental Policy of WECON;

e  Environmental Management Plan;

e Environmental legislation relevant to site activities; and
e  Contractual requirements of the present project.

Complaint Handling Procedure

A clear and effective complaint handling procedure is
necessary for responding to potential environmental complaints
efficiently. Such environmental complaints are referred to the
environmental officer for conducting an investigation and
subsequent analysis. Remedial measures are recommended to
the project manager if the complaint is related to the works. If
the complaint is found related to the works, the respective team
on site shall implement remedial measures as recommended.
The complaint case can be closed only if the remedial measures
implemented are proved to be effective. During the reporting
period, to the best of Directors’ knowledge, the Group was
not aware of any significant environmental complaints lodged
against the Group.

Emergency Response Plan

In this line of business, the occurrence of certain unforeseen
events can lead to environmental issues. Therefore, the
Group ensures that there are comprehensive contingency
plans established to deal with such situations which includes
Emergency procedures for chemical spillage, Emergency
procedures for Typhoon and Heavy Rainstorm and Contingency
measure for Failure of Wastewater Treatment Systems. A
detailed emergency response plan is provided in the Safety
Plan.

90 WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022/2023

RERERRGSE) MIRREECRREME)
BERMATENRE TIRSREEENE
RMRIRIDER AT RENEBRERTE
B REFINTHELZENRREZEEER
ERNEEHRE T(BRERAIABRETD)2EN
MITAMEBNERNRREE  EPEE:

o FEIMREHBXK:

o IRIFEEE:

o HETHEBMEMRIESR &
o WRABBWAKER-

RFEERF

AR B M IRER R IR 1 7 i R ED B IR IR
BRAFMEBLE - BERERFHEITIR
REEETHEMREDNT - WRFEIRE
B ZFE R KERIAERIEN MR
RFETIZER - THaiaR NESIREZ
PRERFRIE b o (2ERETE FTERENED #HE 1
TZBERNERT  RARMGTEERE -
HEDE - BESHAM - AEELEER
EAISHAEEBNERNRFIF

ESEBERE

EEBL BERTIAAUERNEMHIES
EIRIEME - Qi ARERRGTEE
MBS EINEHARER - ER Rt
mRRNEZIESF - REMERNVESRERF
VAR BE K R IR R Aol (B ) S8 i - FEARAY
ERREE B INL 25 P -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Emissions Target and Objectives

Short-term
The environmental targets below are set for the existing
projects:

e 100% compliance with the air quality, noise, water quality
and waste management legislation;

e No exceedance of the air, noise and water limits or
complaint shall be received during the contract period;

e  100% of the waste to be sorted: soil, broken concrete
and bricks for reuse on site or for dumping at public fill
reception facilities, reinforcement bars/other recyclable
metal waste for collection by recycle companies, and
general refuse/packaging material/other non-inert waste for
disposal at landfills.

Long-term
In the long run, the Group targets to:

e |Improve compliance with the legislation governing air
quality, noise, water quality and waste management

e  Control noise emission from the works

e Reduce waste generated and waste sent to disposal
grounds during the construction stage.

In order to achieve and secure a sustainable future, the Group
has set comprehensive emission reduction targets, compared
with the 2021/2022 baseline year, and strive to achieve the
following targets by 2026/2027:

e decrease air emission by 3%;

e decrease energy consumption per MWh of square feet by
3%;

e decrease water consumption per approximate tonne of
employee by 3%; and

e  decrease waste disposal by 3%.
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Emissions

The Group's project sites are subject to certain environmental
requirements pursuant to the laws in Hong Kong such as
Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance,
Water Pollution Control Ordinance (“WPCQO"), Waste Disposal
Ordinance, Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance,
Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance, Dumping at Sea
Ordinance and other related environmental ordinances and
regulations.

During the reporting period, to the best of our Directors’
knowledge, the Group was convicted of 2 minor incidents
non-compliant to the WPCO and Public Health and Municipal
Services Ordinance:

e Discharged from premises into the waters of Hong Kong in
a water control zone
e Larvae and pupae of mosquito were found in the site

The Group ensures that such situations do not occur again by
actions such as sourcing for more effective chemicals to prevent
mosquito breeding and improving housekeeping for cleaner
sites.

The Group ensures its compliance with relevant laws and

regulations through measures described in the following
sections.
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Air Pollutant Emissions

The Group's air pollutant emissions generated from various
sources, including but not limited to generators onsite, vehicles,
dust from the construction activities and material transportation.

The total air pollutant emissions were 25.9 kg in 2022/2023,
representing an increase of approximately 26%, as compared
to last year. The increase of Nitrogen Oxide (“NOx") was
attributed to an increase in the consumption of fuel of the
Group's motor vehicles due to the more distant geographical
locations of construction sites and increase usage of vehicles
during the reporting period. The table below sets forth the
breakdown of air pollutants by category and premise:

BiE g8 REARRE

ZRIS MR
AEENZERSRDPNESERIREE
BREETENMBREY 15 - ZEEY
ELERIRERYELER °

72022 / 20234 » ERSRAMEEREE A
259F 7 - A FIEMEI26% o 1 & H
B AREET A MR B8R K /SEF
FAERIENN - BB EREEFEILINAT
FHREM([EELW LM - TRET
REERI RIBATEI D M RIS YRR

2022/2023 2021/2022

Air Pollutant Emissions’ TRT RPN 2022 / 2023% 2021 / 20224
Kg Kg

F= Fx

Total NOx RELMRE 23.2 17.1
— Office —WRE 5.9 5.4

— Project Sites —IE B iR 17.3 1.7
Total Sulphur Oxides (SOx) MREWSOXEE 1.0 2.1
- Office —WRE 0.2 0.2

— Project Sites —IEH & 0.82 1.9
Total PM TRYBEE 1.7 1.3
- Office B VNS 0.4 0.4

— Project Sites —TH B % 1.3 0.9
Total st 25.9 20.5

The data covers emissions from diesel, petrol and towngas consumption only. It is
estimated based on “How to prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the latest
sustainability report published by The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited.

The emissions of SOx from the stationary source of sites during the reporting period
was included.
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Preventive and mitigation measures are implemented at project 8B M EEMTEL FREEHELT ¢
sites as follows:

Air Emissions Preventive/Mitigation Measures

ZRPEM R EE

Dust e Watering dusty exposed areas, stockpiled materials or cover with tarpaulin sheets
e RS ERE - EBEYH BRI ES

e Vehicle speed is limited to 8 km/h
BIRFRHITES R E /N
e A wheel washing facility is provided at the site entrance
AR A QR IR R R IE SRR
. Pave the area with concrete, bituminous material or hardcore, where vehicle
washing takes place and the road between the washing facilities and the exit
point
PASEEE I B ROB MR R A B O i B 2 A E RSB+ - BB MR A
e Construct a hoarding with a height of 2.4 m or above
B2 — (A= 2.4 K KA FHEIHR

Gaseous emissions . Power-off the idling vehicles/powered mechanical equipment

RN BB ER, RN RENE
e Avoid open burning of solid waste on site
R A AR TR R R [E RS RE )
e Avoid using ozone depleting equipment such as fire extinguishers and
substances

BRERMANREREBRRBR Y

e Ultra-low sulphur diesel is used as a fuel of powered mechanical equipment
HBERSOHBEEBEMRBNEIR

e Carry out vehicle maintenance properly to prevent excessive discharge of
exhaust fumes and noises

HELETERRE - MULHBBZERRES
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Air Emissions Preventive/Mitigation Measures

Z2 SR TR, ARIE

Odour e Discharge the sewage of site toilets and similar into a foul sewer, a septic tank or
Rk a soak away system

PR TR P S)57K 2557K38 ~ (LEM 2K A ST
e Avoid water from stagnating to reduce emission of odorous gases and attraction

of mosquitoes

ERIEK - DUR D RSP 5| =908

A  Materials covered with tarpaulin sheets h Designated wheel washing area at site
APk BEY PRI BRR S B E
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Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

BERBCREERB) IR

In response to the community’s gradual concern on greenhouse RHEMHEMAERE(RERE DK - =
gas ("GHG") emissions, climate change and other related {REMtEREMEBEBAENE IARES &
issues, the Group has maintained records and reported the SEFFBEBIRE - HENEARELH L
GHG emissions annually through ESG report. The primary [EHAERELN - BEREBHMEZRIR

sources of GHG emissions are from diesel consumption by HRETBHEMLEIHER  TETVHBERE - UK
the generators, petrol consumption by vehicles, and use of FAENKER -

electricity and towngas.

2022/2023 2021/2022

GHG Emissions?® BEREHER 2022 / 2023% 2021, 20224

tonnes tonnes

CO,-equivalent CO,-equivalent

W_F{HREE M_SF{REE

Total Scope 14 Emissions HE— A e 167.5 367.5

— Office B VN 38.3 42.9

— Project Sites —TH B Hh X 129.2 324.6

Total Scope 2° Emissions HE AR E 675.3 775.6

— Office —WAE 145.5 110.9

- Project Sites —IE B AR 529.8 664.7

Total Scope 3¢ Emissions HE =B E 35.1 69.6

— Office —WRE 16.4 21.2

- Project Sites —I5 B HAR 18.7 48.4

Total Emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) e (EE—- - —kR=) 877.9 1,212.7

— Office —WRE 200.2 175.0

— Project Sites —IEH & 677.7 1,037.7

Intensity (per million HK$ revenue)’ RE(BEEBTWZR) 1.0 1.1
* The calculation of GHG emissions is made reference to the Guidelines to Account for  °  BE=REFRENHELEZBRREB BT TREE
and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, MK EEREY (%  FERARAR)REREBH
Feotacton eparimens. and s Eecincal and Mechimica Semvces Dapatmort the  BABAN SR SREARAR AHEREHES

latest sustainability reports published by the CLP Power Hong Kong Limited, Hong OB AR RS

Kong Electric Investment and The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, Water

Supplies Department and Drainage Services Department.

in project sites.

Scope 1: The direct emissions from the business operations owned or controlled by the & HE—  AEBHEARITHINE
Group, including the emission from the Group’s vehicle fleet and the generators used

BB HEEHR - B
AR EH RIE B OB EME B RN -

2 Scope 2: The “indirect energy” emissions from the internal purchased electricity — ° BE " AEBRBEDHEEEN HER PR -

consumption by the Group.

6 Scope 3: All other indirect emissions that occur outside the Group, including both 6 HE = AEBINBBANFTAEMEEER - B21F L
upstream and downstream emissions, including the emissions due to electricity used BTN BEKEERREEAKNENARER

for freshwater processing by the Water Services Department and electricity used for
sewage processing by the Drainage Services Department.

ERRERIZTKEOENFTEENBEMN -

/ The Group's annual revenue is approximately HK$869.0 million (2021/2022: HK$1,152.7 ’ 72022 /20235 + 7N 5 B F W 55 4 R869.0E & T

million) in 2022/2023.
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2022/23 GHG Emissions by Scopes
2022,/ 23 F B EE S R EREBHN

® Scope 1

® Scope 2
#HE— &E—=

Scope 3
HE=

During the reporting period, the Group's GHG inventory
principally comprises Scope 1 and 2 emissions, similar to
last year. Scope 1 emissions, include GHG emissions arising
from petrol, diesel and towngas consumption, account
for approximately 19% (2021/2022: 30%) of the total GHG
emissions. Scope 2 emissions, include GHG emissions primarily
resulting from electricity and towngas purchased, account
for approximately 77% (2021/2022: 64%) of the total GHG
emissions. In terms of the GHG emissions by premises, project
sites are the primary source of the Group's total GHG emissions,
accounting for approximately 77% (2021/2022: 86%) of the total
GHG emissions.

The total GHG emissions and its intensity were 877.9
(2021/2022: 1,212.7) tonnes CO2-equivalent (tonnes CO2-¢e)
and 1.0 (2021/2022: 1.1) tonnes CO2-e per million HK$ revenue
respectively in 2022/2023. The total GHG emissions decreased
by approximately 28%, as compared to last year, due to
decrease in diesel consumption attributed to generators as one
sizable project has been completed during the reporting period.

The Group will continue to assess record and disclose its GHG
emissions annually.

BRIE - HERERBRE

2022/23 GHG Emissions by Premises
2022,/ 235 P&l 5

VR EREEHEIN

® Office @ Project Sites

WAE AR

RBEHR - AEBNAEREHMREE
TEREGHE - RESEE PR BEAFHE
Lo SE—BERBIEAH - LhRERHE
HEEHAEREER  HEEREAH
W& #919% (2021 /20224 : 30%) ° &3 [E
“HREREEBEREMBEENRERN
BERBHN - (ERAEREBEHRENT7%
(2021 / 20224F : 64%) ° BLIZFTE £ /R
EREHRME BENBALAEEALER
BAKMENTERR  HAEREBREEN
EH77%(2021 / 20224 : 86%) °

MW2022 /20234 - SBERBAESIRERHE
’*FE'“%U%%8779(2021//2022£E 1,212.7)
“StmEE(M St EE) NEES

%EMEHMmM/?wME1MM:%

bR EE - RIBEHRE - BEREEREs

%‘%Eﬁz DHI28% » TYR R —TEARIE B R
SBREMNEHERERLVAY -

AREBBBESFIHCHREIEELLIER

BEEEME -

BIERERAT  F3R2022/2023 97



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BiE - dB8RERRE

Waste Management

The Group’s materiality assessment results have shown
that waste continues to be one of the most concerning
environmental problems. Our stakeholders have expressed
concerns about how much we have done about waste reduction.
The Group recognises that waste generation is part and parcel
of our business due to the operations such as site clearance,
excavation works, and construction and fitting out works. This
has highlighted the importance for the Group to mitigate
environmental impacts by adopting appropriate waste reduction
and recycling measures such as prioritising avoidance and
minimisation of waste generation, reusing of materials as well
as recovery and recycling of construction and general wastes.
The Group has established Waste Management Plan and
Construction Sites Working Guidelines to workers as guidance
to reduce the generation of non-hazardous wastes. To further
enhance our waste reduction program, we have implemented
measures to remind employees to save papers at all times. The
Group applies for waste disposal licenses for each construction
project and discards non-hazardous wastes generated into the
designated landfills. Waste management measures are also
briefed and to all employees during the Group’s environmental
trainings. Mitigation measures implemented at project sites are
as follows.

Waste Type

BEyER BRI

B ERE

AEBWEENUTHERBTEDINARH
F—RSRZEINRERE - ZMRFHE
HBEMREYR D TEMMHIIERTE
Eo%%ﬁ%%ﬁ*%ﬁl&~%&@ﬁ&

REIRELEE A5EERINEVELE
REMEE EREMER - ERBEAE
%] 378 38 BR EE B 60 B Rk A K [ Wi+ e (f5)
MELEEEBERBERIVEVELE - BF
R - AREKEBEREER —REE
VBB RBEZENEEN - XEBER
TABIEEME R B KB TIEES| - 1
BBV EEEMEENIES - BE IR
BT EEYR T8 - FAPI 2 BREUE b AR
ZIREETHOAR - AEBABEREKIEAE

BERBEVEEME  WHEERNESEE
MEZRIETNIREER - BEYEREED
RASERIRREINPRABEING - 18
BB ERATRIEEA T o

Treatment Approach

General refuse, including office wastes, food wastes e

and other packaging wastes

—REEY - BREBRLEEY Bk EGEOEEY

Construction wastes including both inert (e.g. rock,
rubble, boulder, earth, soil) and non-inert (e.g. bamboo
and timber, paper, and other organic wastes)

BERY BEEE(WER -BAER R 1ER
SR (M FRAM - MERAREABBHEEY)
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Variety recycling bins are provided to collect paper,
plastic for waste segregation and other wastes separately

DREWAE DRI AD SRR « BRHEREY D B R EAA
BEY) ©

Reuse and recycle construction wastes, as much as
practicable

R ARA R EEEREY

Replace timber with metal for site hoarding formwork
and scaffolding

LA BB HROR M b A% B AR AR AR R 1 2R
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Waste Type Treatment Approach

BRI R BT

Metal wastes e Recycled by specific contractors
EEEY R E AR T B

Chemical wastes including spent lubrication oil and
diesel

{L2EEY - BECEREEHR S

Properly store chemical waste in a designated container/
storage area

ZEFRICREYNIEENREFRE

* Employ a licensed chemical waste collector to collect and

dispose of chemical waste

BRI 2EMESHRE REELEREY

2022/2023 2021/2022

Waste =37 2022 /20235 2021, 2022%

tonnes tonnes

L7 g

General refuse, inert and non-inert —RREEYD ~ 1B M IEIBIEESE 17,022.8 20,071.2
construction wastes 23

Metal wastes (Steel bar/metal strips) CEEMERG SBF) = 8.2

Total non-hazardous wastes® BEBRYHBE® 17,022.8 20,079.4

Intensity (per million HK$ revenue)’ RE(BEEBTWER) 19.6 17.4

The total amount of waste was 17,022.8 tonnes, and its intensity
was 19.6 tonnes per million HK$ revenue in 2022/2023. With
the Group's persistent effort on waste reduction, the total
waste amount decreased by approximately 15%. However,
its intensity was increased by 13% on the contrary due to the
decrement in revenue during the reporting period; whilst the
absence of metal wastes was caused by no site hoarding or
excavation lateral support dismantling work carried out during
the reporting period.

To the best of Directors’ knowledge, the Group was not aware
of any significant amount of hazardous wastes generated
in the course of our operation in the project sites and the
office. Looking ahead, the Group will continue refining its
wastes reduction measures and disclose relevant results where
appropriate.

U It includes general refuse and construction wastes

#2022 / 20234 - EEYI4RE A17,022.80F
LEZRELAEAEETINEE19.6ME - &8
REEBERBENES N BEMRERISH
15% o ST - AR IREHARUEER - B
EmERMEAF13% MRS BHREWELHE
Bk IZIE L ER IR - e BREYITT
7T -

BREEMMAM  AKBEYTHERB BN
MAEEZEBRTELEMNAERERE
Yo REARR - REBEREETEHRREE
i - WHEEEIRR T RERBAR -

e HBE—REY REEEY
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Wastewater Treatment

Wastewater is generated from activities like pre-drilling works,
bored piling works and wheel washing activities. The Group
takes appropriate measures to avoid contamination and

BKEE

BEKRTELEBIRTRE BB IRELBIRE
HEEBHREL - AEEFHDUEE 15 i AR
RIS RMEERAFEPIRERIFKE

blockage of public drains and sewers:

Wastewater Type
REKIRA

Treatment Approach
BRERGE

Construction activities

BEED

Site facilities

2R3 e

Surface run-off

Wastewater would be treated properly by effluent treatment plant in order to
comply with the discharge criteria/requirements, as stated in WPCO license;
KRB R ERIBEK - UREKSRE HIGEIF I E TR e B RIRE R
E

Cover open stockpiled material with tarpaulin sheets or similar fabric and
peg them down to the ground during rainstorms

RERPEAIKA BN EZC AR ERYH I EE £ -

Manholes would be adequately covered and temporary sealed so as to prevent
silt, construction materials or debris being washed into drainage system.

ANBEARETHRIES - UBTIDRNE - ZEMHEETARKERL -

An adequate drainage system (e.g. temporary ditches, drainage channel, U-channels

HE R and drain pipes) is maintained to collect runoff;
BUEEHRAFR(WERRER - HKEE - URRBRIKEB) UBETR
e Set up sedimentation basins or traps at temporary ditches or permanent drainage
channels
RERRDB RSOk AR RER B KRR EE
2022/2023 2021/2022
Wastewater? &K 2022 / 2023%F 2021, 2022%
m? m?3
3 J5 3K 375K
Total #sct 9,039.0 33,363.0
Intensity (per million HK$ revenue)’ RE(BEEBTWZR) 10.4 28.9

During the reporting period, the total wastewater discharged
was 9,039.0 cubic meters, and its intensity was 10.4 cubic metres
per million HK$ revenue. The total wastewater discharged
decreased significantly, as compared to last year. They were
attributed to the completion of large scale projects/decrease in
the construction area of projects during the reporting period.

Figures include wastewater from project sites, which is the major source of wastewater
generation in our business operations.
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Noise Gontrol

The noise generated from the Group's construction operations
may disturb the surrounding communities. Noise is emanated
from various construction activities, including but not limited to
the operation of excavators and tower crane, piling, erection or
dismantling of scaffolding and formwork, hammering. Mitigating
noise nuisance is also an important part of pollution mitigation
since many of our construction sites are located in urban areas.
Adhering to the Noise Control Ordinance, our project sites
have acquired construction noise permit before operations
commence. Also, the Group has been working hard to reduce
noise pollution in all work areas by deploying several effective
methods to date:

e Use quiet plant or quality powered mechanical equipment
("QPME")

e Switch off equipment when not in use to eliminate noise
generation by idling machine

e Use facilities in good maintenance condition and provide
regular maintenance to powered mechanical equipment

e Strive to avoid noisy operations taking place at noise
sensitive areas

e Cover powered mechanical equipment with acoustic
material/shield to reduce noise impact when exceeding the
noise limit

e Erect substantial noise barriers between the Noise Sensitive
Receiver (NSR) and the workplace to reduce the noise
generated during the hacking works

e Erect noise barriers to surround the workplace before
demolition works commenced, the sound reduction
fabric and noise absorbing sponge will be hitched on the
hoarding to absorbed the noise emission

e  Conduct noise monitoring regularly

e Separate operations of construction plants where
practicable

B  HEREREE

Ey= g

AEENEELEMELNRERE TER
SR - REREBSERELE  BREET
[RIMZIREHANE R EMAIRIE - 1TH - B
RAFHEWREARE - FEE - ARBPIFF
ZREMBMUNTER - RI&RRELEIT
EREFSAMER IR - RAIMNIAB RS
STREE BRG] EEXFAA S IIGEE
BEFFAIRE o WA AERE-BEES R
FIETRSEENBRZISR - 25 RIEERRT
EEBERNIDE

s ERhBITREXELIRDRE(EE
HERE )

o FBABASEEMAMRE T HIRRM - UHBRHES
EEELNRS

o (ERREMERIFHRNE - WERHH
BREETRE

s REHRAEBRTHREEITRIIEE

o EBBRIRER - BREMHFEE
ERMEBREARBERRETE

o REFTRERAMTT (RS RERAM
77 ) E T 2 FIZRER A B R 2 5 % AR
PRI ITIEMEEENRE

o MNERFEHITEANTHHIRRRES
B - BRER ENREWHEESR
T & IR U R PRI

e TEMEITRIEER
o METHERT @ iR ESHEEED
G
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A Noise absorbing sponge
fRER

A Noise barriers hang on the hoarding
RERE LIREFE
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Use of Resources

The significant use of resources of the Group includes energy,
water and other construction materials. Considering the
importance of reducing the consumption of resources as
stated in the Group’'s Environmental Policy, the Group has
implemented relevant measures to lower the possibility of
energy wastage. On top of adopting the ISO 50001:2018 (Energy
Management System) Standard, energy consumption is also
controlled through administrative measures such as switching
off electrical appliances during non-business hours. Both office
and project sites consume electricity and fuel for vehicles. Also,
fuel for generators is used at project sites. The Group's business
activities do not consume packaging materials.

B  HEREREE

BRER

AEEFEANEZEERBIELER  KREM
YR o BRBIANEBIRBEE T ATER
LEREENEZ Y  AEECE RIS
B SARK BETROR B RO AT RE 1 © B T ERAISO
50001:2018 (REIRE B 24 ) IR % - AEBE IR
FHBITBUEHE (RAFEE A E 83 ) 15l
BEROHAE - MAERIBEEHBHFEAT IR
VUEREDERE - B - THEMBRFEAEEH
RREL - AEBRERZETEEREME
M o

2022/2023 2021/2022
Energy Consumption L =E:3 2022 /20235 2021/ 2022%F
MWh MWh
JK LB YK T B
Direct Energy Consumption HiERRER
Total Fossil Fuel Energy Consumption'® L BRBAEBEREFE 639.2 1,457.2
- Office R /N 138.4 155.2
— Project Sites —IEH & 500.8 1,302.0
Indirect Energy Consumption R REIRE #E
Total Purchased Energy Consumption'! AR EEAEEY 1,299.5 1,735.5
— Office R /N 224.0 166.0
— Project Sites —I8 B & 1,075.5 1,569.5
Total Energy Consumption HRERERE 1,938.7 3,192.7
- Office R /NE 362.4 321.2
— Project Sites — I8 B A8 1,576.3 2,871.5
Intensity (per million HKD revenue)’ RE(SEEBTWZR) 2.2 2.8

It includes the energy consumption from the fuel uses of Group’s vehicles and
generators.

It includes the energy consumption from the purchased electricity and towngas of the
Group.

o HBEAREE =R R EERIAEHE A E LR RREFE -

" HEeRAEEERENRKRELNERHEFR -
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During the reporting period, the total energy consumption and
its intensity were 1,938.7 MWh and 2.2MWh per million HK$
revenue respectively. The total energy consumption and its
intensity decreased by approximately 39% and 21% respectively,
as compared to last year. The decrease in fossil fuel energy
consumption was attributable to the completion of one
sizable project during the reporting period; whilst purchased
energy consumption was attributable to the decrease in the
consumption of electricity which caused by a decrease in project
site offices during the reporting period.

In terms of the total energy consumption by premises, the
Group's total energy consumption was primarily contributed
by project sites, accounting for approximately 81% of the total
energy consumption in 2022/2023 and 90% in 2021/2022.

RIRERRE - BERERERERED A
19387 KEFERGEEB TR E22KE
o B ERERERE D BBREAFR AL
39% K% 21% o \L B HELRE IR B FER A TR R
HEHE—IBARIBE R TATE : MEAR
TFOEFER T H N RS B TE B BN A =R
DEHEIEERD ©

HIGFTRBREREREMS - AEE/MNBEIR
HFEEEREEE A - 12022/ 2023F
2021/ 2022%F 5 B 48 8 TR S FE 4981%
X90% o

A Energy saving reminder
ENKIBERIR R 6

Water is also recognised as a precious resource. During the
reporting period, we obtained water from the third party
suppliers, hence, we were not aware of any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose. In order to reduce the use of
freshwater, the Group encourages the reuse and recycling of
wastewater at project sites; for example, the treated wastewater
is reused for dust suppression and washing vehicles.
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2022/2023 2021/2022

Water Consumption Rk 2022/ 2023% 2021 / 2022%F
m3 m3

MK 3K

Total Water Consumption AXxEE 9.878.9 41,442.0
— Office —-WA=E 595.0 496.0
— Project Sites —IEH & 9,283.9 40,946.0
Intensity (per million HK$ revenue)’ RE(BEBEBTWER) 11.4 36.0

During the reporting period, the total water consumption was
9,878.9 cubic meters, and its intensity was 11.4 cubic metres
per million HK$ revenue. The Group recognised a substantial
decrease in total water consumption, as compared to last year.
This was attributed to the decrease in the construction area of
projects during the reporting period as well as our endeavours
to reduce the overall water consumption.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue refining measures and
evaluate the related results achieved if applicable.

The Environment and Natural Resources

We see sustainability as vital to steer operational excellence.
Therefore, the Group puts emphasis on protecting the
environment and natural resources. The Group’s subsidiaries
have implemented environmental management systems and
energy management systems, which have been certified to
comply with the standards required under ISO 14001:2015
(Environmental Management System) and ISO 50001:2018
(Energy Management System) respectively. To refrain from any
negative impact on the environment and natural resources,
project sites are ensured to be located in non-ecologically
sensitive area. Furthermore, emergency response plans are
established for chemical spillage, adverse weather condition and
failure of the wastewater treatment system to prevent problems
caused by emergencies. Nevertheless, the Group has identified
potential environmental impacts of related business activities as
follows.

i It includes the water consumption on the project sites and offices.

R¥RE AR - A/KE 2598789 A K -
REZEASAEEBTRFI14L K - K
SEBERAKEEREFRERD - TIA
RS EAMIE B BEEBER LD - URBEMEK
TTRA BB °

RERK  AEEFEEREEG - WER
AHEARREAAR o

BRRERRRER

BPRAEAFEMHNS EEHEESH
EZ A AEBEERERBERRA
BlR - AEEMBARIEERERREER
HREEIREB RS ZERZRELERED A
FFEI1SO 14001:2015 GRI|BEE ZEH) &ISO
50001:2018 (REIRE R Z &) R EIZAE - IHE
AR FEIRAI A FEE REGURRR - DA S (E{a] ¥
RERRAERNEETE o 1IN - $TE(L
BmER - BHREMAKEKEE RGN
B BSEEENR  UBHEEBR%
MEEME - BEWY - AEEEHANET
HBREREHNETIRRTE -

2 HEREEBRNREAENAK -
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Environmental Impact
RETE

Activity/Process
EE) B

Management Approach
EEGE

Air and noise pollution, smog

ERARBRE SR EH

Degradation of aquatic habitat and

drinking water supply
WFERRERRAKHESRL

Soil and groundwater contamination

TERBTKTHR

Global warming and air pollution

E2REBLCRERTHR

Depletion of natural resources

RREFHFE

The Group strives to introduce more measures to minimise
the potential environmental impacts of the operations on the
environment and natural resources. The details of action taken

Machinery operations
PR E
Construction works
REETIE

Discharge of wastewater

BRI BEIR

Spillage and leaks from machinery engine

MR B AR TR

Power supply

HE

Office operations
MNELBE
Construction works
BRETIE

[

are illustrated in the sections headed “Emissions” and “Use of i °

Resources”.
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Emission sources controls

HERURE 12

Emission sources controls

HERE 2

Preventive controls
BT

Impact mitigation controls
R BRI

Resource utilisation

BIRH A

Resource utilisation

BIRF A

AEBBNEREZHRBERKLELIR
BRRAABRNEERRZE - BHEMKR
TTEIRFFB R PE ) | R &R IR AR
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Climate Change

Climate change is one of the single biggest health threats
facing humanity. Climate impacts are already harming health,
through air pollution, disease, extreme weather events, forced
displacement, starvation and poor nutrition in places where
food is inadequate. Logistics and supply chains are particularly
vulnerable. Heavy rainfall, rising tides and sea levels or
floods can cause serious damage to assets such as buildings,
warehouses, manufacturing plants and goods in storage,
resulting in financial losses. To tackle one of the most significant
global risks, ambitious, rapid, and collaborative action will be
required to make progress in the issue. Therefore, the Group
believes that all stakeholders should work collectively to
address climate change. Despite the obstacles faced due to the
pandemic in recent years, we are remain constantly committed
to our goal of decarbonisation.

In response to the Paris Agreement, the Hong Kong
Government issued the "Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan”,
and formulated various plans and actions, setting out the
vision of “Zero-carbon Emissions, Liveable City, Sustainable
Development”. The government has determined to set medium-
term goal as halving Hong Kong's total carbon emissions from
2005 levels before 2035. Such situations may present potential
impacts and opportunities for the Group and regular reviews of
climate change issues are therefore extremely vital.

The Group essentially plans to respond to local government
initiatives and be aligned to the local government’s emission
reduction requirements. We aim to reduce GHG emissions by
around 3% by 2027 and ensure the Group’'s GHG emissions
will comply with the local requirements on or before 2030.
Our target is to achieve carbon neutrality by 2050 in Hong
Kong region. We are committed to continuously improving
our efficiency in the use of resources as well as protecting
the environment in all aspects. We also strive to seize every
opportunity to accelerate the transformation and make the
Group smarter and more environmentally friendly to be resilient
to the current climate change conditions.

B  HEREREE
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Action on climate change

s RIRE(LITE

Action responding to climate change is embedded in the EEREENLHNITHERNAEERNERR
Group’s business strategy and is reflected in its governance B ' JERBHREAREERE - LTRS
and management processes. The index table below outlines the KB AEEEEAREPRIEELFEEE
core elements of the Group’s response to the climate change KEJZLEZE o

disclosure requirements in this Report.

Core element

The Group’s response

BOEER B B i
Governance e  Setting up ESG Working Group and regular meeting
R BRALIRE - Mg REATIENERTFHRETER
e Integrating ESG topics (including climate-related issues) in corporate decision
making
BIRE - teREREE(RREREERZEES) WA DLIERE
Strategy e Understanding climate risks and identify risks and opportunities in the low-
SRR carbon transition

Risk Management

R EE

Metrics and Targets
EEREE

TR R R B Y (AR B Y ) L i K

The Board to discuss about ESG risks

BEgAMEBE e lERRR

Preparing for the transition to a low-carbon economy
REER A B A

Preparing and setup measures to manage physical climate risks

REREBRIRRERIEES RS EREEG

Investing in transition enablers
REERREHE R
Creating value in the low-carbon transition

FEEARER T AEEE
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It is imperative that we assess potential climate-related risks and

explore possible opportunities for our business. The following

transition and physical risks are discussed in the sections below.

Risks
ELB&

B  HEREREE

At BRI EERR KRR EEEHEE
HEMMSHEEREE - TIBEKRERE
[RBRFE LA T BB T 5 ©

Opportunities
R

Short-term
(0 - 1 year)

S
(0E1%)

Medium-term
(5 years)

F
(5%)

Physical risks from extreme weather events
such as the destruction of operation facilities
and equipment

KB R R R Y B R B (0 B AR K AR
REXBER)

Securing the skills and capability required to
implement climate strategy

TR ERE pt SR SR B P 75 B0 B Bk K g
Transition risk — risk of litigation for failing
to avoid or minimise adverse impacts on the
climate, or failing to adapt to climate change
BER R — R R EHRIREEN T
LEHFDRER - BEEEERREL

Transition risks — Implementation of low-
carbon policies for the operation

B E — RN E B RO

Transition risks — Supply and demand for certain
commodities, products and services may change
as climate related risks and opportunities are
increasingly taken into account

BERR - BEERKEERR SR SXE
A ETER  EmMREOHHERTEeHESE
e

e New services to help communities
decarbonise
B Bt R 80 #T AR 7%

e Gain reputation as a low-carbon emission
organisation to cater to the environmental-
friendly customers
ERESEMPEREENRE IS RR
S

e Technologies to enhance the performance
of operation (e.g.: the development of DIMA
and the implementation of BIM technology
can shorten construction time, improve
working environment and site safety, reduce
environment impact, improve construction
quality as well as enhance resources and project
management) and energy efficiency
RIAZERA(N : REARANERLER
RECBERRMTAERIRME HET
ERERIHEZE  RMIRRFE HER
FEE  URTEERIIBAER) KRR
KA

e Transitioning to low carbon economy market
to meet government decarbonisation targets
EMERRAS A T 3585 20 LA B IR BUT R B 1R

e Opportunities arising from transition enablers

SRV EY A = 7 SR B
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Risks
A%

Opportunities
#ia

Medium-to long-
term (5+ years)
PR
(5B L)

Physical risks — workers are more likely to
suffer from heat stroke due to increase in

global temperature, insurance fees might

increase
ERER -HREFAR L TATZKE
= 1%3%7TT B2 M AN

Physical risks - rising sea levels may cause

disruption to relevant operations

BERER —&FE A8 5| BURR RS X

Transition risks — Potential new regulations

and policies

B R — BTE B FTAR O R

Transition risks — Development and use of

emerging technologies may increase the

operational costs, and reduce the Group's

competitiveness

B R — BT E T R 3 R R R Be g N

BERA - WREREENHEFN

Transition risks — the Group's reputation

may be impacted due to changing customer

or community perceptions of said the Group's

contribution to or detraction from the transition to

a lower-carbon economy

\FHA HREFHtREREERNBERE
RGBT ENERSURE CBEEEEL - K%

EmEEEeRITE

Transition risks — The Group may not be able to

keep up with the trend of digital transformation,

which may impact the Group's business performance

WERR - RNEE AR EAR B EA B

P MR RE B AR BN EBRER

Physical climate risks can potentially damage the Group's assets

or directly interrupt our service delivery. The Group has already

set up a number of measures in place to enhance the reliance

of its operations,

including contingency plan for extreme

weather or emergency conditions that cover our project sites.

Chemical spillage, typhoon, heavy rainstorm and fire are likely

to cause environmental problems.

110 WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022/2023

e Provide better working environment to
workers and review their working hours,
with better working conditions to facilitate
the recruitment of workers
RIARHEEENTERERRAKRENT
TERY B - WIR LS (=80 TR IR (2 E T AR
2

e Transitioning to low carbon economy market
to meet government decarbonisation
targets
A Bk 4 7 T 45 88 5 LA B 3R BT IRk B A

e Opportunities arising from transition
enablers
EAEE P Z R AHS

e To build up reputation as a eco-friendly
pioneer in the industry
ERITRIRRCENEE

e To work as a pioneer in the industry to
enhance internal communication: project
progress monitoring by utilising mobile
application for the establishment of
communication platform
TERITH RS - MARNEER : MRREE
REARYBRTE  HIERERER

e Full utilisation of Technologies which
enhance environmental friendliness of
operations

E2HEMIEREERFRIERRX

ERRIERRAEEREARENEENRE
EBELBRMNRERN - AREEHEL R

BHENsR B - BIEREEA A
Lﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%’i TN E/Rm}{_g/uxﬂ-l_gu /ft?—l:ll:l
HH C B NSRBI BBUIRE

AR ©
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Transition risks can potentially increase the operational costs
and legal risk of the Group due to change of policy, technology
development, digitalisation, relevant risk affected to supply
and demand, and reputation due to public perceptions. The
Group has already identified the relevant risks and will continue
to monitor the market and policy updates. The Group has also
planned to invest according to the market needs and take this
as an opportunity for long-term development.

Over the years, a series of measures has been adopted to put
in place along the Group's value chain helping the Group to
be resilient to extreme climate events. These measures are
deployed for different geographies, taking into account the
asset types, locations and relevancy. They are summarised in
the table below:

Relevant part of the value chain  Relevant measure

HERERRE

IS

HREERE L - SR - 8B - RHEK
TENHBERBRURIAREBEIZENE
B BRERE I AR B R L ER AR
KRR o AEE S BRI EE R R KR
BERMS RBERHER - AEBIRD A
FRETEFTELETREL R ARAER
HH 8

ZENR > ARECRNEEEESROEKN—
?W & it thh BN AN SR IR iR im RUR B R

EEEEEEER B RARBIME - 4
FRBEHER S - FABRE
5

EEHEMERND HEE

Supply chain Diversify materials supplies from multiple suppliers, sources and countries
frEdE Mm% EHEER - R REREREARREM M RS

Operation Monitor and inspect assets regularly:

- Maintain a contingency plan for all project sites’ facilities

RFTAIE R RIS AT 8

To address extreme heat and increased temperature:

J—EiT/ﬂnr—iﬂﬁ&ﬁmﬂiﬂ‘

Maintain coollng equipment in good conditions

REF2 AR BRI R AF AR RS

—  Ensure reasonable working hours and safe working environment for workers to

achieve potentially lower insurance rates
BRIANIERESERIERELRS  UERBEERENRREX

- Boost drinking fountains for employees and workers

REERT NEMBKEEE

To address the risk of water shortage and drought:

FES K RE AR

= To maintain adequate water tank(s) in facilities

R DIRR B SRk KA

- Purchase drinking water with sufficient storage

BB M7 R AR ER 7K
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Relevant part of the value chain

EEEMEEHD

Relevant measure

1H A

Investing transition enablers

To address flooding risks:
SRR -

Construct protection walls for facilities and run-off water storage

AR IR EE NIRRT RE

Deploy anti-flooding measures suitable for the assets, including drainage
systems, flood gates and flood barriers, if necessary
EVERSEEBESENLEE - BEIKES - AR RTHEE

Assemble additional coverage with tarps, grass planting and drainage works to
avoid soil erosion if necessary
EVEREANKM  HERPIKIIES

EHXENBEERE - BRELRK

To enhance business continuity:

e

mEBEEN

Establish a typhoon response protocol and Emergency Response Team and
enhance internal communication to ensure smooth execution of contingency
plans

HIERe R ¥ 7 B R L S NME - I8 A ER A B DA MR B A 1T =5 T 8l
Enable rapid construction of temporary masts that can shorten the restoration of
power supply through the employment of emergency restoration system
FHiREAESMERS - RRBRERSRE - W EE HEIRERHE

Enhance the communication capacity of customer services, especially post-
incident customer communication

RARPRBOBEESD  BRRERELRNETPER

REBREBRE

During the course of transforming into a low-carbon business,
the Group is reviewing on methods such as, replacing old fossil
fuels vehicles with electric vehicles ("EV"), adopting renewable
energy sources (i.e. Photovoltaic on rooftop of sites) into its
business operations or purchasing more QPME or quiet plants,
to fulfil its business needs and goals in the future.

Our Path to 2050

The Group is prepared to address the threats climate change
poses both to its business and to the communities that it serves.
The Group is determined to deliver and provide quality and
reliable services for its customers and the Group is fully aware
of the importance of environmental responsibility. The Group is
ready to raise the targets, wherever possible, to strengthen the
environmental protection measures at least every five years.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS
Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The Group believes that employees are essential factors in our
organisation’s success as they are the ones who are directly
responsible for carrying out our mission. As the business grows,
the Group must establish sustainable human capital to attract
and retain talents. The Group strictly abides by the Employment
Ordinance, Employments’ Compensation Ordinance, Minimum
Wage Ordinance, Construction Workers Registration Ordinance,
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the "MPF Scheme”)
Ordinance and discrimination-related ordinances. During the
reporting period, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge,
the Group was not aware of any significant non-compliance
case in this regard. The Group has established human
resources management policy and handbook (the “Employee
Management Handbook"”), which set out the details on
remuneration, dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working
hours, rest periods, diversity, equal opportunities and anti-
discrimination.

Remuneration, compensation and dismissal

To attract and retain talents, the Group provides a competitive
remuneration package to employees including salary,
discretionary bonuses, overtime compensation and other cash
subsidies. In general, the Group determines employee salaries
based on each employee’s education/technical qualifications,
responsibilities, experiences, performance and skills. The
Group has designed an annual review system to assess the
performance of employees, which forms the basis of decisions
with respect to salary changes, bonuses and promotions.

For resignation on employee’s own accord, they are required
to provide written notice of termination to the Group for
termination of employment, or otherwise, payment in lieu
of notice is applied. An exit interview is conducted with
the resigned employee to provide an opportunity for the
employee to discuss the working experience with the Group.
The feedbacks received are beneficial to the human resources
system, working environment and future positioning of jobs.

B  HEREREE

HEEME
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An employee may be summarily dismissed by the Group without
advance notice or payment in lieu if the employee in relation to
his/her employment has any misconduct, or is guilty of fraud or
dishonesty or habitually neglects his/her duties.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group believes that efficiency, effectiveness and success
of the organisation depends primarily on the skills, abilities
and commitment of the employees who constitute the most
important asset of the organisation.

The philosophy of the Group seeks to attract the best-qualified
candidates who support the mission and value of the Group
and who respect and promote excellence through diversity. The
Group aims to recruit the most suitable talents and to maintain
a pool of employees according to the human resources
planning and needs. Well-performing staff will be transferred
and promoted to fill our vacancies and provide them with the
opportunities to explore their better prospect in the Group.

The Group recognises the importance of development and
growth of employees. Performance appraisal is conducted
regularly to evaluate employees’ performance regarding
but not limited to safety, work attitude, technical skills, and
interpersonal skills.

Working hours and rest periods

The Group is dedicated to providing reasonable working hours
and rest periods to employees. All employees are entitled to
public or statutory holidays as announced in The Government
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Gazette each
year. In addition to those holidays, employees are entitled
but not limited to annual leave, sick leave, compensation
leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, marriage leave, and

compassionate leave.
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Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination

The Group recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diversified Board and workforce to enhance the quality
of our performance. Board Diversity Policy is established
which defined Board diversity in terms of a wide range of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and education background, ethnicity, professional experience
and qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service,
and diversity is also the value incorporated in our recruitment
practices.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and is committed
to providing equal opportunities in relation to all human
resources matters or in any other activities during employment
including but not limited to recruitment, training, promotion,
transfer, compensation, benefits provision, termination,
regardless of age, gender, physical or mental state, marital
status, family status, pregnancy, race, colour, nationality or
ethnic origin, religion, or sexual orientation. Employees are
recognised and rewarded according to their contribution,
performance and skill. Remuneration package and training
opportunities are provided to all employees on the objective
basis of their job capacity, personal capability and performance.
During the reporting period, to the best of our Directors’
knowledge, the Group was not aware of any significant
discrimination cases.

Sexual harassment is strictly prohibited under the Group's
policy as stipulated in the Employee Management Handbook.
Employee, who believes that he/she has been or is being
sexually harassed, is encouraged to report the incident of sexual
harassment, as well as seek advice and guidance to the relevant
supervisors or department heads. He/she can further lodge
his/her complaint to the Human Resources & Administration
Department who will investigate thoroughly and confidentially
in accordance with the guidelines in handling sexual harassment
complaints.
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The Group will take appropriate disciplinary action against
anyone who is in breach of the regulations which may in the
most serious of cases lead to termination of employment
contract. During the reporting period, to the best of our
Directors’ knowledge, the Group was not aware of any
significant harassment cases.

Employee benefits and welfare

According to the applicable laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, the Group provides various benefits and welfare to the
employees. The Group participates in the defined contribution
scheme under the MPF Scheme Ordinance which is available
to its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme by the Group and employees are made based on a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed to
the MPF Scheme. The Group also provides medical insurance,
employees’ compensation insurance, marriage gift, maternity
coupon, condolence money, distribution of masks as well as
COVID-19 Rapid Antigen Tests kits and reimbursement to
employees. Mobile phone reimbursement is also eligible for
employees whose job duties regularly require emergency call
back, or other job-related factors that require the employee
to routinely utilise mobile phone to enhance their ability to
perform their job duties. On the other hand, the Group has
organised other welfare activities and arranged benefits for
our employees such as birthday, Mid-Autumn Festival and
Christmas parties as well as distribution of mooncake coupon to
employees.

116 WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022/2023

AEEBEERRTENTAABRIVEE
wERD  REENBERAERERSLN
BRIE - RIEHRE - BEEHMA > A5EH
WEBREMEAREERE -

BEFERERN
RESBERWERLER  ARERIER
RESEFEREN AKELREERES
nsgiE e 5 EIGRFIIE T ERRH G - K
SENEEREREREERFEHANLLFAR
BestBEHER - AEBERET HRER
BELHEFLHARTREEE TEE - K~
SETREERHEERRKRR RBEMER
R BEIERY  £B%  BEE  REOS
DA R BT A B 7 PR AR I R AR S B E R
KR - MEEBE L ATHEEREE -
SR E A T MR =78 B & 2/ F # bAE
METBEMEEN  BIRSEEERERTH
AL e m—TE - AREHLERREEME
fEFEB AN - PIInERE - PIRRE
SRS - AR FREIRE ABHES -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

As at 31 March 2023, the Group employed 229 employees.
All employees are located in Hong Kong. The details of the
workforce and employee turnover rate during the reporting
period are as follows:

B  HEREREE

PR2023F3A318 » XEBEA229%ES -
FIEREREHANNES - BEANHEHBBT
MEBREARNFBZOT ¢

Workforce'? BT 2022/2023 2021/2022
As at 31 March MA3A31H 2022 /20235 2021, 20224
By Gender =B

Male B 165 169

Female pegi 64 55
By Age Group RERER

Below 30 305 A T~ 42 48

30-50 302505% 111 104

50 or above 50B%A £ 76 72
By Employment Type RZERER

Full Time 20 226 223

Part Time Figing 3 1
By Geographical Region Rt &

Hong Kong EHE 229 224
Total st 229 224
Turnover Rate'™ kR 2022/2023 2021/2022
As at 31 March MA3HA31H 2022 / 2023%F 2021, 2022%
By Gender R R

Male Bk 33.2% 39.6%

Female M 31.9% 44.4%
By Age Group REwRA R

Below 30 3088 A T 40.0% 48.9%

30-50 302 505% 34.3% 38.8%

50 or above 5057 A 25.5% 37.4%
By Geographical Region BibE

Hong Kong BE 32.8% 40.9%
Overall st 32.8% 40.9%

e It includes the employees of the Group only. Workers of the subcontractors are not
included.

& Turnover rate = Number of employees left the Group during the reporting period/
(Number of employees left the Group during the reporting period + Number of
employees as at the end of the reporting period). The Group had a total of 112
employee turnover (2021/2022: 155 employee turnover) during the reporting period.
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It is of utmost importance to prioritise work safety and
accidents prevention measures due to the nature of works in
the construction industry. Therefore, the Group has adopted
a health and safety policy statement (the “Policy Statement”)
which emphasises on safeguarding the health and safety of all
employees, subcontractors, and the wider community during
the execution of operations. The health, safety and well-being
of our people is a key concern of the Group. The Group's
subsidiary has adopted an occupational health and safety
management system in accordance with the requirements of
ISO 45001:2018 (Occupational Health and Safety Management
System) accreditation and has in place a variety of policies and
procedures to ensure the health and safety of our employees in
the workplace.

The Group strictly abides by the applicable laws and regulations
in Hong Kong relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards, including
but not limited to Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance,
Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance, Construction
Sites (Safety) Regulations, Occupiers Liability Ordinance. During
the reporting period, to the best of our Director’'s knowledge,
the Group had 3 cases of non-compliance with Factories and
Industrial Undertakings Ordinance which resulted a total of
HK$41,000 fine. Individual investigations of each cases were
carried out and the relevant corrective action plans (“CAP"s)
were adopted in order to avoid repeating similar cases in future.
We seek to constantly enhance our safety measures and policies
to promote a safe working environment for all employees in the
Group.

Safety organisation

The Group has established a Company Safety Management
Committee and a Site Safety Committee with clearly defined
responsibilities. The former is responsible for developing,
reviewing and revising the Group’s health and safety policy
and regularly monitoring the proper implementation of the
safety management system. The latter provides and improves
the safety at work on-site and shall be able to participate in
the making and monitoring of arrangements for safety at the
workplace.
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Health and safety measures and implementation

On top of complying with the laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, a safety plan is always enforced at the commencement
and during the implementation period of each project to ensure
a safe and healthy working environment. Job hazard analysis
is also conducted by a safety officer or construction team
whereby risk is assessed based on all of the occupational health
and safety aspects of the works. The safety officers, safety
supervisors and site management personnel conduct regular
site visits to ensure the workers have taken all necessary safety
precautionary measures. Some key measures are implemented
at the project sites as follows:

e all new employees are mandated to attend site safety
induction training conducted by safety officers within two
days after their commencement of work on-site;

e all employees are required to wear or use appropriate
safety equipment or clothing and use the appropriate
safety devices; and

e all employees are expected to familiarise with the relevant
requirements of the project safety plan and other specific
safety requirements.

The Group believes in the importance of safety driving. Staff
who use the vehicle provided by the Group or own vehicles for
work purposes, is asked to pay attention to drive safety and
strict compliance with all traffic laws of the HKSAR Government.
A "Declaration of Safety Driving” is provided to the staff who
drive the Group vehicles.

On the other hand, the Group has established Standard
Construction Site Arrangement and Safety Measures In-House
rules for workers to comply and follow at work to mitigate the
occurrence of accidents and occupational hazards. In order
to increase the awareness of safety at workplace, a Safety
Penalty Schedule, which was a management system to identify
and follow-up on any non-compliance of Occupational Safety
regulations that were established to lower the possibilities of
accidents and fatalities further.
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Monitoring system

The most up to date information and procedures for health and
safety are disseminated during regular meetings are held for
Directors, safety officers and site supervisors. In the event of
the occurrence of incidents and near misses, swift rectifications
will be made by following the emergency preparedness and
response procedure which have already been well-established.
Follow-up investigation will be carried out to review the safety
system to find out the root causes of the case(s) and prevent
re-occurrence of similar cases. Apart from routine safety
inspections, regular safety walks by senior management and
safety audits are conducted at all project sites to verify the
sufficiency and effectiveness of safety control measures.

Precautionary measures of COVID-19"

As the pandemic was still ongoing during the reporting period,
we have maintained our existing measures to mitigate the risks
of transmission of the COVID-19 virus in accordance with the
policies of the Hong Kong Department of Health including but
not limited to the following:

® arrange Rapid Antigens Tests of COVID-19 for employees;

e establish guidelines for employees who have contracted
the COVID-19 virus. Any employees found to have positive
results from the Rapid Antigen Tests of COVID-19 must
report their cases to the Centre for Health Protection of the
Department of Health. Also, they must not report to work
and are required to rest at home as well as to seek proper
medical treatment;

e all employees are required to record their body
temperature before they report to duty;

e Leave Home Safe QR codes are available in our offices
and projects sites, employees, workers and visitors are all
required to scan the QR codes using the Leave Home Safe
mobile application before entering the aforementioned
locations;

® arrange thorough sanitisation in office areas;

e masks are required to be worn by all employees at offices
and project sites to mitigate the risks of infection. We
have offered masks for both our employees working at the
offices and for those who are working at the project sites;

e the Group encourages employees to wash their hands
frequently and properly;

Due to the developing policies of the Hong Kong Health Department over the
reporting year, the Group's measures have also evolved accordingly. All restrictions
have been removed by the Hong Kong Government on the 1% March 2023.
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all employees should avoid unnecessary physical contact
and maintain social distancing; and
the Group encourages employees to participate in
the Universal Community Testing Programme and the
COVID-19 Vaccination Programme.

Safety performance

During the reporting period, the Group achieved zero fatalities.
The accident rate per 1,000 employees or workers for the Group
and our subcontractors in 2022/2023 are 0 and 9.6 respectively,
which are much lower than the Hong Kong construction
industry’s average of 29.5 per 1,000 workers'. The total number
of lost days due to injuries is 1,251 days (2021/2022: 1,376
days) in 2022/2023. We will continue our efforts to raise safety
awareness amongst our stakeholders and to ensure that we

learn from these events to improve our safety performance.

B  HEREREE

o ZRESEERIFVENTBIEMELR
Frt BEEE - &

o  AEEHENEESME MRS
K209 m B WK B IR EA & o

fogca: 3

RBEHE  AEEERTIHTHEER - K
EEEEDBEMN2022  2023FHEFT
ZRERERTIAEHED R ARG &K
REBREEMNTHETHEIA295C B
2022 / 2023F A T B1BK 4B 8UA1,251K
(2021 /20224 : 1,376K) » HFIGHEER
NREFNENTEER  BREMUEZE
EHFRREREG  URERPNLZERER -

Safety and Health Statistic Bulletin, Occupational Safety and Health Branch, Labour

Department.

average employees or workers) x 1,000

during the reporting period) x 100,000

employees or workers) x 1,000

Accident rate per 1,000 employees or workers = (Number of reportable accident/Daily

LTIFR = (Number of lost time injuries/Total hours worked by all employees or workers

Fatality rate per 1,000 employees or workers = (Number of fatality/Daily average

2022/2023 2021/2022 2020/2021
2022 / 2023%F 2021, 20225 2020 /20214
Number Reportable Accidents BAREEHHE
— The Group —REE 0
— Subcontractors — DB 10
Accident Rate per 1,000 employees 1,000 EExH T AK
or workers"’ BiREY
— The Group —REHE 0.0 0.0 0.0
— Subcontractors — DB 9.6 10.9 5.5
Lost Time Injury Frequency Rates BRIBIESHIER
(LTIFR)™® (MEXIRITESEHIER])®
— The Group — 5% HE 0.0 0.0 0.0
— Subcontractors — DB 0.3 0.4 0.2
Number of Work-related Fatalities EITEBEMETHAR
— The Group —KEE
— Subcontractors — DB
Fatality Rate per 1,000 employees #1,0008EExRT AN
or workers'® T FRY
— The Group —R&EHE 0.0 0.0 0.0
— Subcontractors —DEHE 0.0 0.0 0.0
% The accident rate is extracted from the Issue No. 22 (August 2022), Occupational ' FMESBES IRBERS REFNRHEMBERS

KGR BT R 228 (20226 8A ) -
L 1,005 EEX T ANERE= (BREFHHE AR
T e B T AAZ)x 1,000

8 BAIRNIEEUER=- (ATERANIRKE28E
BT AR E B A948 THF )x 100,000
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83T AAZ0x 1,000
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The Group will continue to review the existing occupational
health and safety management system and elevate the safety
awareness of the employees and subcontractors.

Development and Training

Training and development programs can educate employees
about new skills or provide updates on existing skills to enhance
productivity. As stated in the Group's training and development
policy, the Group provides equal opportunity for all staff and
aims to develop their knowledge, skills and abilities through a
variety of learning channels including mentoring, coaching, on-
the-job training, courses, conferences and seminars. Employees
are also encouraged to take up training programmes and
seminars for self-development. By providing perpetual learning
opportunities, the Group can enhance employee engagement
and increase attendance rates, leading to long-term profitability
growth. Therefore, the Group will expand our training aspect to
align with the development of the industry or in response to the
update of new skills and knowledge to meet the internal and
market demand.

The Group provides various types of training to employees and
provide sponsorship for them to attend various training courses
as well as for further education if beneficial for the job. During
the reporting period, we provided a series of trainings to our
employees. To raise the safety awareness of our employees
and workers, we provided site safety training covering
various topics (such as prevention of heat stroke, proper
usage of monitors, accidents analysis, stamina management,
precautionary measures of COVID-19, fire prevention, electrical
safety, safety policy, public safety, safety induction course,
safety enhancement training, working procedures under adverse
weather conditions, emergency response procedures, protection
gear, safety awareness of office and project sites). To enrich the
working knowledge of our employees, we provided training on
various topics (such as introduction training relating to contract
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management, recovery of losses due to COVID-19, changes
in laws, Excavation and Lateral Support preloading test, BIM
related training, Project insurance introduction, Certification
for Labour Relation Officer).
analysis as mentioned before, training courses are provided

Relating to the job hazard

to workers and supervisors who are required to do the high-
risk task identified in the risk assessment report. Furthermore,
The Environmental Officer (EO) will conduct environmental
training, such as induction training sessions and toolbox talks,
for site staff especially new employees, which focuses on major
environmental issues on site which includes a variety of pollution
mitigation measures.

Future Leader (FL) Club

The Group has also put in place a Future Leader (FL) Club
to support employee engagement and internal networking
while also providing opportunities for younger employees to
develop new knowledge and skills. All employees can join the
FL Club on a voluntary basis and participate in various activities
including networking events, movie sessions, and organised
dinners. Events also frequently held include sharing sessions
to allow participants to share their experience, knowledge
and reflections on particular topics. Such activities help newer
members of the Group make connections with other colleagues
while also gaining exposure to others’ experiences and skills.
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During the reporting period, the Group had 81.2% (186
employees) of the total number of employees received training,
and they received 447.3 hours of training (2021/2022: 732.4
hours). The details are as follows:

REHRE - NEE R

B 8H81.2% (186

ZRE)LEREI > MESFEIEINE
1 A447 318 /N (2021720224 ¢ 732.41@ /)
BF) - BREFFIBIT ¢

2022/2023 2021/2022
Percentage of Employee Receiving Training?® FiEE BT DL 2022 / 2023%F 2021, 2022%
By Gender =5l
Male 51 93.3% 82.2%
Female egc 50.0% 70.9%
By Employment Category RIERER
Senior Management SREIEE 100.0% 33.3%
Middle Management/Non-management Professionals HAERE FEBREFEAE 100.0% 100.0%
General/Frontline Staff —RBIERAE 70.5% 79.4%
Overall st 81.2% 79.5%
2022/2023 2021/2022
Average Training Hours?' E I g 2022/ 2023%F 2021 2022%
hours/employee hours/employee
K8 B e EE
By Gender =R
Male Bt 2.3 3.5
Female pog s 1.1 2.7
By Employment Category ZIEEER
Senior Management SREIERE 4.8 1.8
Middle Management/Non-management Professionals HRERE FFERHEAE 6.6 6.7
General/Frontline Staff —f R AE 1.4 3.0
Overall et 2.0 3.3
B Percentage of trained employee = Number of employees received training during the %m&%aﬁ@a@%au@é@i/mﬁ%ﬁﬂ

reporting period / Number of employees at the end of the reporting period.

al Average training hours = Total training hours during the reporting period / Total
number of employees at the end of the reporting period.
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Labour Standards

The Group acquire business practices that respect international
human rights and seek to keep our operations free from any
human rights abuse especially child labour, forced labour and
illegal labour. Our commitment to operating with respect for
human rights. The Group also commits to running the business
while respecting human rights by establishing a comprehensive
internal guideline of employment which prevents having child
labour, illegal immigrants or workers from being on-site:

1. Human resources and administrative officers inspect and
take a copy of the original of the Hong Kong identity
card and/or other documentary evidence of the applicant
showing that he/she is lawfully employable in Hong Kong;

2. The subcontracting agreement contains a clause whereby
subcontractors are required only to hire persons who are
lawfully employable to work on-site and to prevent any
illegal worker entering the site; and

3. The Group evaluate, identify, track and manage the human
rights impacts of our business operations on a regular basis.
If any child or forced labour cases have been identified,
they will be dismissed from work immediately. The Group
will strictly follow the local labour laws and regulations to
handle such cases.

The Group follows all applicable employment and labour laws
and regulations specifically the Employment Ordinance and
section 38A of the Immigration Ordinance. During the reporting
period, to the best of Directors’ knowledge, the Group was
not aware of any non-compliance case relating to child labour,
forced labour and illegal immigrant labour.
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Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that supplier relationships are the key to
consistency and stability in areas such as cutting costs, boosting
efficiency and keeping the supply chain flowing. The suppliers
of goods and services to the Group mainly include:

e  subcontractors;

e suppliers of construction materials mainly provision of
concrete and reinforcing steel bar; and

e machinery and equipment rental service providers.

The Group identifies environmental and social risks of the
supply chain through stringent and systematic supplier/
subcontractor management. The code of conduct adopted by
the Group (the “Code of Conduct”) regulates the conduct of
our employees in the course of their employment. Alongside
with other procurement-related policies and guidelines, we
dedicate to a fair, transparent and competitive procurement
process which requires all employees to observe the highest
standards of business integrity and to comply with relevant laws
and regulations.

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers/subcontractors
which is updated on an ongoing basis and we generally only
select suppliers/subcontractors from such approved suppliers/
subcontractors list for our projects.

In general, suppliers/subcontractors are approved and selected
after considering factors such as safety performance, costs,
technical expertise, financial background, past performance,
reliability and quality of goods, workmanship and services. Also,
we will take priority to consider selecting suppliers that provide
more sustainable products and services over other suppliers
given that they share the same business nature as well as the
standard of performance. When supplying the Group with
products and services, suppliers must meet the environmental
protection statutory requirements, other industry requirements
as well as the Group's EMP. For certain projects, our customers
may retain their rights to nominate certain specific suppliers/
subcontractors to fulfil certain parts of the works under the
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relevant contracts. Where our customers nominate a supplier/
subcontractor, the Group generally retains the right to object
to the use of such nominated suppliers/subcontractors with
supporting reasons.

The Group will gauge whether our suppliers/subcontractors
require any corrective or preventive actions to be implemented
on or should be removed from the approved list of suppliers/
subcontractors, by assessing their performance at least once a
year.

For further information regarding the Group’s measures in
relation to environmental compliance, safety and quality
control of subcontractors, please refer to the sections headed
"Environmental Aspects’’, ""Health and Safety’ and "'Product
Responsibility” in the Report.

During the reporting period, the Group had a total of 1,724
(2021/2022: 1,625) suppliers and subcontractors, and 1,722
(2021/2022: 1,625) of them were located in Hong Kong with 2
(2021/2022: 0) being based in the People’s Republic of China.

Product Responsibility

Product quality and safety are the basis on which the Group
stands. The Group recognises the significance of quality in
construction and maintenance and it is the prime objective
of the Group to commit with due integrity and efficiency to
discharge its contractual duties relative to the quality of work
as stated in its quality policy. The Group aims to attain a strong
understanding of customers’ demands and implements a clear
control system to perpetually heighten the competitiveness
of our services. The Group promotes among all employees
the awareness and importance of quality and calls for the co-
operation, participation and leadership in achieving the Group
objectives.
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Quality management

mEEH

Being committed to continuously improving quality and ZAEEBRNFEXNSHRFHN—BEEERE
safety of services for customers, the Group has established a 2R ERVEANEEETE RS @ HL
formal quality management system which is certified to be in  FREFAEISO 9001:2015 (BEER R R
compliance with the requirements of ISO 9001:2015 (Quality & - A&EENABEEEZES2([BEBEZ
Management System). The Group also implements a project ®J)FTEHEEHIEEELE:E - EFEIL
quality plan for all Projects for Hong Kong Housing Authorities #t¥f%%® - MABEERFITHN=AFTELEE
("HKHA") jobs with three main quality objectives targeting EBIiZE ' LWFEAHOERBEBREZERETLER
safety, quality on materials and workmanship to meet contract IRFDHIERRE - NEBBITHE IEH
requirements, meeting requirements of the MASS system /AT °

from HKHA. The quality control measures are implemented as

follows.

Phase Quality Control Measures

B R BEEEGIETE

Tendering Phase e For all building construction projects, identify and assess requirements of
RIERER potential clients during tender phase to confirm the Group has the relevant

Project Planning Phase

HERERE R

resources, capacities and procedures in place to fulfil requirements outlines in
the tender documentation.

HAEEFREHEEMS - RREBERANEERAMEETPHNER - AERAELE
EBREER - e REFMEREXHRE -

Identify resources with the adequate competences and qualifications, and form
the project team in a timely manner to ensure adequate project preparation in
line with client requirements.

BRIEHRHE N RERNER - Y REKRIIAE BN - BREEEBEREUNTAE
FES -

Place material orders early, put in place required contracts and acquire necessary
trade workers and machinery resources for the works or projects to start in line
with the project timeline.

RETEYHETE - STUMBESHALEEIIENIB B U ER T A R E R ARG
SIEBERRERK -

Once contract is confirmed, publish the contract award notification and hold a
tender handover meeting to inform project team members about key project
information and immediate actions, with a particular focus on early procurement
requirements.

RERELE  NEEORTEA  URTRERESE  UASEAEEKERRH
TEBEEEHNARTE  LEREMNMEFREART -

Conduct meetings with project team members to discuss the relevant
contract and resources issues to ensure the project team is well resources
based on specific project needs and has a good understanding of the project
requirements. Such meetings will also allow to discuss the project scope and the
proposed approach for the tender.

BEEBKERTEE  WHEEAORERME - URRFRERERERIESTEIRA
BREGRRER - URMTHEERT - ZF G2 MEATARTHEEERERE
EMEETE -
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Quality Control Measures

BEEHER

Project Implementation Phase

HEEERR

Completion Phase

TIRR

The project manager will ensure that surveys are conducted in any existing
foundations underground services and adjacent structures to determine their
condition before commencement of works. The project manager will also
coordinate and oversee the preparation of any early submissions such as site
layout plans, method statements, quality plans, inspection and test plans and
temporary works design.

18 B R EASHRREMIRA HE TR LA EBE L RG2S TR UNEER
AR - BB IR TR A M E R MR R RIS RN EGER I hE &
258 BB ROBIEF S KRR TIRIEE) 2 RE -

Prepare detailed documentation such as plans and/or schedules to support
the communication with approved suppliers and subcontractors for required
materials, trade workers and machinery.

SEFASME - DINGHEI R, HSRR - AERLATR R - T A RS R R A e
ES R

Review requisitions and quotations submitted by suppliers and subcontractors to
ensure proper control before and upon delivery of such materials, services and
machinery to the project sites.

HRHER LD BRERRNERGERRE - UWBRAZSYH - REIEENXIEIRR
AR B ROR AT (E R B -

Conduct regular site review meetings with suppliers/subcontractors to review the
works progress, resources arrangements, project health, safety and security, etc.

HER D BRBTERMBREREE  UERITREE  BRTH  HARRE -

LERRLE -

Identify, evaluate and control any risks related to job hazards or potential
hazards. Ensure relevant measures are in place to reduce such risks to acceptable
levels.

BA - FHEY EREAER TEEEREERENAR - RO EERBER - UE
B2 ZERRE R HKF o

Conduct regular inspections of works and safety, health, environmental and
quality (“SHEQ") to ensure that the completed works conform to agreed client
requirements, and that the site performance conforms to the Group SHEQ
policy, legal and other requirements.

ETEHIRERRZE  BF RELEERR((Z2 R RREREE))  UER
EXKIREER-—BRABNEFPATE  MMMBRRREAEEERZE  BF  ®’R
NREEWR  EREEMBBRE -

Any aspects that are found to be non-compliant or defective will be resolved as
soon as possible, or otherwise will be physically identified by markings, tags or
notices or, where practical, segregated to prevent any unintended use.
EAIRERASTERNARENFTESERHR - TRKEBERERL BB
(BAITTRY ) D BRIAZZER) - CABT IHEMEE A (ER -
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Complaint handling

The Group has formulated various customer complaints
and feedback handling procedures in order to enhance the
effectiveness of complaint handling and quality assurances. To
the best of our directors’ knowledge, the Group did not receive
any official complaints from its customers during the reporting
period.

Health and safety, product return, intellectual property
protection, advertising and labelling

Health and safety of workers and the surrounding public of our
projects is crucial to us. Therefore, the Group has made a great
effort to manage and have developed stringent and detailed
internal policies and procedures to maintain health and safety
for all relevant stakeholders. For further information, please
refer to the section headed “Health and Safety” in the Report.
On the other hand, the Group's business does not involve any
research and development, product manufacturing, packaging
and labelling activities. Besides, the Group does not rely on
marketing or advertising heavily. and respects intellectual
property rights fully. Being a well-known brand in the industry,
the Group has registered for the trademark of our principal
brand name “Wecon"” in Hong Kong. In addition, the Group has
1 domain name which is material to the business, namely “wecon.
com.hk”, for which the Group is the registered proprietor. To
the best of Directors’ knowledge, the Group is not aware of any
material non-compliance relating to customer health and safety,
product return, intellectual property rights, advertising and
labelling involving the Group.

Employee and customer data protection and privacy
Confidentiality of employee and customer information are of
great importance to the Group. The Group strives to protect
the privacy of its customers, business partners and employees
in the collection, processing and use of their business or
personal data. The Group’s Employee Management Handbook
can provide more guidance on the handling of confidential
information.
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According to our Employee Management Handbook, the
data protection policy requires our employees to keep all
information and matters relating to the Group’s business and
affairs confidential and to not disclose them to any unauthorised
third parties or other employees within the Group who do not
have access to such confidential information. This obligation
to maintain confidentiality remains valid after the cessation
of employment of the relevant employees. In addition, all
documents and information belonging to the Group that any
employee possess should be returned to the Group upon the
end of their employment with the Group.

Non-compliance to such policies may lead to disciplinary action,
and in serious cases will be treated as gross misconduct. Any
personal data, including employees and customers’ personal
data should also be dealt with meticulously.

The Group strictly follows the laws and regulations relating
to product responsibility. During the reporting period, to the
best of Directors’ knowledge, the Group was not aware of any
significant non-compliance case in this regard.

Anti-corruption

The Group strongly advocates for our core values, which are
honesty, integrity and fair competition to be upheld by all
employees. All new employees are briefed thoroughly about
anti-corruption and our Code of Conduct. Our employees are
required to respect the Code of Conduct when dealing with any
matters related to acceptance and offer of advantages, conflicts
of interest, misuse of official position, company assets and

information.

B  HEREREE
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Other than the internal anti-bribery and corruption guidelines
as stipulated in the code of conduct, the Group has in place an
anti-fraud policy to provide guidelines for fraud risk evaluation,
anti-fraud measures, handling of suspected fraud and fraud
identification. In addition, a whistleblowing policy has been
established as a communication channel for employees
to report concerns relating to ethical business or personal
conduct, accounting and financial matters, integrity and other
misconduct, or maltreatment by other staff members after
making a genuine complaint. Employees are welcome to send
their concerns via mail or email. The Group also protects the
whistle-blower from being dismissed or mistreated even if his
or her concerns are not justified ultimately. The Board and the
Audit Committee have the responsibility to monitor and review
the implementation of the policy and to advise on investigations
into complaints. The Group has also implemented appropriate
and effective internal controls at different business processes to
prevent and detect fraudulent activities.

During the reporting period, as a form of anti-corruption
training, the Group has disseminated links to a comprehensive
set of training webinar provided by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC"). the training contents
included introduction of the relevant ordinance and analysing
common corruption risks and ethical issues in construction
industry. It was instructed to spend 90 minutes on the training.
6 members of the Group attended the training.

The Group strictly abides by the laws and regulations relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in Hong
Kong, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. During
the reporting period, to the best of Directors’ knowledge,
the Group was not involved in any material non-compliance
incidents or material litigation, prosecution, disciplinary actions
or complaints relating to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or
money laundering.
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Community

Community Investment

The Group has been devoted in the community investment
in the areas of poverty alleviation, education support,
environmental protection, social charity and encourages
employees to repay the society with pragmatic actions such as
volunteering and working through collaboration with strategic
giving as well as capacity-building initiatives to try and create a
positive impact in the community. We believe that community
contribution is essential for sustainable development as it
helps to establish a harmonious society and strive to develop
long-term relations with stakeholders based on mutual trust,
respect and integrity. The Group is proud to have attained the
“Caring Company Logo” for five consecutive years. On top of
that, we were also awarded the “Merit Corporates Award” for

participating in the TWGHSs Flag Day 2022.

A Caring Company Logo Award 2023
R BRI 52023
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A Merit Corporates Award in the TWGHs Flag Day 2022
RE=[TEHEH20228FKEBRE
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Caring for the neighbourhood

We make sure to build good relations with the local community
near our project sites especially considering the possible
repercussions of our construction projects for the surrounding
environments. We are proactive in communicating with the local
community to understand and respond to their concerns, which
has also recognised our efforts. To support our community
through the pandemic, we distributed anti-pandemic supplies
to our employees and visitors to help mitigating the risks of
transmission of COVID-19.

Contribution to society

We support the communities we serve. The Group aims to
provide opportunities that support youth development through
their donations made such as to Hong Kong Lo Pan Kwong
Yuet which helps and encourage potential young people to
join the development of the construction industry. In addition,
the Group contributes to the health sector through their
participation and donations such as establishing a golf team
for the Thalassemia Charity Golf tournament, which focuses on
supporting children suffering Thalassaemia. We also donated
for the Maggie's Cancer Caring Centre and AIA Group Charity
Golf Day 2023, to support cancer patients. To help raise funds
for children with rare diseases to access life-changing medical
care, the Group participated in the Lifewire Run. As a value-
adding community member, we also participated in the Lo Pan
Rice Campaign to show our care to low-income families by
distributing “Lo Pan” meal boxes to them for free. With regards
to our contribution to human rights issues, we have chosen to
donate to the Agape International Missions, which aims to put
an end to human trafficking. Lastly, the Group participated in
the Shoreline Clean-up Day 2022 as we view environmental
conservation as one of our top priorities with regards to the
environmental issues.

The Group shall keep abreast latest trends and best practices
related to environmental protection. We also encourage
employees to actively participate in community and voluntary
work to further the benefits of local communities and render
assistance to the needy.
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During the reporting period, the Group donated and supported
HK$134,000 (2021/2022: approximately HK$109,000) for charities.
The Group strives to give back to the society, which led to our
increase in total funds donated for the reporting period. The
details are as follows:

Event

BB

B  HEREREE

RIS R - ARERRSEIBI I REXK
134,000/ 72021/ 20224F = #7109,00078 7T ) °
REBH OB E - BUFRREEFETIEE)
REFBREEFT EH - BEFFBNT ¢

Resource Contributed
Money contribution (HKD)/
Activity hours (hours)/
Participants

ERERBR(ER),
SEERE (N SEE
Sponsorship for Thalassaemia Charity Golf 2023, $28,000
organised by Children’s Thalassaemia Foundation
BhihisEMmMEE S RRE2023
HitPEENREES
Donation for Thalassaemia Charity Golf for Tournament 2022, $20,000

organised by Children’s Thalassaemia Foundation
BEtPEEMBEE S RRE2022
mitPEE MR EES T
Donation and Participation for TWGHs Flag Day 2022
organised by Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
BB RS ERE = REEA2022
HRE= T
Donation to TWGH for Inauguration of the Board of Directors
BRYRE=RESRHBHE
Participation in Lifewire Run 2022
organised by Lifewire Foundation Limited
S HLifewire Run 2022(Z ¥ « AT )
M e MRBREECARAREN
Donation for Agape International Missions
organised by Hong Kong Foundation for Charities

BHEERKRET
FiHong Kong Foundation for Charities ¥ ¥t

Sponsorship for Maggie’s Cancer Caring Centre and AIA Group Charity Golf Day 2023,

organised by Maggie's Cancer Caring Centre and AIA Group
EHHBEERBETORIABREEESHERRE2023

F SAEERE R R P O ROR FRR B o
Donation to Hong Kong Lo Pan Kwong Yuet Tong
BHERBIMERE
Lo Pan Rice Campaign

Organised by The Hong Kong Construction Association

BIUMRITH
HEEZERS I
Shoreline Clean-up Day 2022
Organised by The Hong Kong Construction Association

BEAERE2022
mEBRERE TN

4 Participants /£ %

$5,000
40 Hours //|NEF

$10,000
23 Participants /2 (1%

57.5 Hours //|\B§

$20,000

$35,000

$1,000

$15,000
15 hours //\EF

14 Participants /28
70 Hours //)\E§
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A Construction Industry Volunteering programme

BEER TR E

BTesTH

__’wﬂmﬂ-'ﬁﬁluntaars

A Lifewire Run A Shoreline Clean-up Volunteering
i BREBEETED
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)

Section/Statement

BiR - ERERHRERESIRETRSI

Page number

TEEHE BEE - —REERBRARES (M) B EVN
Subject Area A. Environmental
ETEHEAFRE
Aspect A1 Emissions
EBEATHHY
General Disclosure Information on: Environmental 86-92
—RIEE (a) the policies; and Management; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations Emissions

that have a significant impact on the issuer RIREE R

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRBERIORERBHR  mMKRLHHNEES AF

MEEERY I ELESH

(@) EX: R

(b) BTHEHITABBEAZENMEMERLERNE

¥ e

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Emissions 92-95
BRERERAL data. B

PER R R K ARRE BB -
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Emissions 96-97
BEENIEEA1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where BER

KPI A1.3
BRAMIERAL3

KPI A1.4
BREMIERA14

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BE(BE) REEREZ(EE2)REREHNE (A
Mt E) R(MER)ZE(WAGES B - BIERE
HE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FEXEEEZEYRE (L E) R(MER)ZE
(WMABESEMN - BERETE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FMEXEEEEDERS(UEAE) R(NER)EE
(MIAGESEL - FERBAE)

BIZRBRAF

No significant
hazardous wastes
produced
WHREFEANEGE
REZEY)
Emissions

e

Not applicable
TEA

99
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)

TREE - EE - —RBERBERERES(MEE)

Section/Statement

EH O Hm

Page number
EON

KPI' A1.5
BREMIERALS

KPI A1.6
BREMIERALG

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

RRFTET B E B R R BERZE B R RIE &
B o

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

Rl IR A E R EEERYN IR - RAERAET SO
FERRAERZE A EMERN I -

Aspect A2 Use of Resources

BEEA2E R H
General Disclosure

—RIEE

KPI A2.1
BB MIERA2.1

KPI A2.2
BRAMIERA2.2

KPI A2.3
BRAMIERA2.3

KPI A2.4
HREMIERA2.4

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BRERER(BIFER - K EEMERM ) BEEK -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s)
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

RERESWEER SEEER(NE - mE0h)8
REUTETERFAE) MEE(NABEESA
BIERBE) ©

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
BRKERTE(WAGESEN - BERETH)
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

PRI BEIRE AN B IR R ARERZE B ZMK
)28 o

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

Fii st SR EE KR LRI BRI RE - PTET LAY KR
BABRIRERZS BIEMRIRE PR
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Environmental
Management; and
Emissions
RIREE - R
Environmental
Management; and
Emissions

RIFER - LB

Environmental
Management; and
Use of Resources

RIBER
KRB JRE A
Use of Resources

BIREM

Use of Resources

BIREM

Environmental
Management; and
Use of Resources

RRERE
REREEA

Environmental
Management; and
Use of Resources

RIREE

REIREM

91, 94-95

91, 98-100

103-104

103

105

91, 103-104

91, 104-105
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Section/Statement

Page number

TELGE  EH - —REEREEERIEEMED B HR
KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products It is not relevant to Not applicable
BRERIEERA2.5 (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per  the Group's business TEA

unit produced. I T B AR R [ 25

R mATAEEMENRE (A E) R(ER)E 18R

HEEMEE -
Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
BEHASRERXARER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant Environmental 91, 105-106
—RiEE impacts on the environment and natural resources. Management; and

BRBTAHBRERRAEREREAZENBE © The Environment and

Natural Resources
REER  MRIRN

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities The Environment and 106
BRERIERA3 on the environment and natural resources and the Natural Resources

actions taken to manage them. RERRAER

LR EDHRTERRRE RN ERNTE R DRI

ERBMTENTE -
Aspect A4 Climate Change
BEAIRIREE
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of Climate Change 107-112
—REE significant climate-related issues which have Rzt

impacted and those which may impact, the issuer.

ERRRREHOERAEGHBETAELYENE

RRRAAFEEHBE -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues Climate Change 107-112
BAREMIEIZAL1 which have impacted, and those which may impact, Ei3 Al

the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

BB AR GHETAEEZENEARKEH

EE REEBBBFENTE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1) Section/Statement Page number
TELE  BH - —REEREEERIEEMED BE 'R
Subject Area B. Social

FTEHEBAME

Employment and Labour Practice

ERERETER

Aspect BT Employment

EEB1ER

General Disclosure* Information on: Employment 113-116

— R E (a) the policies; and EfE

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BRAHI R E  BERE - TS R F
Ee  Zlb - IR REMAS RN

(@) BER: &
(b) BFHBTABEARENHBEEIEREARNE
Ko
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type Employment 117
BRENIEEB1 (for example, full- or part-time), age group and EH

geographical region.

ZIER - ERER (DI EEERE) - FicdRn kit

EENHIEEEE -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment 117
BRENIEZEB1.2 geographical region. EfE

EEZMLR - Fiedn MtREDNEBRKLE -
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Section/Statement

Page number

TELGE  EH - —REEREEERIEEMED B Hi HR
Aspect B2 Health and Safety
EEB2RERZE
General Disclosure Information on: Health and Safety 118-120
—RBE (@) the policies; and BEEEZE

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.

FRRHEZE2TIHEREMREEER 2B ELEE

B -

(@) BE: &

b) BTHBETABEAXENREERIERNE

K

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Health and Safety 121
B ENIEEB2.1 occurred in each of the past three years including EREZ 2

the reporting year.

RBE=F(BRERESFE)FFEIIEREMIETH

N 9533
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety 121
BRENIEEB2.2 EATHBERTIEAE - fEERkia
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Health and Safety 118-120
B ENIEEB2.3 measures adopted, and how they are implemented EREZE

and monitored.

MR B R R R E T 25 - AREEHRTR

ERPE -
Aspect B3 Development and Training
EBEB3%RERE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and Development and 122-123
—RIRE skills for discharging duties at work. Description of Training

training activities. R R

BRARIMERET TIEBE M A B MR - 8

AIEESD -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender Development and 124
BEENIEEB3. and employee category. Training

BURRESERESNTIEER DL » R I
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per Development and 124
BARERIEEB3.2 employee by gender and employee category. Training

RIERI R EBERIE S - BREETKEINFIEE R M B

2o
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Section/Statement

Page number

TELE  BH - —REEREEERIEEMED BE HR
Aspect B4 Labour Standards
[BEB4% TR
General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards 125
—REE (@) the policies; and AT R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child or forced labour.

BRI IFETaaam ST

(@) BE: &

b) BTHBETAREAXENREERZIERNE

K

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Labour Standards 125
B ENIEEB4A practices to avoid child and forced labour. TR

R S RIS B R ME LA o T GRS T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Labour Standards 125
BRENIEEBL.2 practices when discovered. BT AR

R IRB R EARER B BB TR 28 o
Operating Practices
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
EEBSHEH#ER
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social Supply Chain 126-127
—RIKE risks of the supply chain. Management

ERHEENRERESRRER - TR
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain 127
B E B IEBS5.1 iR E S HEESE - Management

HEREE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain 126-127
AR ENIBIEBS.2 suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices Management

are being implemented, and how they are HEsEE R

implemented and monitored.

it B IS A EEMED - mERTEREHRM

EEEE - ARABEEHINRTRERITE
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supply Chain 126-127
B EIEIZEBS.3 environmental and social risks along the supply Management

chain, and how they are implemented and HEEE R

monitored.
i AR AR EEE FEIRE A IRIE Rt R AE
Bl - ARAABIITRERZFENNTTE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BiE g8 REARRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)

Section/Statement

Page number

TELGE  EH - —REEREEERIEEMED B HR
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Supply Chain 126
BRENIEEBS4 environmentally preferable products and services Management

when selecting suppliers, and how they are HEEER

implemented and monitored.

A EREHERREREZARRER RRBENE

Bl - IARIBRERIT RERZEEBOINTE -
Aspect B6é Product Responsibility
[EEIB6E & F
General Disclosure Information on: Product 127-131
—RiEE (@) the policies; and Responsibility

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations EmAE

KPI B6.1
BREMIERB61

KPI B6.2

AR ENIEEB6.2

KPI B6.3
BARAMIERB6.3

KPI B6.4
AR ENIEEB6.4

KPI B6.5
BARRMIERB6.S

that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
FHEMRHEERMBRENERELZS  BS  RE8EKL
TLFEEE AR AR ER
(@) BER: &
b) EBTHEHTABEAZENHEMERILERNE
%o
Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
CEUEERERARTALEEERIEHMAR K
BB -
Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.
IR B an MRS VIR AR BB A R B SITTX -
Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
fih B N RB A E B ANED -
Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
B 2% E BIE REMBBIRT °
Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.
FUUE B E ERMRIE RSB - ARMBEESNITRE
BRHE-

It is not relevant to
the Group's business
1 TH BN 62 B 25 75
il
Product
Responsibility
EmAR
Product
Responsibility
EmBE
Product
Responsibility
EmAMR
Product
Responsibility
EmEE

BIZRBRAF

Not applicable
TEA

130

130

128-129

130-131
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B +ERERERE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)

Section/Statement

Page number

TELE  BH - —REEREEERIEEMED BE HR
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption

BEB7/RES

General Disclosure Information on Anti-corruption 131-132

—RIRE

KPI B7.1
AR ENIEERT.1

KPI B7.2
BARAMIERBT.2

KPI B7.3
BARMAMIERBT.3

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

BRI LB - 9% - BEFRARE

(@) BR: R

b) BTHBETAREAXENBEERIERNE
Ko

Number of concluded legal cases regarding

corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its

employees during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases.

R EHRHETARE EERLIBEEENEISTH

AARMHIBIE MEFEAER -

Description of preventive measures and

whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

Py i R B WARF - U RBBRITRERS

& e

Description of anti-corruption training provided to

directors and staff.

fmESER B TIRENRESHE -
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RES

No case discovered

RERER

Anti-corruption
RES

Anti-corruption
k&S

Not applicable
A

131-132

131-132



Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) (Note 1)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B  HEREREE

Section/Statement

Page number

TELGE  EH - —REEREEERIEEMED B HR
Community
HE
Aspect B8 Community Investment
EEBSH ERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand Community 133-134
—REE the needs of the communities where the issuer Investment
operates and to ensure its activities take into MtEIEE
consideration the communities’ interests.
BN R2ERTRETALERELRT2MNE
REFBEHEEEHLRMEABE -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Community 134
FASRE MISTEBS.1 environmental concerns, labour needs, health, Investment
culture, sport). HEIEE
FIERER(NEE RREFE HIHTK @&
B Xt 85)-
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the Community 135
BRENIEEBS.2 focus area. Investment
EZIBEMBAER(NE ERERE) - HERE

Note 1: All general disclosures and KPIs under “Subject Area A. Environmental” and “Subject
Area B. Social” are “comply or explain” provisions which set out in the ESG Guide.

M BB —MRIRE

BIZRBRAF

TRBEBARS | R EHER AL
BEDRE g RERREE
B EC o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHERE

EY:

To the shareholders of Wecon Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Wecon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 155 to 243, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

HARERER

REBERMANBEEHE - BREZFHEERMN
BRAMGRAMBERRPRAERNEE
BN EZBRGAMBRREEZXFEA
KB ER - M eSS EHEBE
RER - TXHARMNFELTEOFEE

ZEEE .

B BT AR EEHETRF A SR
KAFAENE M —SHREANET - BIEEZ
FHRBRERMAEOERL - At - RN
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RENFERRAER TR OBZIEF - &
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EhE o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 HE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
HRERER

Accounting for construction contracts

BREENHEHEE

RREELEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERNERTENMEEHRERSE

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group's
revenue and costs recognised for construction
contracts amounted to approximately HK$560.7
million and HK$542.4 million, respectively.

HE2023F3A3MHILFEE - SEEBMEEAHEZRN
s M AR B4 A560.7 B BB T M54 A8 & BT ©

The Group's revenue from construction contracts
is recognised over time using the output method,
based on direct measurements of the value
transferred by the Group to the customers with
reference to the certified value of work performed up
to the end of the reporting period and the estimated
total revenue for the contracts entered into by the
Group. The Group's contract costs are recognised
when work is performed, together with any provision
for expected onerous contracts.

AR BERERBEIEEHREHRE TR TIEHNRAE
B BEREERIAOZEHRAREMERETEFZ
BEMNEEE X EEENERAVKRSETNEMAE L

EHERERER o BEREENAHKRARETIERER
EREHIE R A R EEL R -

148 WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022/2023

We performed the following procedures in relation to
the recognition of revenue and costs for construction
contracts:

BPEMITATERF - AERZES O E EAK

e performing analysis of revenue, gross profit
trend and their fluctuations, and cost structure
of construction contracts;

s ENBEREKE - AREBESHHRA
EREETHNT

e obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
the Group's process and control over contract
revenue and contract cost recognition and
budget estimation;

TRRYRHE BEREYHENREREHKARERIA
KIBEALETRORAR BRIz

e testing the calculation of the revenue and profit
recognised from construction contracts;

RIRZER Q) 2 RS Mos M EEHE

e checking if the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation
agreed with the customers’ latest architect
certificates;
REBANEEEE T2 ENER BTP R EE

AEERS 8



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
HRELEE

Accounting for construction contracts (continued)

BEENNEEE (E)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

BRRESLSEER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMNERTENAEERRERER

The Group’s revenue and costs for contract
works are quantitatively significant to the Group's
consolidated financial statements as a whole and the
recognition of contract revenue and profit relies on
management’s estimate of the final outcome of each
contract, which involves the exercise of significant
management judgement, particularly in forecasting
the costs to complete a contract, in valuing contract
variations, claims and potential liquidated damages
and in estimating the provision for onerous contracts.

EoEMNTRRKERKAY BREGEMHRE
EEEEEA MatBalafEREEE
BEANRRERNMG B RITREEREEH
CHBSBAISEX A AMAA - BB HER] » BRK
I EREREEBE KRR -

08 R

iﬂﬂ*\fﬁtﬁl

mﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ@mﬂ

E K fhErEE S
The accounting policies, accounting judgements
and estimates and disclosures for the recognition
of revenue from construction contracts are included
in notes 3, 4 and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BRREEA VMBS RIEER - ST HE R
FHAR BN G E M RAMES - 4R6 -

e discussing with management and the respective
project teams about the progress of major
projects and the estimates and assumptions
adopted in the forecast of contract costs,
including estimated costs to completion,
assessment of potential liquidated damages
for major contracts and provision for onerous

contracts;

HEEBLRZHRAESREIERENEREBR

ARFERIG KA ERAN G MRR - 8FR%T
BRI - TEAONBEECBRERENER
BRI B ERHE

e checking the supporting documents of the
budgets on a sampling basis, which included
sub-contracting contracts, material purchase
contracts and price quotations; and

AT AZHBENZAXS  EERI 84
W MRIRBAOLEE &

e comparing last year's budget against current
year's budget or actual costs incurred for major
contracts on a sampling basis.

DD AREFNBEEREFENRERTES
MELNBERKRAEITLE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 HE RS

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

ESHAREMBRRARENER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 HE RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 HE RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Yuk Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

29 June 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meaEnRAEMEERAR

Year ended 31 March 2023

B ZE2023F3A31BIFE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BsE THERT FHET
REVENUE & 6 869,032 1,152,691
Cost of sales B4 &5 BN (830,011) (1,099,041)
Gross profit EF 39,021 53,650
Other income and gains E A A e W am 6 13,242 7,286
Administrative and other operating THREMEERY
expenses, net FEE (45,403) (44,251)
Finance costs B # R AR 7 (180) (129)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT R 8 6,680 16,556
Income tax FTiSHt 11 (733) (2,347)
PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE ZxAAl#EREE AEL
INCOME FOR THE YEAR FRBIRZEBA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY bl
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 5,947 14,209
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 7 GlfEsisH A FE(L
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BREF
COMPANY 13
— Basic and diluted —E RS HKO.7 cents HK1.8 cents
0.7l 1.8
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

31 March 2023
2023F3H31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B s FET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - B MEE 14 9,271 10,272
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 7,021 8,315
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFAEBRNERHEE
through profit or loss 16 13,383 4,200
Prepayments, deposits and other  FBfIFIE « &g KA MBI
receivables TR 18 4,123 5,921
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 33,798 28,708
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Contract assets and trade BREEKREHREWHIEA
receivables 17 251,761 323,001
Prepayments, deposits and other T 5RIE » @ R E MR
receivables A 18 57,013 42,251
Financial assets at fair value RAREFABRNEREE
through profit or loss 16 13,735 15,581
Pledged deposits EHFR 19 34,190 34,190
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEED 19 64,226 88,500
Total current assets TREEELARE 420,925 503,523
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and retention payables B RNFIANENTRES 20 129,115 185,006
Other payables and accruals H b FE < 5/ I8 R FERT B 21 35,970 52,430
Lease liabilities HE&E 15 4,153 3,740
Tax payable JER A IE 455 368
Total current liabilities FREEEEE 169,693 241,544
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEETE 251,232 261,979
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERABERE
LIABILITIES 285,030 290,687
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R
31 March 2023
2023 3A31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B s FET FAET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBAEE 22 618 846
Lease liabilities HEAaE 15 2,566 4,153
Total non-current liabilities EREBEBHERE 3,184 4,999
NET ASSETS EEFE 281,846 285,688
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to equity ARAFERFTEAELER
holders of the Company
Issued capital BEITIRA 23 8,000 8,000
Reserves G 24 273,846 277,688
Total equity R 281,846 285,688
Tsang Ka Yip Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry
BxE B
Director Director
BE BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e ER R

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE2023F3A31HIEFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RAREREEAER
Shares held
Issued Share Merger  under share Retained Total
capital premium* reserve*  award plan* profits* equity
RERH
REsta
BRITRE R RE AiHEE  FEERG REEA aER
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
iz TR TR TET TEL ThRL ThL
(note 24(i))  (note 24i))
(Wrzz240)  (HEEE240i)
At 1 April 2021 #0214 R1A 8,000 76,767 18,900 (996) 178,344 281,015
Profit and total comprehensive FREFREEHRA
income for the year g - - = = 14,209 14,209
Final 2021 dividend declared BERRH021FRE 12 - (9,536) - - - (9,536)
At 31 March 2022 and R02%F3A318 K
1 April 2022 20224645818 8,000 67,231 18,900 (99¢) 192,553 285,688
Profit and total comprehensive FREFRZERA
income for the year pke| = = = S 5947 5,947
Final 2022 dividend declared BERRH02FRE = (9,536) = = = (9,536)
Purchase of shares held under share B B 25 k(7 1B 267
award plan kel 24i) L = - (253) - (253)
At 31 March 2023 R2023%53A431H 8,000 57,695 18,900 (1,249) 198,500 281,846

@ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$273,846,000 (2022: * ZEHEEEDRERBEAUBEMRIAEZTANNESHEE
HK$277,688,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 273,846,000 7T (20224F : 277,688,000/ L) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

Year ended 31 March 2023
HZE2023F3A3MBILFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
ks THET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZHRERETRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R 55 A e A 6,680 16,556
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs BARSR AR 180 129
Interest income FLEWA 6 (1,712) (225)
Other income HABUA = (15)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HER AR B ABRNEE
fair value through profit or loss, net BE 2 Was  F5E 6 (1,468) (1.176)
Dividend income from equity EAR B ABRRERE
investments at fair value through profit ZRRBIA
or loss 6 (1,143) (1,173)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair RARBEFABRNERHEE
value through profit or loss, net ZAREEE  FE 8 635 629
Foreign exchange gains Rl G (3) &)
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WERERETE
equipment 2,035 2,175
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 5,639 5,155
Impairment of contract assets, net BREERE  FH 426 62
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of B 5 EWEIERE, CRE
trade receivables, net Bol) - JEEE 8 352 (14)
11,621 22,094
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets and & #& E & B 5 EUFIE
trade receivables B, (3En) 70,462 (62,673)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and  TAfFRIA - & & R E AL B GRIA
other receivables e (9,405) (19,829)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B EMREMEMNRE S
retention payables #n, Cld) (55,891) 41,248
Decrease in other payables and accruals ~ EAbRELS 3B K AT & AR (16,460) (15,736)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #&&EENFE,(FTH)EE 327 (34,89¢)
Interest portion of lease payments MENFKAEEH (143) (96)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) BRE(BR)EBFEH (874) 6,136
Net cash flows used in operating KERBMAReREFHE
activities (690) (28,856)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER
Year ended 31 March 2023
B ZE2023F3A31BILFE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
L TFH T FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Loans to subcontractors BT HBERENER (16,488) (9,056)
Repayment of loans to subcontractors DBEERIER 12,929 7,387
Interest received BB 1,712 225
Purchases of items of property, plant and BE®E - BEKEEEE
equipment (1,034) (3,211)
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BEZEARBETAEBZASE
through profit or loss HE (23,865) (15,574)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEZ AR B ABENEE
at fair value through profit or loss BEZFTSHIE 17,364 15,949
Dividends received from equity WERB R AR B AR 2 RiE
investments at fair value through profit &K E
or loss 1,143 1,173
Increase in non-pledged time deposits ~REERRIBEZR=(EAN
with original maturity of more than FEHE 38 T HATE B 0
three months when acquired (5,215) -
Decrease in pledged deposits AT TR D - 8,003
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing ~ EEBAE(FTA)BERE
activities bk (13,454) 4,896
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZHARERERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans HIBITER 10,000 40,000
Repayment of bank loans BEEITER (10,000) (40,000)
Purchase of shares held under share BERERMD R SIS
award plan R% 15 24(ii) (253) —
Interest paid EARFE (37) (33)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRAREH D (5,519) (3,721)
Dividend paid BRRE (9,536) (9,536)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BIE EBIFTAIR S MEFRE (15,345) (13,290)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FmERERER
Year ended 31 March 2023
HZE2023F3A3MALFE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks THET FAT
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH B&RBESZEYWRLFE
EQUIVALENTS (29,489) (37,250)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#H& MRS EEY
of year 88,500 125,748
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JNEEXRE B2 & = 2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FREERASEEY
END OF YEAR 59,011 88,500
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERASEENEHRZDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances & RIRITAEER 27,948 64,884
Non-pledged time deposits A E AT X 36,278 23,616
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in FEMBHRAKRMSZ R e R
the consolidated statement of financial SEEY
position 64,226 88,500
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with W REBERRIAEZR =1
original maturity of more than A H)FEE A E BATF R
three months when acquired (5,215) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated FEReRnERMIIZRE LR
in the consolidated statement of SEEY
cash flows 59,011 88,500
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS HRAR MY AL

31 March 2023
2023F3H31H

162

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 23 March 2018.
The registered address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is located at Room 1801-1802, 18/F.,
Tung Hip Commercial Building, 244-252 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Group's subsidiaries were principally engaged
in the provision of building construction and repair,
maintenance, alteration and addition (“"RMAA") works

services.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company and the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Triple Arch Limited, which was incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").
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20183 H23H - ARFAIRHSHE
AR REREERAR - ARAH
T fift #b 41k A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands ° A2 &R
EENFELEEZMBUNEEREE
F1244-2525% IR 1% B 3 KN B 18121801-
1802% °

ARRB/REREB AT - FA - NEE
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B TR -

EERR  ARRNEEERA R R
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CORPORATE AND GROUP

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

INFORMATION

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R R MR

31 March 2023
2023F3A31H

1. RAREEEEH(E)

BARMELRER

ARRMBAB ZFEWT

Issued ordinary Percentage of equity attributable Principal

Name registration and business share capital to the Company activities
£ SR ERRER L B8 FRAREGEREEDL TEEHR
EERRA
Direct Indirect
B A%
Wecon Holdings (BVI) Limited*  BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
RBREES (EX REER
Wecon Limited Hong Kong HK$2,600,100 - 100  Provision of building
BIBRAR BE 2,600,100/ 7T construction and
maintenance services
RUETRERRERE
Wecon Construction & Hong Kong HK$17,400,000 - 100 Provision of building
Engineering Limited £ 17,400,0007% 7T construction services
BIREERAA RUETRERD
RH Studio Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of building
i 10,000/ 7T information modelling

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst
& Young global network

services

R AR DRARY

* RSB B LRAKEAMEBAIE ML EFAIE
TP BIRR K B T %

BIEZERERATE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S 3R R Y 5

31 March 2023

2023%F3A31H

2.1

164

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. Profit or loss and each component of
other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

BIZRBRAF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M

31 March 2023
2023F3A31H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S 3R R Y 5

31 March 2023

2023%F3A31H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

166

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds

before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a

Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

The revised HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group did
not have any significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS  Sale or Contribution of Assets between

28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'®
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS

9 - Comparative Information®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (the "2020 Amendments”)*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
2022 Amendments”)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS  Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020
Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording with no change
in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers
to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification
overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS
17
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S 3R R Y 5

31 March 2023

2023%F3A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

168

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute
a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA
in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will
be determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in particular
the determination over whether an entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments
also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with
which an entity must comply on or before the reporting
date affect the classification of that liability as current or
non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require
additional disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities
arising from loan arrangements as non-current when it
has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants within
12 months after the reporting period. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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31 March 2023

2023%F3A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

170

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-
mandatory, an effective date for these amendments
is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the
accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with
the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after
the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities
are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and
did not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences for transactions related
to leases. Upon initial application of these amendments,
the Group will recognise deferred tax for all temporary
differences related to leases at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented. During the year,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the
impact of amendments to HKAS 12. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

BIZRBRAF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M

31 March 2023
2023F3A31H

2.3 BHEMEERERNE BB ®R

HEA(E
BB EMFEI2HR(BIIRN)WEE
B EETERIF 125 AR HISIMER
MEE - EETHERRNEELHETRER
BEANHERZENRS - EER
REEME - At BERAUASTRHE
ENERZRERRENAEE(AR
R SH RS M AR IR ) KR AR IR
BE - ZFBFTMN2023F1A1Hk 2
BRABNFERERAEER - LAER
REF2FMHLBRMEBEE RRE
EHEBONRS - MER R EBRNZ
B HERR A H R B N R W R B RO T B =
feas B AR AR ER D (RE ) o o -
ZEER KRR RAREE R RRET
PASNIEZ B R FHERT AR RTRAIER o

AEECRBYITZHERGIMER - B
ERHERRR SN E R ZEEIRLT
PMBEENRELERERAE - RERER
AEERT AR - AEBART25M &
F L BRI R an B RE R B AR S AR RO P
BEERMUEZRNEERIEA - £ A%
BHFESHEMNFI2R(ERTAN) A
FEETT T HARHE - ZFEREMT
SHASEMBERRBUEMEANR
2,

FE$52022/2023 171



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S 3R R Y 5

31 March 2023

2023%F3A31H

172

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022/2023

EREFBEML

AREREEMS2EENTE R HE
TEFRSZE - hEEEMBREERNL
BRREMXMNER - 2AEFEDNE
RHEEEXEBRBNIRINEEN
BEMNETEMHET  HEREGIED
BOERT - AIREEXAENREF
MIHETHRR - TEXKBENTHIHA
RAEEREAZTS - EFFE—RE
EXRRBNAAERIERAMSL2H
ERFETEEXRBEERESRANM
R UREMH2EE HIRERELHE

MEEITE ©

FERMEENAABFEFRTSESH
EEBZEENRSMKEER - E
HREELE TS —RENERM&KE
ERZEENTIH2RERELLEN
mAVEES] ©

AEBEERERRTEBERO[ER
- MEBRHBIFTEAAE - AE
ENRAEI R ARBREERD
ERTAIBREABUR °

R BRERAEXRBERAENAEE
ERBEERAARERERTIAL)
o REBEBBAAREFENE BEX
A ERIER R ABIBRET MR



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
contract assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing
a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis or
reducing balance basis to write off the cost of each item
of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:
Land and buildings Over the shorter of the lease

term and 25 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Machinery and equipment ~ 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis or reducing balance basis over the shorter of the
lease terms or the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Leased buildings ~ Over the lease term

Motor vehicles 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (continued)

(c)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of offices (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of
scanners and copiers that are considered to be of low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
the profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified
or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a "pass-through”

arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but

has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 1.5 years past due. The Group
has rebutted the 90 days past due presumption of default
based on reasonable and supportable information,
including the Group’s credit risk control practices and
the historical recovery rate of financial assets over 90
days past due. However, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised
cost or fair value through profit or loss. A financial liability
is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is held
for trading, is a derivative or is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value with net gains or losses,
including interest expenses, recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Interest expenses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantees contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Contract assets

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer
and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods
or provide service to the customer. A contract asset is
recognised when the Group has the right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer when that right is conditional on
something other than the passage of time.

The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and
have substantially the same characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same type of contracts. Impairment
policy for trade receivables as explained above also applies
to contract assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Shares held under share award plan

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group’s own equity instruments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

* when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

* when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Revenue from the provision of building construction
services and RMAA works services is recognised over time,
using an output or input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service by performance
obligations, because the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced. The output method recognises
revenue by reference to completion of the specific
transaction assessed on the basis of the work certified
up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of
total contract value for each contract. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the actual
costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs for
satisfaction of the services.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to
collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs and
margins for scope of works not included in the original
contract. Claims are accounted for as variable consideration
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
The Group uses the expected value method to estimate
the amounts of claims because this method best predicts
the amount of variable consideration to which the Group
will be entitled.

Revenue from other sources

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources (continued)

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Claims to customers

Claims are amounts that the Group seeks to collect from
the customers as reimbursement for costs not included
in the contract price. The measurement of the amounts
of revenue arising from claims is subject to a high level
of uncertainty and often depends on the outcome of
negotiations. Therefore, judgement is made to determine
whether it is probable that the customers will accept
the claims and to estimate the amount of claims to be
accepted by the customers in order to recognise such
claims as contract revenue.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Accounting for construction contracts

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
has recognised revenue of HK$560,670,000 (2022:
HK$986,696,000) from building construction services.
The Group has primary responsibility to fulfilment of the
contract and quality of the overall work and has discretion
in selecting subcontractors and determining the pricing for
subcontractors. Thus, the Group is acting as the principal
and recognises revenue on a gross basis. The Group's
revenue from construction contracts is recognised over time
using the output method and is measured in accordance
with the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations, which is measured based on
direct measurements of the value transferred by the Group
to the customers with reference to the certified value of
the work performed. The determination of the progress
of the building construction service involves judgements.
The Group has quantity surveyors to periodically measure
the value of work performed for each construction project
and the work performed also certified by the customers’

quantity surveyors.

Budgeted contract costs are prepared by the management
on the basis of contract concluded with and/or quotations
provided by major subcontractors, suppliers or vendors
involved from time to time, the experience of the
management and current market condition. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract costs to
completion, variation orders and contract claims prepared
for each contract work as the contract progresses.
Significant judgement is required in estimating contract
costs to completion, variation works and contract claims
which may have an impact to the total outcome of the
contract and recognition of profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment assessment for contract assets and trade
receivables

The policy for impairment of contract assets and trade
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of recoverability and ageing analysis of contract assets
and trade receivables as well as other quantitative and
qualitative information and the management calculated the
lifetime ECLs based on historical credit loss experience,
and on management’s judgement and assessment of
the forward-looking information. Management applied
judgement and estimates in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, based on the current
creditworthiness, the past collection history and subsequent
settlements of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
provisions may be required. The carrying amount of
contract assets and trade receivables at 31 March 2023 was
HK$251,761,000 (2022: HK$323,001,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their services and has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Construction contracts; and
(b) RMAA

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before

tax.

The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group's profit before tax except that other
income and gains, fair value changes on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, net, depreciation
(unallocated portion), impairment/reversal of impairment
of contract assets and trade receivables, net, finance costs
and unallocated head office and corporate expenses, are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, pledged deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and other unallocated corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. #R&5IBER(E)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities iy oHEE -BEREE
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments BN £ 20234 K 202243 318 Ik
as provided to the Group's key management personnel FREABEERERMEHHREM
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment T AAEEFETEEASRMH
of segment performance for the years ended 31 March BAREER 2R EBERET L0
2023 and 2022 is set out below. S €

Construction contracts RMAA Total
BELH EEREBIR ait

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
2023  02F  02%F  00F  08F  00EF
HK$'000  HK$'000 = HKS$'000  HK$'000 = HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FAL TR FHEL TR TATL

Segment revenue: DEWE
Revenue from external customers RENBEP 2 e 560,670 986,696 ~ 308362 165995 | 869,032 1,152,691
Segment results: DEEE 18,289 53,805 20,732 (155) 39,021 53,650
Other income and gains Efol A\ Rz 13,242 7,286
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair ~ BAREFABRNEBEEL

value through profit or loss, net DRERE 38 (635) (629)
Depreciation (unallocated portion) REXRAEHA) (7,301) (7,034)
Impairment of contract assets, net AREENE  FE (426) (62)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) of B S RYGERERD,/

trade receivables, net (AfE) %8 (352) 14
Finance costs BB (180) (129)
Unallocated head office and corporate RORBHREERR

expenses (36,689) (36,540)
Profit before tax B AR H 6,680 16,556
Income tax expense FEREY (733) (2,347)
Profit for the year FRER 5947 14,209
Segment assets and liabilities PREERER
Segment assets PHEE 229,408 306,607 78,918 63,077 308,326 369,684
Unallocated RAE 146,397 162,547
Total assets BaE 454723 532231
Segment liabilities PEHEE 123,592 204,766 38,920 30835 162,512 235,601
Unallocated AR 10365 10,942
Total labilities BRE 172877 246,543
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
Geographical information

Since over 90% of the Group's revenue was generated
from the sales in Hong Kong and over 90% of the
Group's identifiable non-current assets were located in
Hong Kong, no geographical information in accordance
with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is presented.

Information about major customers
Revenue from each major customer which accounted

for 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year, is
set out below:

5.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P ERR M

31 March 2023
2023F3A31H

rReEsHER(E)

() 9PHPEE BEEREE(E)
B EF
AN E B BiB0% M K K AR
EENHEE - BAEBERBIBIO%H
A HRISEREBEEMNES » R
EIZRE B IS IRE R F85RAL
BLERRHEE R o
EHETEEFHESR

FR - KASTBEPHAREK
H10%HA LIRS E I T -

2023 2022

2023 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Customer A Z2FEA 269,212 121,556
Customer B ZFB 125,682 173,440
Customer C Z2FC 104,669 N/A TEA*
Customer D EZFED N/A FiE R* 345,433
Customer E EFE N/A FER* 159,932
Customer F EZFF N/A 738 F* 156,776

* The corresponding revenues from these customers are not disclosed as

the revenue individually did not account for 10% or more of the Group's
revenue for the year.

B8 52 %5 B 5 4F 7 B9 11 B M 36 5K 1 2
5 B2 10% 3 A L+ AU AR ES R
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:

6. Wz HMW AR s

REMHRHESFOT -

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Revenue from contracts with customers K E&EF &A1) K 2
Construction contracts BEEH 560,670 986,696
RMAA KERBETR 308,362 165,995
869,032 1,152,691
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFPEHNNE
() Disaggregated revenue information (i) Wan EER
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE2023F3A31HLFE
Construction
Segments contracts RMAA Total
pan:i EEEHN HEREBIRE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FERT
Type of services BR 7% 38 5!
Building construction services EFEERS 560,670 - 560,670
RMAA works services K& R TR - 308,362 308,362
Total revenue from contracts RERPEHH
with customers U 560,670 308,362 869,032
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE2022F3A31HLEFE
Construction
Segments contracts RMAA Total
PaN:s BESH) REREEIR A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Type of services PR 75 38 51
Building construction services EFEIERS 986,696 = 986,696
RMAA works services A& RMEETIRRT - 165,995 165,995
Total revenue from contracts RERP G
with customers U ES 986,696 165,995 1,152,691
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The Group's revenue from contracts with customers
was recognised over time.

The revenue from contracts with customers recognised
in the current reporting period that was included in
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting
period was HK$5,949,000 for the year ended 31 March
2022.

Performance obligations

For the building construction and other RMAA works
services, the performance obligation is satisfied
over time as services are rendered and payment
is generally due within 30 days from the date of
billing. As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations was HK$1,818,871,000
(2022: HK$862,858,000), and the Group will recognise
this revenue in the future when the buildings are
completed, which are expected to occur over the next
12 to 36 months.

For the RMAA works services under term contracts, the
performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30
days from the date of billing. The Group applies the
practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 and
does not disclose the amount of the transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance obligations
for contracts with an original expected duration of one
year or less.
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6. WamkHMWARWE(E)

RERFENHWE(E)

(i)

(ii)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARS R R RE

31 March 2023
2023%F3A31H

Other income and gains HA A R iz
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Interest income FLEMA 1,712 225
Government grants* U R A 2,660 133
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HEZ AR EFABZEN
fair value through profit or loss, net CRMEE I WE - FHE 1,468 1,176
Dividend income from equity RANET ABRHARE
investments at fair value through REZREWA
profit or loss 1,143 1,173
Sundry income TR A 6,259 4,579
13,242 7,286
& Government grants mainly represented receipt under the Employment Support * BE2023F3ANA ILFE - BATHEE RIELE
g the yeor-encud 31 Moroh 2521 There Sre me anfue conciions o B B Lk B 82k 2 058
contingencies related to these grants. B
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BABARA
An analysis of the Group's finance costs is as follows: REBENTBERADHTIT -
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Interest on bank borrowings RITRE AR 37 33
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNS 143 96
180 129
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE SRR M et
31 March 2023
2023F3A31H

8. BRBLAIZEF

Zii‘ilfﬁﬁml EM I, (GEA) T3

(crediting): BIRBHHE -
2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B s FTHERT FAET
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERZEBINE
equipment 14 2,035 2,175
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 15(a) 5,639 5,155
Lease payments not included in the T AHEAGEHEZ
measurement of lease liabilities HERMNK 348 701
Other charges in respect of rental BHEEEYR 2 Ak E
premises 229 212
Auditor’s remuneration 2 EL AN B & 1,070 900
Employee benefit expense (excluding RERAFZ(TEEE
directors’ remuneration (note 9)):* BEIE (FI5E9)): *
Wages and salaries Iﬁ&ﬁﬁ/\ 90,402 89,286
Pension scheme contributions RS ET IR
(defined contribution scheme) (EREHETE) 3,109 3,608
93,511 92,894
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HER AR B ABZED
fair value through profit or loss, net TRIEEZ W - T (1,468) (1.176)
Dividend income from equity BARET AR R RE
investments at fair value through ®E ZRBIWA
profit or loss (1,143) (1,173)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair ~ EAREFT ABRAIESEE
value through profit or loss, net** BEZARERRE
TRER 635 629
Impairment of contract assets, net** AREERE - FRE 17 426 62
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) E S REWGIBRE,
of trade receivables, net** OREREE]) - FEE* 17 352 (14)
Provision for legal fees and claims** ERERRRERE = 360

@ The employee benefit expense included in cost of sales was HK$75,347,000 (2022:

HK$73,819,000).

>k

Amounts are included in “Administrative and other operating expenses, net” on

the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

* 5t A SH & B 7S 9 8 B 48 F1 B 32 /&75,347,0007 7T
(20224 : 73,819,000/ 7T) °

> SEEAGRERREMEERARZIITER

Hipie s

BIEZERERATE

FEIA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S 3R R Y 5

31 March 2023

2023%F3A31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

ESRESTRASHM

RIE ETRR - BB REGIF383(1)
@ (b) RMHERAR(HEEEF
mERDBEPE2HIEBENAFEES
REESTBRABFHMAOT

2023 2022

20235 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Fees we 560 560

Other emoluments: HfhE B

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REMET 3,950 3,764
Pension scheme contributions BRARSFEHHR(ERE =)

(defined contribution scheme) 305 293

4,255 4,057

4,815 4,617

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

(a) BAFHITES

FARNBIIFNTESTNEEN
s ¢

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Dr. Lau Chi Keung B E+ 180 180
Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond BRI S A 180 180
Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel HER £ S 4 200 200
560 560

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE SRR M et

31 March 2023

2023F3A31H

9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION 9. BEERES{THAESEM(Z)

(continued)

(b) Executive directors and the chief executive

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total

Fees in kind  contributions remuneration
=1 B#e
we  REVEF TR Has
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT TET
2023 20235
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Tsang Ka Yip* BRE K - 1,950 162 2,112
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip b S = 1,161 79 1,240
Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry TR - 839 64 903
- 3,950 305 4,255
2022 2022%
Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Tsang Ka Yip* BRERE - 1,950 162 2,112
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip DR L = 1,047 67 1,114
Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry DREEE = 767 64 831
- 3,764 293 4,057

of the Company.

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip is the executive director and the chief executive officer

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year (2022: Nil).

BIEZERERATE

* BRREAERARANMTERRITIER

REAMEESREXRBRES
BN 2 Z25F (202246 « &) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R R M =T
31 March 2023
20234%3A31H
10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 10. EEBREHF AL
The five highest paid employees during the year ended HZE2023F3A3MBLEFE  Ag&Es
31 March 2023 included two (2022: two) directors of the HME B RIEARR AR A (20224 ¢
Company, details of whose remuneration are set out in ME)EE - HEFBeF BN - X
note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining 90 Hp=R(2022%F : =R )IFEER
three (2022: three) non-director and non-chief executive FEREITRAEERRFTMEERFRNZ
highest paid employees for the year are as follows: FFISESIOT
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #& * 2B N EWEF] 5,635 5,282
Pension scheme contributions RIS FH B 93 111
5,728 5,393
The number of the non-director and non-chief executive FME Ty EERN IFEERIEERETT
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the BABZ=HMEES ABHIIWT :
following bands is as follows:
Number of employees
EEHE
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 72 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1 1
3 3
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group TR AREYEATMIFEERIFR
to any of the non-director and non-chief executive highest SITBAB &= #HMES XA FHMER
paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining MR 51 AN ZR£R B 3 i A7 62 [ By ) 22 R
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil). SAE BRI (8 (20226 « £&) -
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11. INCOME TAX

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and the BVI. Hong Kong profits tax has
been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is
a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime effective from the year of assessment 2018/2019.
The first HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of estimated
assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining estimated assessable profits are taxed at
16.5%.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE SRR M et

31 March 2023

2023F3A31H

1. FTBH

RERESHSMNEBEXHES ZHRAIR
B AREBBEASMNRSESRE
BEXHESTAMEE &EMNEH
DIEFRESBELE Z AT ERRR &
AT &16.5% (20224 : 16.5%) 5112
B EAEE—ERBRRRIN -
H A2018/2019R B & [E B £ 715
MR THEERER - 2B
7] 2 fh 5T FE SR B 4 1) 52,000,000 7T
(20224 : 2,000,000 7T ) LA B £ 8.25%
ETRR - i E BRAY(EET FEERE i I Al AT
FK16.5%xHH

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Current — Hong Kong BNER—&H
Charge for the year FAXIH 953 2,192
Underprovision in prior years wEFERETR 8 37
Deferred (note 22) IRAE (B5E22) (228) 118
Total tax charge for the year FATIELT 733 2,347
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M At
31 March 2023
2023 3A31H
11. INCOME TAX (continued) 1. FIBH (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit REEDEFAE RPN MR
before tax at the statutory tax rate to the tax expense at B HERERNEGFE 2B HHY
the effective tax rate is as follows: HERIOT
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit before tax B A a A 6,680 16,556
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BETERE16.5%:T EHFHIE 1,102 2,732
Concession under the two-tiered rate ZERBMETHER (165) (165)
Income not subject to tax YRR N (951) (565)
Expenses not deductible for tax 1R 599 177
Adjustments in respect of current tax of AR B HARI A BN AT 18
previous periods 8 37
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B i@ AT A &8 = (14)
Tax losses not recognised RERIIBEE 140 145
Tax charge at the Group's effective BRASEBERMEEHNIE
tax rate = 733 2,347
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12.

13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R M AL
31 March 2023
2023 3A31H
DIVIDENDS 12. BE
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Final dividend in respect of the previous FRE E—FBFE
financial year paid during the year — PR
HK1.2 cents (2022: HK1.2 cents) per FRRE @A 27800
ordinary share (20224 = 1.2%840) 9,536 9,536
Proposed final dividend — BEAARE—
HK1.2 cents (2022: HK1.2 cents) FREEER .28
per ordinary share (20224 = 1.2%4L) 9,600 9,600

The payment of a final dividend in respect of the financial
year ended 31 March 2022 of HK1.2 cents per share,
totalling HK$9,536,000, was based on the number of
ordinary shares in issue less shares held under share award
plan.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. These financial statements do not
reflect the final dividend payable.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$5,947,000 (2022: HK$14,209,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
794,592,877 (2022: 794,696,000) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation for the year ended 31 March 2023 is the
number adjusted to reflect the 6,796,000 (2022: 5,304,000)
ordinary shares held by the trustee under the share award
plan of the Company.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

13.

BIEZERERATE

R E2022F3A31H L REE 2
K EARR B B .28 1L (A 519,536,000
BT DEREEHITEBEREE RN
REETEIE T A 2R, -

FREBZRAR B BFARABRRRNIE
[ERCRIRF RS EHAERTTAIEE © %
FH BRI E SR EN RIS

ARAEEFEABGEREF

TESREARRFZ SBEIHERAAR
R 75 A AL F A F5,947,00078
7T (20224 : 14,209,000/ 7T) RERND
B 17 T B AR N KE 19 80794,592,877 1%
(20224F : 794,696,0000%) °

HE2023F3A31HIEFERAREW
TR INE T BN AR 2 EE A
R R B D SEE) AT B TE TR A
R 26,796,0000% (20224 : 5,304,000
%) E A% o

H 220239F &202243A31H ILFE -
AEEVEABEHEYENDHITY
A% o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R R M =T
31 March 2023
2023 3A31H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE
Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Land and Leasehold and  and office Motor
buildings improvements equipment equipment  vehicles Total
KB
TiREF HENEEE BERRE RBARE RE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TR THET THET TET TET TET
31 March 2023 2023F3A31H
At 1 April 2022: 20224 4R18 -
Cost AR 900 3,648 3,186 8,029 7,344 23,107
Accumulated depreciation ZENE (900) (3,648) (1,494) (4,145) (2,648) (12,835)
Net carrying amount REFE - - 1,692 3,884 4,696 10,272
At 1 April 2022, net of 202254 R18
accumulated depreciation HERHE = - 1,692 3,884 4,696 10,272
Additions WE - - - 681 353 1,034
Depreciation provided FRERRE
for the year - - (309) (829) (897) (2,035)
At 31 March 2023, net of W2023F3A318
accumulated depreciation MBFITE - - 1,383 3,736 4,152 9.271
At 31 March 2023: R20235F3A318 :
Cost B% 900 3,648 3,186 8,710 7,697 24,141
Accumulated depreciation REE (900) (3,648) (1,803) (4,974) (3,545) (14,870)
Net carrying amount REFE = - 1,383 3,736 4,152 9,271
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P ERR M

31 March 2023
2023F3A31H

14. 1%~ BERRE(E)

Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Land and Leasehold and  and office Motor
buildings improvements  equipment equipment vehicles Total
XA KB
TREF HEENERE BRERE KRARE HE A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET FET FET
31 March 2022 2022%3A31H
At 1 April 2021: 202154 R18 -
Cost A 900 3,648 3,086 7,611 3,563 18,808
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (900) (3,566) (1,122) (3,315) (1,757) (10,660)
Net carrying amount REFE = 82 1,964 4,296 1,806 8,148
At 1 April 2021, net of 202154518
accumulated depreciation MERHE = 82 1,964 4,296 1,806 8,148
Additions WE - - 100 418 2,693 3,211
Transfer from right-of-use B AEAEER
assets - - - - 1,088 1,088
Depreciation provided FRERRE
for the year - (82) (372) (830) (891) (2,175)
At 31 March 2022, net of R2022463A318
accumulated depreciation MERHE = = 1,692 3,884 4,696 10,272
At 31 March 2022: P202243A318 ¢
Cost AR 900 3,648 3,186 8,029 7,344 23,107
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (900) (3,648) (1,494) (4,145) (2,648) (12,835)
Net carrying amount REFE = = 1,692 3,884 4,696 10,272
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was HE2021F3A3IBEFE *5& H

granted a government grant of HK$1,479,000 related to
purchase of certain items of machinery and equipment
(the "Approved Equipment”). As at 31 March 2023,
the Approved Equipment with a net carrying amount
of approximately HK$404,000 (2022: HK$495,000) was
forbidden to be transferred, sold or leased, with a
view to making profits, within the first three years of its
procurement.

BIEZERERATE

HEEETHMEREER ([&#tE
B ) B BN #8 851,479,000 7T ©
F2023F3A31H R FEN B
404,0007 7T (20224 : 495,000 7T ) A9
KA AR B LT ERBRE =—FRE
FE - HERHEEUREUREF)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S 3R R Y 5

31 March 2023

2023%F3A31H

15. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for certain offices and a
staff quarter. Leases of offices and the staff quarter have
lease terms of 2 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group. There are several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options which are further
discussed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets

15. HE

REBERZFBAA

AEBEGSETHAER —HREESA]
EHEAK - WAELBEBEEHER
H2F - —RME - ARETSHEE
BESELBEEAREESN - ETEE
ERRZRIDEZNHEHESOR T3E—

YN
FElEm o

(@) REABEE

AEE 2 EREEENFANERE

and the movements during the year are as follows: BEREFEHNT :
Leased Motor
buildings vehicle Total
HERF RE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FTHET FHERT
As at 1 April 2021 R202144 518 6,458 1,126 7,584
Additions NE 7,238 = 7,238
Depreciation provided ERE (5,117) (38) (5,155)
Termination of leases HEKRE (264) = (264)
Transfer to property, plant and #EZ=Y% - RE MEE

equipment - (1,088) (1,088)
As at 31 March 2022 and R2022F3A318 &

1 April 2022 2022F4A1H 8,315 - 8,315
Additions NE 4,345 - 4,345
Depreciation provided IrERHE (5,639) - (5,639)
As at 31 March 2023 720233 H31H 7,021 - 7,021

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the lease of a
motor vehicle was fully repaid, the carrying amount of
the motor vehicle is therefore transferred from right-of-
use assets to owned assets.
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15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. HE (&)

REEERFBAE)

(b) HEER

BA RS R R MR

31 March 2023
2023F3A31H

FAE B (83 POROBR T (8 B R

movements during the year are as follows: wmr
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at beginning of year REYNREE 7,893 4,655
New leases e 4,345 7,238
Accretion of interest recognised FARRE RIEF S
during the year 143 96
Termination of leases AE®IE - (279)
Payments NES (5,662) (3,817)
Carrying amount at end of year RERNIREE 6,719 7,893
Analysed into: DR
Current portion ENEL 5 4,153 3,740
Non-current portion SEMENF D 2,566 4,153

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in

note 32 to the financial statements.

B EE32 B EE -

BIEZERERATE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R R M =T
31 March 2023
20234%3A31H
15. LEASES (continued) 15. HE(#)
The Group as a lessee (continued) REBERFEBRANE)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) BHEERBzmPHEZLEEMNT -

leases are as follows:

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENR 143 96

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {# A& & EMNITE T 5,639 5,155
Expense relating to short-term leases EEl b SEREE ol b3

— Included in cost of sales - ST ASHER A 311 147
— Included in administrative and other - ST AT K EAt

operating expenses, net KERE - FRE 37 554

348 701

Total amount recognised in profit or loss MR IEzF ER 2 B5E 6,130 5,952

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note (d) HEMRE R ABETEREM
27(c) to the financial statements. F27(c)F HFE o
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R R MR

31 March 2023
2023F3A31H

16. RAAREBEFFABENEMEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
By EE FTET FET
Non-current: IERE :
Other investment, at quoted price HiigE - R E2 (a) 5,000 4,200
Life insurance policy ASRE (b) 8,383 -
13,383 4,200
Current: TE
Listed equity investments, at FRERE - %
fair value NAEFE (c) 12,729 14,377
Other investment, at quoted price HEMIE - BWmETE (c) 1,006 1,204
13,735 15,581

(a)

The investment was classified as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss as the contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
entered into a key man life insurance policy (the
“Insurance Policy”) to insure Mr. Tsang Tsz Him
Philip, an executive director of the Company, with an
insurance company. Under the policy, the beneficiary
and policyholder are the Group.

The Group paid a one-off premium of US$1,282,063
(equivalent to HK$10,082,000 in total) for the Insurance
Policy. The Group can terminate the Insurance Policy
at any time and receive cash based on the surrender
value of the Insurance Policy at the date of withdrawal
(the “Surrender Value”).

The investment in the Insurance Policy is denominated
in United States dollars (“US$").

BIZRBRAF

HRENRERELIFENES
KRB ZBRERIBREAAE
AAABRENEREE

HE2023F3A3MBILFE - K&
B —FERRARF L ETEEEE
ASREB(TRE]D  AERATH
TEEYHHREERR - BER
B EnARRERBAHALRE

o

i

REBRREZN —AERE
1,282,063 7T(& HAHZ 710,082,000
BIL) o NEB A BER AR IR EE -
WIRERRIR BHREMNRREE
(FRAEEDYERS -

REREAET(ERRT])FHE °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S 3R R Y 5

31 March 2023

2023%F3A31H

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) (continued)
The investment in the Insurance Policy was mandatorily
classified as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.

At 31 March 2023, the Insurance Policy was pledged to
a bank to secure certain banking facilities granted to
the Group.

(¢) The investments were classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as they were held for
trading.

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

16. B AARBEFAEENEREE
(&)
b) (#&)

(o)

REREHE R DB R/RAAER
ABSZHNERMEE - THREALY
REeMBWIHEINARE RFE -

MN2023F3H318  REDHET
$R1T - LRI T AL BME TR
1TRVE o

HRFHEREE  RSREWRI R
BRAREFAERENERMEE

17. ENEENRE 5 BWRIR

2023 2022

20234 20224

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

s FE T T

Other contract assets HihE5REE (a) 98,817 62,947
Retention receivables JEUIREE & (b) 66,812 97,719
165,629 160,666

Less: Impairment B ORE () (842) (416)
Net contract assets EREEFE 164,787 160,250
Trade receivables & 5 el IE 87,347 162,772
Less: Impairment B ORE (c) (373) 1)
Net trade receivables B SR GRIEFRE (f) 86,974 162,751
Total &t 251,761 323,001
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17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(a)

Other contract assets consist of the Group's rights
to consideration for works completed but unbilled
amounts resulting from construction contracts and
RMAA. Other contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional
which was generally in one to three months. As at 1
April 2021, 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023, the
Group's other contract assets were HK$61,569,000,
HK$62,947,000 and HK$98,817,000, respectively. Other
contract assets increased in 2023 and 2022 due to
an increase in the ongoing provision of construction

services at the end of reporting period.

Retention receivables are part of the consideration that
the customers retain which are payable on successful
completion of the contracts in order to provide the
customers with assurance that the Group will complete
its obligation satisfactorily under the contracts, rather
than to provide financing to the customers. As at 1
April 2021, 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023, the
Group's retention receivables were HK$90,462,000,
HK$97,719,000 and HK$66,812,000, respectively. At
31 March 2023, retention receivables are repayable
within terms ranging from one to two years. Included
in the retention receivables of HK$21,173,000 (2022:
HK$24,704,000) was expected to be recovered
after more than one year. Retention receivables of
HK$45,639,000 (2022: HK$73,015,000) are expected
to be recovered within twelve months. Retention
receivables decreased in 2023 since there are more
completed contracts. Retention receivables increased
in 2022 because of more contracts achieving significant
progress in 2022.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR P RE

31 March 2023
2023F3A31H

17. BREERESERFIE(E)

BIZRBRAF

Ht &N EEREASBAEMT
PRIRBBMHREERMAERSR
MRE(REESNUAREE R
EIRMELE) - RIEFIK BEK
Hr(EEA—ZEZ=MA) Hi
GREEEREZE S EKIE -
20214818 « 2022943 A31
B &2023F3A318  AEBZH
it & 89 & E 2 5l B61,569,0007%
T * 62,947,0007% T 198,817,000
BT o Efh A 4 & EN2023F K&
20224 38 h0 Th B PO R 5 B R 2 5
BR 7% 5 B A 3G INFTBR ©

BURRBEABRFRENIHR
B - HENKITTRE LR
NHEFREBEAEBBIZE LEMR
TERBHEML  MIEAURARFE
HEhE - R2021F4 818  2022F
38318 K20235E3A31H » AEH
2 FEWURE & 7 5l /£90,462,0007%
JT * 97,719,00078 7T 5&.66,812,0007%
JT ° 20235 3A318 » EUWRIRE
SER—EMFENEE - Hh - fE
IR B 421,173,000 7T (20224
24,704,000/ 7T ) B HA #% 7 — & LA
L URE o FE YR BB £45,639,0007%
7£(20224F : 73,015,000 7T ) 78 £f
R+ @A RE - BRETEK
WA HE S » 2023 EKIRE S
B o EUIRE £ 72022483 hnTh
MR E Z A HR202F BB EXNE
@ °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S 3R R Y 5

31 March 2023

2023%F3A31H

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

222

(c)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment
of contract assets and trade receivables are as follows:

17. BREERESERFIE(E)

BREENE ZRYIGIRREENE
BRI

Contract assets BREE
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
At beginning of year F1) 416 354
Impairment (note 8) BE(FEES) 426 62
At end of year FEAR 842 416
Trade receivables e e e
2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FATT
At beginning of year FH) 21 35
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) B, CRERE)
(note 8) (Fff7E8) 352 (14)
At end of year EAR 373 21

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates for the measurement
of the expected credit losses of the contract assets
and trade receivables are based on the customer
bases. The provision rates of contract assets and trade
receivables are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e., by customer type and rating). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(o)

(continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group's contract assets and trade

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(0 (#&)

BA RS R R MR

31 March 2023
2023F3A31H

17. BREERESERFIE(E)

ATHINBREARBENEERE
5 [T WK IR {5 PR B A AR Fel P A 2 Y

receivables using a provision matrix: SERBRER
Contract assets BREE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Expected credit loss rate TBEEEREEX 0.51% 0.26%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) LAREE(FHET) 165,629 160,666
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) TEEMEEEE(TAT) 842 416
Trade receivables B 5 B R
2023 2022
20234 20224
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEEE 0.43% 0.01%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) RAREE(FAET) 87,347 162,772
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) TREEEEE(TET) 373 21

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at the end of the reporting period

d) RBEEHRIEEHRTEHEE
(RETREDREIT)NRHE
REEFRERKEREETRR

related to building construction and RMAA works TEAHR -
services.

2023 2022
20234 2022
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Expected to be recognised within one year TEEA#S I —F NER 949,589 805,959
Expected to be recognised after one year FEEIER —FEMHER 869,282 56,899
1,818,871 862,858

Included in the revenue recognised during the year
was HK$17,972,000 (2022: HK$12,925,000) related to
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods.

(e) FTAFAE RN ER17,972,0007%
(20224 © 12,925,000 7T ) &2
BAREETNERNETAER -

BIEZERERATE
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31 March 2023

2023%F3A31H

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

()

224

Trade receivables represented receivables for
contract work. Management generally submits interim
payment applications to customers on a monthly basis
containing a statement setting out management's
estimation of the valuation of the works completed
in the preceding month. Upon receiving the interim
payment application, the architect or the consultant
of the customer verifies such valuation of works
completed and issues an interim payment certificate
within 30 days. Within 30 days after the issuance
of interim payment certificate, the customer makes
payment to the Group based on the certified amount
stipulated in such certificate, deducting any retention
money in accordance with the contract.

There is a certain concentration of credit risk. The
balances of the five largest trade receivables as at 31
March 2023 represented 83.5% (2022: 86.3%) of total
trade receivables while 35.4% (2022: 50.3%) of total
trade receivables as at 31 March 2023 were due from
the largest debtor. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on
the invoice date and net of impairment, is as follows:

17. BREERESERFIE(E)

B2 REEIRES N TRA B
Ho ERE-RERARNTFPER
FHINREE  ERREE—MHER
BHE E—EAMTRH TEAE
BEE - RETHNXERER T
FrZEmMmsER g E )
TEMEREMEE - WEKAE L
FEINHRES - FPERE LT
TR ESERIORA - RREREE
E A7 &z RE ) & B (FNRR ]
BRESONRES)AAEEEDL
5K

rEEFEETEFREERR -
2023438318 AAKE 5 E
WHIBESREE DRI KIBESE
#983.5% (20224 : 86.3%) * i A
2023F3AH31H & K FE W F (G
Z 5 W SRIA B FE8935.4% (2022
F :50.3%) - B 5 MW FKIA L &
ETE o

HBE A2 R AENE S
R HORBR B I T

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Within 90 days 90K A 86,085 159,374
91 to 180 days 91£180K 180 1,696
181 to 360 days 1812360K 695 624
Over 360 days R iE360K 14 1,057
86,974 162,751
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18.

19.
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2023F3A31H

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. EfHIE &R HEMEWIE

RECEIVABLES

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Prepayments AT FRIA 42,058 36,710
Deposits and other receivables e M E b fE U FR I8 19,078 11,462
61,136 48,172

Less: Prepayments and deposits classified  J& : DB RIERBEE L
as non-current assets ENFIEREE (4,123) (5,921)
Current portion mENER S 57,013 42,251

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2023, the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal. Included
in other receivables are loans to subcontractors of
HK$9,709,000 (2022: HK$6,150,000) as at 31 March 2023,
which are unsecured, bear interest at 7% per annum or
interest-free and are repayable on demand.

Pt EESEaISIRE - sEA L&
BHemEERBEIHEOCZER
BHAGKIAR RN GRIEE B - 720235
3A31H @ BIEBEHEETHAERE - ®
2023934318 19,709,000 7T, (20224 :
6,150,000/ 7T ) K fg TR B EERETA
HaEUHIE - ZEERERA - UF
FIRTI %t BB BWEILBREE -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. RERBAREEEY
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ks TFE T FAT
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTAEH 27,948 64,884
Time deposits TE BT 70,468 57,806
98,416 122,690
Less: Pledged deposits B EIEER 26 (34,190) (34,190)
Cash and cash equivalents HReRIREERBY 64,226 88,500
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19.

20.

226

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods within 6 months (2022: 3 months), and earn interest
at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances
and deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

As at 31 March 2023, certain bank facilities were secured by

pledged deposits of HK$11,370,000 (2022: HK$8,000,000).

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and retention payables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

19.

20.

ReRBEeEENW(AE)

RITIR ST RBITERMERLNZEF)
EEHE o EHTFRAB6ME A (20224 : 3
8 A)ATE - &8 E BF 3R X B
BALE o RITAEBRRIFRIFRETEE
WM E B RITFIRTT o

M2023F3A31H  ETHRTREH
EHF 11,370,000 7T (20224 -
8,000,000 7T ) #& 1% °

ESRAREARENRES

RBEMRRBEREH2NEZEN
FRANMEMNREEREDHTAOT

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FATT

Trade payables: B S ENFIA
Within 3 months IEAA 61,568 100,586
Retention payables ERRE 67,547 84,420
129,115 185,006

Retention payables were normally settled within terms
ranging from one to two years.

Trade and retention payables are non-interest-bearing.

The payment terms of trade payables are stipulated in the
relevant contracts with credit periods of 30 days in general.
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21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

22.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P ERR M

31 March 2023

2023 3H31H

21. EtENREREFER

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Other payables R AN/ SE 6,067 2,741
Accruals FEEtE A 29,903 49,689
35,970 52,430

Financial liabilities of HK$13,238,000 (2022: HK$25,608,000)
as at 31 March 2023 included in other payables and
accruals are non-interest-bearing and are expected to be

settled within one year.

DEFERRED TAX

72023535318 - 13,238,00078 7T (2022
£ : 25,608,000 7T ) 5T A H At FE 1< 0B
kEFTEANSHBETEST S - B
R—FERER -

22. EFERLIR

The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during the

year are as follows:

™~

Impairment Depreciation

of contract allowance
assets in excess
and trade of related
receivables depreciation Total
BREER HH
ESEK  AREN
MIEHRE TERE I
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FE T FTHET FHERT
As at 1 April 2021 M202154 A1 H (64) 792 728
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to profit R EEZEFNG, (Gt ABZE
or loss during the year (note 11) H)BIEERS B (FT=E11) (8) 126 118
As at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 M202263A318 &
2022%4R1H (72) 918 846
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FANF AR R RRLER A
during the year (note 11) (Ht3E11) (129) 99) (228)
As at 31 March 2023 202353 H31H (201) 819 618
BIZBRBRAT  F32022/2023 227
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23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. B
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Authorised: EE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,000/% & I E &
HK$0.01 each 0.018 LA E B 50,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
800,000,000 ordinary shares of 800,000,000/ =X EE
HK$0.01 each 0.0178 TR Ak 8,000 8,000

24,

228

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the aggregate of
the paid-up share capital of the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group attributable to the controlling
shareholder prior to the group reorganisation as set
out in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 January
2019.

Shares held under share award plan

Shares acquired and held by the Company are
recognised directly in equity at cost. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, 1,492,000 ordinary shares were
purchased by the trustee of the Share Award Plan Trust
as defined in note 25 at an average price of HK$0.17
per share at a total consideration of HK$253,000. The
shares have been treated as shares held under share
award plan.
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B EEBERARR BB R2019F
TA30R Z B ERMEMEEE
AERTIERU R (A B AT AR BIE T
B AR B AL

(i) RIBRDRBAEFEERS

AARBERRFE 2RO IBEKAR
EENERER - RNE £2023
FIANBIEFE - BRHEBE
ZlfEE(E & LM 25 0 X 5F
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25. SHARE AWARD PLAN

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
adopted a share award plan (the “Share Award Plan”)
on 31 July 2020 (the "Adoption Date”), under which any
employee of the Group and its invested entities, who
contributes to the Group or its invested entities (the “Eligible
Participants”), will be entitled to participate, in order to
recognise and reward the contribution of the Eligible
Participants to the growth and development of the Group;
to give incentives to the Eligible Participants in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development
of the Group; and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

The Group has set up a trust (the “Share Award Plan
Trust”) for the purpose of administrating the Share Award
Plan. The trustee of the Share Award Plan Trust will acquire
shares of the Company to be awarded under the Share
Award Plan from The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, with a maximum amount of funds to be allocated
by the Board, and hold such shares until they are vested.
Unless early terminated by the Board, the Share Award
Plan shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from the Adoption Date.

The Share Award Plan shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of issued shares as at the Adoption Date (i.e.
80,000,000 shares) to be subscribed for the purchase of
the shares to be awarded to the Eligible Participants to be
selected by the Board.

The vesting of shares awarded to the awardees is subject
to conditions and vesting schedules as determined by the
Board at its discretion.

No share award has been granted or vested under the
Share Award Plan since the Adoption Date and up to 31
March 2023.

BIZRBRAF
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25. Riv S BETE

ARAEEEG([EEE])R2020F7A4
MB(THAB D RN —BRGD ZE
FrEI(TRMRMETE]) - it - A%
EXESREERBEFL RN ASERE
REERTANNEES([6EKSHE])
HEESME U R ASELN
EREFERELEMNAEBRSHE
MEBRSMEELTHE  UWBERSE
AREEZFEEERTRIELRY
kBAEEE-TSERRIIESENHA
7 o

AEBECRIER( RO ERTEE
FEl) o AE IR SRR ET & - Axin 88
B BIEENXEARRETEBERS
A PR A AR A 10 22 B 51 8138 T i3
HOARRBRD  REEEHEEED
B WIHAZEBRNEZRE - RIFE
EERTERAAL - B[R ) REEH
2 B R A HEF M OFBE ARG MK
S e

Rt B2 BT I SRR IB R 5 B
217X 17 #2281 8910% ( B80,000,000
itn)  ERBERRTESSHE
BEBZ2EENKD -

RYERANEDRBAREZSNIG
RIE VIGRIE N SR B RS TR R PTAR R o
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31 March 2023

2023%F3A31H

26.

27.

230

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

26. REE

PEREHIR - WARRB SRR BEER
REBEWT :

2023 2022

20235 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FAET

Performance bonds BHIRES 64,479 77,882

The Group provided unlimited guarantees to certain
banks and an insurance company in support of the issue
of performance bonds to the Group's subsidiaries. As at
31 March 2023, certain performance bonds granted were
secured by pledged deposits of HK$22,820,000 (2022:
HK$26,190,000).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

REBRE TRITR—BIRE A/“Thf
EBRER  UNIFRAAKBEREBER
BITEARES ﬁA2023$3H31E1
A TR EHRFE 2 522,820,000/ 7T
(20224 : 26,190,00078 7T ) Z K IBTF K
TEELR o

27. REBHERERHTE

MEEHELNEERE

—
Q
-

Interest—
bearing

bank Lease

borrowing liabilities

FTERITER HESE

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHERT THERT

At 1 April 2021 M2021E4H 18 - 4,655

Changes from financing cash flows MERESREEENE (33) (3,721)

Interest expense FERXZ 33 96

Interest paid classified as operating cash flows HiEAKLEREREZDHHE = (96)

New leases S - 7,238

Termination of leases HEXRIE = (279)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 2022463 A31H &

20224 B1H - 7,893

Changes from financing cash flows MERSRBEENE (37) (5,519)

Interest expense BRI 37 143

Interest paid classified as operating cash flows DAL EREREZEMFE - (143)

New leases S - 4,345

At 31 March 2023 202343 431H - 6,719
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27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of HK$4,345,000
(2022: HK$7,238,000) and HK$4,345,000 (2022:
HK$7,238,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for leased buildings.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
had non-cash disposals of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of HK$264,000 and HK$279,000,
respectively, in respect of termination of leases for
leased buildings.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
had non-cash transfer of right-of-use assets of
HK$1,088,000 to property, plant and equipment, in
respect of the lease of a motor vehicle which was
fully repaid.

Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R R MR

31 March 2023
2023F3A31H

27. GERERERME(E)

(b)

FTEFRERS

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

HE

B Z=2023F3A31HLLFE

AEEREEEFNHEESR
e BB 4,345,0005% 7T (2022
£ 17,238,000/ 7T ) &4,345,000
7 71 (20224F : 7,238,000/ 7T )
MmiERAREEREEAEIER

TRE °

HE2022F3A31HILFE -
AEBEHRBEERFHNEE
41k 3 Bl B264,0000 T &
279,000 TTHIEAEEE K
HEABIFRSLE -

HE2022F3A31MHILFE -
AEERECERBEENRE
A & 51,088,000/ 7T H f&
BREEFRCEBEZME -
55 B 2 o

AR &M 48 ER

FARERERNEENE SR

statement of cash flows is as follows: HEET

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within operating activities KETEEA 491 797
Within financing activities BEEEA 5,519 3,721
6,010 4,518
BIZBRBRAT  F32022/2023 231
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28.

29.

232

COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have
any significant capital commitments.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors of the Company. Details of their remuneration
are disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements. The
total salaries, housing allowances, other allowances and
benefits in kind to the five highest paid individuals (note
10) included the in-kind housing allowance of HK$1,574,000
(2022: HK$1,621,000) paid to Ms. Lai Yuk Lin Eliza, the
spouse of a director, Mr. Tsang Ka Yip, for the rental
payment and outgoings of a director’'s quarter, which was
jointly used by Mr. Tsang Ka Yip.
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RBEER  AEETETAEREAR
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FEETEEEEAEMHE

AEEFTBEEBEABEARNARESE
HBEHMFBRY B RERMFOEE -
MAGREFMA T ANFSE%5E -
BEEA - Bt 2R EYREF(HE
10)BRRNESEREXEZRBREE
BRI AMEREEL,574,0007% 7T
(20224 : 1,621,000 7T ) » AEXZ T
EEEE(HYRELERRFER) B
KA o



30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

Financial assets

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P ERR M

31 March 2023
2023F3A31H

¥

30. REE W

R

BEmT

TREE

Financial
assets at fair
value through

T@MTAH

ARHEMARRERELNT -

Financial
assets at

profit or loss amortised cost Total
RARE R
STABEN A EH
SRIEE SREE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFE T FHE T THERT
2023 2023%
Contract assets and trade receivables &#EENKE S EKFIE = 251,761 251,761
Financial assets included in FTATERFIA - mE REA
prepayments, deposits and other JEWHRIBR SR EE
receivables - 19,078 19,078
Financial assets at fair value through  Z AR EFFABTZRE
profit or loss BE 27,118 - 27,118
Pledged deposits EHFR - 34,190 34,190
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY = 64,226 64,226
27,118 369,255 369,373
2022 2022%F
Contract assets and trade receivables B XEENE 5 EWHRIE = 323,001 323,001
Financial assets included in FTATENRIE « e R EAM
prepayments, deposits and other JEWRIBH) R A
receivables - 11,462 11,462
Financial assets at fair value through ~ ERAREFFABZHNESEE
profit or loss =3 19,781 = 19,781
Pledged deposits EHRFRK - 34,190 34,190
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREeEFEY = 88,500 88,500
19,781 457,153 476,934
Financial liabilities TRIEE
All financial liabilities as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are 20234 [2022F3 318 - i &t

financial liabilities at amortised cost.

BRI RE HA AT iR

BIEZERERATE
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2023%F3A31H

31.

234

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, contract assets and trade receivables,
trade and retention payables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables and
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

N EMTRAZARERAIAERER

EEECHERELASEEY 61
BENBSREFIR - BHRMNIAN
ERNFRES  SHATRNIE - R hE
i FEUGRIR Y & BB EE A KAt AEL B8
NREMEFEANERAEIAAE

HERE(ERS TERAARSTIAR
HIREH -

TREERAENAAEBUNERR S
(REHBFREEERINENRSHPZ
TAMNARZEEAR -

BAAETBHEE -

Fair value measurement using

EAT IS RETAAETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERAHE BEAFAHE
E BT 5 R E [TPN ¢: WARE
(B—#&) (B=#) (B=4) &st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FE T FHET THERT
As at 31 March 2023 72023%3H31H
Listed equity investments  _ERIEIRE 12,729 = = 12,729
Other investments Hig&E - 6,006 - 6,006
Life insurance policy AFRE = = 8,383 8,383
12,729 6,006 8,383 27,118
As at 31 March 2022 M2022%3H31H
Listed equity investments ~ _ETHARERE 14,377 - - 14,377
Other investments Hiig& - 5,404 = 5,404
14,377 5,404 - 19,781
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31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of listed equity investments is based on
quoted market price. The Group's finance department
headed by the financial controller is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The financial
controller reports directly to the executive directors and
the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the executive directors. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss in Level 2 is determined by using the inputs from
prior transactions or third-party pricing information without
adjustment.

The fair value of the investment in the Insurance Policy in
Level 3 is determined with reference to the Surrender Value
provided by the insurance company. In the opinion of the
directors, the Surrender Value provided by the insurance
company was the best approximation of its fair value. When
the Surrender Value is higher, the fair value of investment
in the Insurance Policy will be higher. As at 31 March 2023,
increase/decrease of 5% in the Surrender Value would
result in increase/decrease in the profit before tax of the
Group of HK$419,000 (2022: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2022: Nil).

31.
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RENREERBEMET - EER
B BRBRARRENRREEAEA
RENREIOE - REEEES @ F
BREAAEBERER - R2023F3H31
B - RREEE R 5% E B
£ BBk B AT s B3 0,8 40419,000%
TT(20224F : £&) o

TN eREEAABHAERES R
BHE—REAER  TEEAIBLE
=% (2022 : &) -
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2023%F3A31H

31.

32.

236

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3
during the year are as follows:

31. %

Py AR EHERESRME BN

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Life insurance policy ABRE

At the beginning of the year F4)) - =
Purchase BE 8,368 =

Fair value gain recognised in RIERPRRZ AR ERS
profit or loss 15 -
At the end of the year ER 8,383 —

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments include financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, contract assets
and trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
trade and other payables, lease liabilities and cash and
cash equivalents. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial
statements.

The main risks arising from the Group’'s financial
instruments are credit risk, market price risk and liquidity
risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to contract
assets and trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

Management monitors the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an ongoing basis.
The Group's trade receivables represent interim billings
or retentions certified by the customers under terms as
stipulated in the contracts. As the Group's customers
primarily consist of the Government and quasi-Government
organisations, property developers or owners with strong
financial backgrounds, management considers that the risk
of irrecoverable receivables is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 March.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the
financial guarantee contracts.

BIZRBRAF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE SRR M et

31 March 2023

2023F3A31H

2. WBEREEBERBEK(E)

FERER

AEEEERREEFEANRAGNEER
BHRWHIR - sEABRNTE ek
Hip B REN SR EE « BHFFA
kRe LR EEEY -

ERETYERBERSBEHEAGER
MRER - AREE 5 RUBERETF
RIBE KIRTIRRERRE P B SRR B
& - HRAKETF Z2HBUTRFEK
fiteE  ERRBXIHEE FBAN
EXAK - BEERRERYGIETAIK
Bl R RIETEK °

REE R FAEEER

TREBJIERAKBENEERRNEER
BExkmaEERR  TEENGHE
HGRIEEMER A EEBNETSNE
RALENNER N ER) - RR3A
TR RO

FREdMARE R EENAIRE
EBELRMBEREOHAERNEERR
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2023%F3A31H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32.

AND POLICIES (continued)

MBEREEBERRBER(E)

Credit risk (continued) =8/ (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) REERERFEER(E)
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8 AR
FEFE FHRLBEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-RE BREE F=RE :H(#73 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TR TET
As at 31 March 2023 R2023%53A31R
Contract assets and trade BRHEERE S RNGIE
receivables* - - - 252,976 252,976
Financial assets included in FTABMTE - ke REM
prepayments, deposits and ElFUER S B A E
other receivables
— Normal** —— 19,078 - - - 19,078
Pledged deposits ERER
— Not yet past due — K@ 34,190 - - - 34,190
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEY
— Not yet past due — K 64,226 = = = 64,226
117,494 - - 252,976 370,470
As at 31 March 2022 W2022%3831H
Contract assets and trade BHEERE S EWFUE
receivables* - - - 323,438 323,438
Financial assets included in FTABATUE - ke REM
prepayments, deposits and ERFENEREE
other receivables
- Normal** ——fg* 11,462 - - - 11,462
Pledged deposits ERTR
- Not yet past due — A E 34,190 - - - 34,190
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHEEZEEY
— Not yet past due — R 88,500 - - = 88,500
134,152 - - 323,438 457,590
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

* For contract assets and trade receivables to which the Group
applies the simplified approach for impairment, information
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 17 to the
financial statements, respectively.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of
investments held for trading decrease as a result of
changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The Group was exposed to market risk
arising from individual equity investments classified as held
for trading (note 16) as at 31 March 2023. Based on their
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period, an
increase/decrease of 10% in the fair values of the financial
assets, with all other variables held constant and before any
impact on tax, would result in an increase/decrease in profit
before tax of HK$1,273,000 (2022: HK$1,438,000).

BIEZERERATE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE SRR M et

31 March 2023

2023F3A31H

2. WBEREEBERBEK(E)

EERR(E)
REEERFAEER (&)

* BARERAMLCREENANEER
BHRWHIANE - RBBBERENE
K BT BA TS SRR RE1 7R R ©

> FTABENFR - HMERFAREME
ENeREENEEIRARAARA
TEENBETREREENEERRA D
HHERIARAIRIL IR AR BRI IER | -
BH eMEENERERRAA/IR
e

mERE kR

MERREERIEEENRENAAE
A IRFE R EUKT M AR E S EBEN
&R E B o 72023F3A31H »
SEmHNHBRRKEDERFEER
BRI B & (M aE16) - IRIER
WEHRNEEEFE - EAEEMA
SRR FTEBRFTAERABBZ
Z2FRT @RMBENDREEN
BA10% » #E SRR AT A 00, Rk
41,273,000 7T.(20224F : 1,438,000/
JT) °
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. In addition,
banking facilities have been put in place for contingency
purposes.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the

earliest date that the Group could be required to repay:

2. BEBEEREREREE(AE)

REBE < m

AEBNBERZTERERER LIBHR
BESENK  BREAKRETREHE
RAFEZEHRBERFENSBEESH
B mRER R ERARBHESEL -
BN - BEBUSRITREERSRZA -

TERFHINAEEERBENHREHRR
BENANRRERE(BEEREGLH
BRFHENFEFR - WEZE - Al
REBRERRERNXFE)FENF
BHAENDH R R AR EE R BEAEEDN
REAH

In the
Within one third to
year or on In the fifth years,
demand second year inclusive Total
B=FZE
—F R ERF(E
BRER B-F BEWHF) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FTHET FHET
2023 2023%F
Trade and retention payables L ANE =YY AN
REE 117,078 12,877 - 129,955
Other payables and accruals HAh R RIE R EET B R 13,238 - - 13,238
Lease liabilities HERE 4,306 2,070 555 6,931
134,622 14,947 555 150,124
2022 20225
Trade and retention payables Z 5 R RIE R PR
REE 166,003 18,623 817 185,443
Other payables and accruals HAh B RIB R IEETE R 25,608 - - 25,608
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,861 2,872 1,350 8,083
195,472 21,495 2,167 219,134
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
policy is to ensure that the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure on a periodical
basis. As part of this review, the Group considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital
and will balance the Group’s overall capital structure
through new share issues as well as raising new debts or
repayment of existing debts. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2023
and 2022.

The Group monitors capital using a debt-to-equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company. Net debt includes lease liabilities
less cash and cash equivalents. The Group's policy is to
maintain a stable debt-to-equity ratio. The debt-to-equity
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE SRR M et

31 March 2023

2023F3A31H

2. ERAREEEERBE(E)

EREHE

AEEEAEERRNEIRZAR/ES
EERREDEIEL &ETE - BEKX
SETRHELE  IRFHEMERK
EEE

AEETHRMEAERE - (FREHD
—8n  AEEEEREAKANEES
B ERRER - WEEBHIREITR
EENMBEUEEREEH TOAKEE
BEXRERE - AEBE X EMINBHE
ME)E AR BSKATR ) o B E20235F I
2022%F3A3MBIEFE - EBEARMAE
1% BOREGBRRMEEE -

AEBNBMERERLXERER &
TR L R B ERFRR AR R ) 2
FAEARGEZMGEH - EFFEERE
HERERRELREEEY - NEE
HIBR B B R RIBE - S
HIRMWER RS R T

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Lease liabilities HEAE 6,719 7,893
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReMREEED (64,226) (88,500)
Net cash R F58 (57,507) (80,607)

Equity attributable to equity holders

of the Company RATIERFFE AEER 281,846 285,688
Debt-to-equity B b R N/A FEH N/A T
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 33. &2 R H M AR R &
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the BRARRBIRREARNITEARAEKE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BRI -
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSET kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HERBARRIRE = .
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEfFRIE « && KA FEUL
A 22 5
Due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A RIRIA 33,238 35,354
Cash and cash equivalents B MREEED 11,692 20,733
Total current assets REEELE 44,952 56,092
CURRENT LIABILITY REBAE
Accrual EETEA 4 =
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFH 44,948 56,092
NET ASSETS EEFE 44,948 56,092
EQUITY fE=
Issued capital BEITIRA 8,000 8,000
Reserves (note) i (M E) 36,948 48,092
Total equity MR 44,948 56,092
i Less than HK$500 * APA5007% 7T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P ERR M

31 March 2023
2023F3A31H

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 33. AATWNHMBRRE (L)
COMPANY (continued)

Note: PR -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARREBRENT -
Shares held
Share under share Accumulated
premium  award plan losses Total
BB
REEE
ROEE ARERG ey F &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4 A1 H 76,767 (996) (16,257) 59,514
Loss and total comprehensive FAFBELZES T
expense for the year #E = = (1,886) (1,886)
Final 2021 dividend declared B 5K AR HA2021F % B (9,536) = = (9,536)
At 31 March 2022 and HR2022F3A318 &
1 April 2022 20224718 67,231 (996) (18,143) 48,092
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREEKLRZ2E S H
expense for the year #E = = (1,359) (1,355)
Final 2022 dividend declared 25k AR #2022 f% B (9,536) = = (9,536)
Purchase of shares held under B ERIEI(7 2B E]
share award plan Friza IR in - (253) - (253)
At 31 March 2023 #R2023F3A31H 57,695 (1,249) (19,498) 36,948
34. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 34, Lk £ 58
Certain comparative amounts in the consolidated statement HEReREBERNE THREEEER
of cash flows have been reclassified to conform with current D8 AHFEERFERNZY -
year's presentation.
35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 35. #EMB®E
The financial statements were approved and authorised for MEMERDN2023F6A29BEEZESE
issue by the board of directors on 29 June 2023. HEE R RT3 -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
DR S

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for each of the last five financial years is set out below:

AEBBEDEATRFETFNE
ENBEREHINWT

Results for the year ended 31 March

BIANE

BE3HA3IBALEENER

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

2023%F 20224F 20214F 20204F 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT T FAIT FAT

Revenue Wz 869,032 1,152,691 1,103,157 1,204,001 980,589

Cost of sales ER A (830,011)  (1,099,041)  (1,047,756)  (1,099,388) (890,081)

Gross profit EH) 39,021 53,650 55,401 104,613 90,508

Other income and gains E A A e as 13,242 7,286 14,131 6,676 4,091
Administrative and other ITB R E A

operating expenses, net MY FE (45,403) (44,251) (48,519) (50,579) (47,365)

Finance costs B AR AR (180) (129) (199) (359) (600)

Profit before tax R A& A 6,680 16,556 20,814 60,351 46,634

Income tax FRSHE (733) (2,347) (1,572) (9,855) (9,4006)
Profit and total comprehensive F A& F &2 H

income for the year L ONGE 5,947 14,209 19,242 50,496 37,228

As at 31 March
R3A31H

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

20234 20224F 20214F 2020%F 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT T FAT FAT

Total assets BEE 454,723 532,231 498,322 575,034 501,078

Total liabilities wAfE (172,877) (246,543) (217,307) (297,065) (262,402)

Total equity Bl 281,846 285,688 281,015 277,969 238,676
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